
To: Members of the 
RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Councillor Michael Rutherford (Chairman)
Councillor Suraj Sharma (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Yvonne Bear, Julian Benington, Aisha Cuthbert, Christine Harris, 
Josh King, Angela Page and Gary Stevens

Non-Voting Co-opted Members
Sheldon Allen, Bromley Youth Council

A meeting of the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee will be held at Bromley Civic Centre on TUESDAY 22 JANUARY 2019 
AT 7.00 PM 

MARK BOWEN
Director of Corporate Services

Copies of the documents referred to below can be obtained from
 http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/

PART 1 AGENDA
Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contact details are shown on each 
report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.

STANDARD ITEMS

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3  QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
ATTENDING THE MEETING 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, questions to this Committee must be 
received in writing 4 working days before the date of the meeting.  Therefore please 
ensure questions are received by the Democratic Services Team by 5 pm on 
Wednesday 16 January 2019.

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH

TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333 CONTACT: Lisa Thornley
Lisa.Thornley@bromley.gov.uk

DIRECT LINE: 020 8461 7566
FAX: 020 8290 0608 DATE: 14 January 2019

http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/


a   QUESTIONS FOR THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 

b   QUESTIONS FOR THE CHAIRMAN OF RENEWAL, RECREATION AND 
HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE 

4   MINUTES OF THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2018 (Pages 5 - 30)

5   MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES AND UPDATES (Pages 31 - 34)

HOLDING THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PORTFOLIO HOLDER TO 
ACCOUNT

6  PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING 
PORTFOLIO REPORTS 

Portfolio Holder decisions for pre-decision scrutiny.

7   CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - 2ND QUARTER 2018/19 (Pages 35 - 44)

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ITEMS

8   PRESENTATION BY COUNTRYSIDE PROPERTIES (UK) LIMITED - SITE G: 
BROMLEY TOWN CENTRE 

9   PRESENTATION BY CRYSTAL PALACE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT TRUST: 
ANERLEY TOWN HALL 

10   PRESENTATION - PENGE AND BECKENHAM BID 

11   BECKENHAM AND PENGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID) UPDATE 
(Pages 45 - 70)

12   OPPORTUNITY SITE G - APPROVAL FOR IN PRINCIPLE USE OF COMPULSORY 
PURCHASE POWERS (Pages 71 - 88)

13   TOWN CENTRES DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 89 - 94)

14   DRAFT BUDGET 2019/20 (Pages 95 - 112)

15   RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PORTFOLIO PLAN - QUARTER TWO 
UPDATE (Pages 113 - 142)



16   RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME (MARCH 2019) (Pages 143 - 148)

PART 2 (CLOSED) AGENDA

17 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
(ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 2006, AND THE FREEDOM 
OF INFORMATION ACT 2000 

The Chairman to move that the Press and public be excluded during consideration of 
the items of business listed below as it is likely in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that if members of the Press and public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information.

Items of Business Schedule 12A Description

18  EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE RENEWAL, 
RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2018 
(Pages 149 - 152)

19  PRIVATE SECTOR TALL BUILDINGS UPDATE 
(Pages 153 - 160)

Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding that 
information) 



This page is left intentionally blank



26

RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 13 November 2018

Present:

Councillor Michael Rutherford (Chairman)
Councillor Suraj Sharma (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Yvonne Bear, Julian Benington, Aisha Cuthbert, 
Josh King, Angela Page and Gary Stevens

Also Present:

Councillors Hannah Gray, Peter Morgan and Michael Tickner

39  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS

No apologies for absence were received.

40  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Cuthbert declared a non-pecuniary interest in Item 16 – Leisure 
Services Lease Proposal, as she was a Board Member of Mytime Active.

41  QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

41a QUESTIONS FOR THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER

No questions were received.

41b QUESTIONS FOR THE CHAIRMAN OF RENEWAL, RECREATION 
AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE

No questions were received.

42 MINUTES OF THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 18 SEPTEMBER 2018

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2018 
be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee

13 November 2018

27

43 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES AND UPDATES

Report CSD18151

Minute 36 – 18.09.18 – Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee 
Work Programme (November 2018-March 2019)

As stated in the Minutes of the previous meeting, Councillor Benington 
requested that Penge and Beckenham BID Managers be invited to the next 
meeting.

All other actions arising from previous meetings had been completed.

RESOLVED that progress on matters arising from previous meetings be 
noted.

44 PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF RENEWAL, RECREATION AND 
HOUSING PORTFOLIO REPORTS

44A BUDGET MONITORING 2018/19 

Report FSD18087

The Committee considered an update on the latest budget monitoring position 
for 2018/19 for the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio based on 
expenditure and activity levels up to 30 September 2018 which showed a 
projected underspend of £49k for the total portfolio budget.

In relation to the Summary of Major Variations on page 29 of the report, 
Members were informed that credits attributed to staffing vacancies in the 
Building Control and Planning departments were linked to the volume of work 
at any given time.  Additional staff were employed when necessary to deal 
with heavy workloads.  Interim measures had been put in place since the 
departure of the Head of Building Control. 

Only one part-time Town Centre Manager post remained and cost-reduction 
issues had been resolved.  Options for potential BIDS for West Wickham and 
Chislehurst would be brought forward in a report to the Committee in January 
2019, subject to the outcome of the on-going feasibility study work.

Councillor Bear considered it would be useful for a percentage column to be 
added to the variance table on page 28. It was agreed that the Head of 
Finance would discuss the required format with Councillor Bear.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be recommended to endorse the 
latest 2018/19 budget projection for the Renewal, Recreation and 
Housing Portfolio.

Page 6



Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee
13 November 2018

28

44B PENGE AND ANERLEY LIBRARY CAPITAL SCHEME POST 
COMPLETION REPORT 

Report DRR18/054

The Committee considered the post completion report for the Penge and 
Anerley Library Capital Scheme.  As part of the Capital Programme 
Procedures it was a requirement that schemes should be formally reviewed 
within one year of completion and the outcome of the review brought to the 
Portfolio Holder for endorsement.

The Chairman was pleased to note that the Capital Scheme completed below 
budget and the original contract programme was met.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be recommended to endorse the 
findings of the Post Completion Review carried out in respect of Penge 
and Anerley Libraries.

45 PDS PRESENTATION - INTRODUCTION TO THE WORK OF 
HOUSING

The Director of Housing gave a presentation on the work of the Housing 
Division, including an overview of:-

 the housing vision and key responsibilities;
 key pressures;
 the definition of homelessness and the law; and
 key priorities and responses.

A full copy of the presentation can be viewed as attachment A to these 
Minutes.

In response to Members’ questions, the Director of Housing reported that the 
latest London Plan for Bromley had established a need for 1320 new homes 
per annum; this was virtually double the target of 641 new homes set out in 
the previous London Plan for Bromley.  If this target was consistently met, it 
was likely that the system would significantly stabilise, problems around 
temporary accommodation would be diminished and the housing register 
should begin to reduce. 

Housing Benefit had been frozen for four years; this was the third year with 
one year remaining.  Under the current regime, Universal Credit would never 
keep pace with real market rents.  Whilst payment was defaulted to tenants, 
there was an option for registered providers and private landlords to request 
direct payment in specific cases.  

Page 7



Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee

13 November 2018

29

Officers were working with providers on options to deliver increased 
accommodation for young people and also access to private rented 
accommodation for single people.

Members were informed that all persons approaching the Council (and they 
may approach any Council in England), would undergo an assessment for 
priority need.  Unfortunately, due to the current high costs within the rental 
market, there had been a marked increase in the number of people 
approaching the Council without priority need.  The vast majority of people in 
temporary accommodation (in and out-of-Borough), were those to whom the 
Council had a long-term statutory duty to assist.

Whilst fraudulent claims were tackled robustly, assessments were carried out 
in a fair and reasonable manner.

The requirement for developers to provide 35% affordable housing was 
achieved where it was deemed viable to do so.  The Director of Housing 
agreed to provide Members with further details.

The Chairman advised Members to contact him about any housing items they 
would like to be considered at future meetings. 

46 BUILDING CONTROL - SERVICE REVIEW

Report DR18/1057

The Committee considered a report which sought permission from the 
Executive to review the current Building Control Service.  As part of the 
agreed Gateway process for determining the method that offered the best 
value and quality for delivering Services (in accordance with the Council’s 
Corporate Operating principles), the report provided a high level options 
appraisal of the Building Control Service. 

The key options to be considered included:

Option 1 – Undertake a review of the service with the intention of continuing an 
improved internal service;

Option 2 - Stop providing Building Control Services; 

Option 3 – Commission Building Control Services; or

Option 4- Enter into a Shared Service with another Local Authority.

It was recommended that a full review of the service (Option 1) be undertaken 
including the potential to operate a Shared Service Model (Option 4). This 
would include updating and improving the service by using better technology.

The Strategic Commissioning Manager gave an overview of the report.  

Page 8



Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee
13 November 2018

30

Members were informed that since September 2018, the Head of Building 
Control post was currently being filled by a secondment arrangement with the 
London Borough of Bexley.  This had proved successful and Bexley were 
supportive of the service review proposal.

Paragraph 4.2 under the Options Appraisal (page 46), referred to 
recommendations from the Hackett Review (following the Grenfell tragedy).  
These recommendations were likely to be based on fire safety and the size of 
developments.

In regard to Options 2 and 3, it was reported that whilst there were 
organisations to whom the service could be commissioned, it was unlikely to 
attract interest due to the fact that the Building (Local Authorities Charging) 
Regulations 2010 prohibited contract providers from making a profit on 
chargeable services within Building Control.  

It was possible for elements of the service to be outsourced, however the 
Council would first need to resolve issues within the Department before this 
could be considered.  Alternately, the Council could privately operate the 
service but again, problems within the Department would require attention.

The Chairman considered Option 3 (to commission Building Control Services) 
should be disregarded.  As the Team consisted of just seven staff, the need 
for a Head of Building Control was doubtful and he suggested a less senior 
position be established.

Members agreed that Option1 – to review the service with the intention of 
continuing an improved internal service was worth undertaking. 

RESOLVED that the report be noted and Members’ comments be 
provided to the Executive for consideration.

Members asked that the recommendations be approved and that 
consideration given in the longer term should include potential 
commissioning of the service.

47 TOWN CENTRES DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE 
REPORT

Report DRR/18/1062

Members were updated on progress achieved in delivering the Town Centres 
Development and Growth Programme.

The Chairman of the Beckenham Town Centre Working Group was in 
attendance and informed Members that the final meeting of the Group was 
scheduled for December 2018.  Members were invited to attend an event to 
celebrate the completion and official opening of the Beckenham improvement 
works which would take place at 12.30 pm on Saturday 1 December 2018 at 

Page 9



Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee

13 November 2018

31

Beckenham Green.  He advised that whilst the scheme had been fraught with 
difficulties, the programme had completed on time and within budget.  By April 
2018, footfall to the High Street had increased by 4½% and a further increase 
was anticipated at the next count.

All retail units in the High Street were currently let or under offer.  Several 
businesses above shops had been replaced with much needed housing.  
Whilst this was welcomed, it was vital to ensure that the residential 
accommodation (following a change from business to residential use) was of 
sufficient standard and quality.

A post-completion report for the Beckenham Improvement Scheme would be 
submitted to the Committee in approximately six months’ time.

Concern was raised in regard to enhanced cleaning of Beckenham High 
Street.  The Head of Renewal advised that Members had previously opted for 
a like-for-like cleaning regime with enhanced cleaning funds to be drawn down 
when required.  The Chairman recommended the Portfolio Holder for 
Environment and Community Services be approached on this subject as a 
matter of importance.

It was reported that the cost of cleaning and maintaining the performance 
canopy at Beckenham Green was yet to be sourced as no particular group 
had been identified to undertake the task.  One Member suggested using BID 
money for this purpose.  Councillor Tickner advised that local residents’ 
associations were not willing to accept the exceptionally high cost of £2k p.a. 
quoted by idVerde.  The Chairman enquired whether sponsorship options 
could be considered.  It was noted that the subject of waste and cleaning 
would be discussed at the Environment and Community Services PDS 
meeting the following week.

Funding had been agreed for the remedial works to the Churchill Theatre 
which, it was anticipated, would begin in January and complete by May 2019.

The paved areas outside Lakeland and H&M in Bromley High Street, required 
re-finishing.

Comments on the public consultation regarding site G were currently being 
evaluated.  

The CLG had launched a High Street Fund of £675m to focus on the future of 
high streets.  It was acknowledged that the Council should prepare and submit 
a bid for this to contribute to the long-term strategies for Orpington High 
Street.  The deadline for submitting bids was Spring 2019.  Further details 
would be submitted to the Committee in due course.

RESOLVED that the progress achieved in delivering the Town Centres 
Development and Growth Programme be noted.

Page 10



Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee
13 November 2018

32

48 RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME: JANUARY-MARCH 2019

Report CSD18152

The Committee considered its Work Programme for January – March 2019.

The following reports were suggested:-

 Business Improvement Districts for Chislehurst and West Wickham; and

 Crystal Palace Masterplan - site visit to be undertaken sometime in the 
future.

RESOLVED that subject to the addition of the suggested reports above, 
the Work Programme be noted.

49 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) ORDER 
2006, AND THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000

RESOLVED that the Press and public be excluded during consideration 
of the items of business referred to below as it was likely in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings 
that if members of the Press and public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information.

50 TENANCY SUPPORT SERVICES FOR HOMELESS PEOPLE

Members considered the report and made comments available to the 
Executive.

51  HOUSING S106 PAYMENT IN LIEU CONTRIBUTIONS

Members considered the report and made comments available to the 
Executive.

54  UPDATE ON BROMLEY HOMES SPV AND OPTIONS GOING 
FORWARD FOR FURTHER JOINT VENTURE ARRANGEMENTS

Members considered the report and made comments available to the 
Executive.

55  INCREASING HOUSING SUPPLY TO MEET HOUSING NEED 
THROUGH USE OF BROMLEY OWNED LAND

Members considered the report and made comments available to the 
Executive.

Page 11



Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Committee

13 November 2018

33

56  LEISURE SERVICES LEASE PROPOSAL

Members considered the report and made comments available to the 
Executive.

The meeting ended at 9.10 pm

Chairman

Page 12



P
age 26

M
inute A

nnex

P
age 13

ThornL01
Text Box
A



P
age 27

P
age 14



P
age 28

P
age 15



P
age 29

P
age 16



P
age 30

P
age 17



P
age 31

P
age 18



P
age 32

P
age 19



P
age 33

P
age 20



P
age 34

P
age 21



P
age 35

P
age 22



P
age 36

P
age 23



P
age 37

P
age 24



P
age 38

P
age 25



P
age 39

P
age 26



P
age 40

P
age 27



P
age 41

P
age 28



P
age 42

P
age 29



P
age 43

P
age 30



 1

Report No.
CSD19019

London Borough of Bromley

PART 1 - PUBLIC
 

Decision Maker: Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee

Date: 22 January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES AND 
UPDATES

Contact Officer: Lisa Thornley, Democratic Services Officer
Tel:  020 8461 7566   E-mail:  lisa.thornley@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: N/A

1. Reason for report

1.1 Appendix A updates Members on matters arising from previous meetings.

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Committee is asked to consider progress on matters arising from previous meetings.

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy, Financial, Legal and Personnel Implications

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

- 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: None

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.  The Committee is regularly updated on matters arising from 
previous meetings.

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.      
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No cost      

2. Ongoing costs: N/A.      

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services

4. Total current budget for this head: £350,650

5. Source of funding: 2018/19 revenue budget
________________________________________________________________________________

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional): There are 8 posts (6.87 fte) in the Democratic Services 
Team.  

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Monitoring the Committee's matters 
arising can take up to two hours per meeting.  

________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: No statutory requirement or Government guidance.      

2. Call-in: Call-in is not applicable. The report does not involve an executive decision
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): The report is intended 
primarily for Members of this Committee. 

________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  No. 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A

Page 32



 

APPENDIX A
PROGRESS ON MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Minute Number/Title Updates/Feedback Requested Action By Current Status

Minute 44A – 13.11.18
Budget Monitoring 2018/19

The Head of Finance to discuss the required format of the 
budget monitoring document with Councillor Bear.

Claire Martin Discussion with Councillor 
Bear to take place in 
January 2019.

Minute Number/Title Updates/Feedback Requested Action By Current Status

Minute 45 – 13.11.18
PDS Presentation – 
Introduction to the Work of 
Housing

The requirement for developers to provide 35% affordable 
housing was achieved where it was deemed viable to do 
so.  The Director of Housing agreed to provide Members 
with further details.

Jim Kehoe Completed. Information sent 
via e-mail on 11 January 
2019.

Exempt Minute Number/Title Updates/Feedback Requested Action By Current Status

Minute 52/1 – 13.11.18
Update on Bromley Homes 
SPV and Options Going 
Forward for Further Joint 
Venture Arrangements

The Director of Housing agreed to request further 
information be made available to Members.

Sara Bowrey Completed.  Information 
sent via e-mail on 7 January 
2019.P

age 33



T
his page is left intentionally blank



 1

Report No.
FSD19013

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER

Date: For pre-decision scrutiny by the Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS 
Committee on 22nd January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Non-Key

Title: CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - 2ND  QUARTER 2018/19 

Contact Officer: Jo-Anne Chang-Rogers, Principal Accountant
Tel: 020 8313 4292    E-mail:  jo-anne.chang-rogers@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Director of Finance

Ward: All

1. Reason for report

On 28th November 2018, the Executive received a report summarising the current position on 
capital expenditure and receipts following the 2nd quarter of 2018/19 and agreed a revised 
Capital Programme for the four year period 2018/19 to 2021/22. This report highlights changes 
agreed by the Executive in respect of the Capital Programme for the Renewal, Recreation & 
Housing Portfolio. The revised programme for this portfolio is set out in Appendix A and detailed 
comments on individual schemes are shown in Appendix B. 

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

The Portfolio Holder is asked to note and confirm the changes agreed by the Executive 
on 28th November 2018.

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



 2

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy: Capital Programme monitoring is part of the planning and review 
process for all services. Capital schemes help to maintain and improve the quality of life in the 
borough.  Effective asset management planning (AMP) is a crucial corporate activity if a local 
authority is to achieve its corporate and service aims and objectives and deliver its services. For 
each of our portfolios and service priorities, we review our main aims and outcomes through the 
AMP process and identify those that require the use of capital assets. Our primary concern is to 
ensure that capital investment provides value for money and matches the Council’s overall 
priorities as set out in the Community Plan and in “Building a Better Bromley”. 

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council  
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Total Increase of £0.5m over the four years 2018/19 to 2021/22, due to the 
approval and addition of £100k to the Housing Feasibility Studies scheme and a further 
allocation of £415k to the Bromley High Street Improvements scheme.  

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Capital Programme

4. Total current budget for this head: £41.6m for the Renewal, Recreation & Housing Portfolio over 
the four years 2018/19 to 2021/22

5. Source of funding:  Capital grants, capital receipts, S106 and earmarked revenue contributions
________________________________________________________________________________

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  1 fte  

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:  36 hours per week  
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance 

2. Call-in: Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): N/A  
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? N/A 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A

Page 36



 3

3. COMMENTARY

Capital Monitoring – variations agreed by the Executive on 28th November 2018

3.1 A revised Capital Programme was approved by the Executive on 28th November 2018, following 
a detailed monitoring exercise carried out after the 2nd quarter of 2018/19. The base position is 
the programme approved by the Executive on 11th July 2018, as amended by variations 
approved at subsequent Executive meetings. All changes to schemes in the Renewal, 
Recreation & Housing Portfolio Programme are itemised in the table below and further details 
are included in paragraph 3.2. The revised Programme for the Renewal, Recreation & Housing 
Portfolio is attached as Appendix A whilst Appendix B shows actual spend against budget in 
2018/19, together with detailed comments on individual scheme progress. 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

TOTAL 
2018/19 to 

2021/22
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Programme approved by Executive 11/07/18 18,477 8,531 14,104 10 41,122

Rephasing from 2018/19 to 2019/20 (Para 3.2) 2,876Cr 2,876 0 0 0
Bromley High St Improvements (Para 3.3) 415 415
Approved Programme prior to 2nd Quarter monitoring 16,016 11,407 14,104 10 41,537

Variations approved by Executive 28/11/18
Housing Development Feasibility (Para 3.4) 50 50 100
Housing Payment in Lieu Fund - unallocated (Para 3.5) } 1,006Cr 1,006Cr     
Affordable Housing Scheme - PIL } 800 800
Property Acquisitions - PIL } 206 206
Total amendments to the Capital Programme 50 50 0 0 100

Total Revised Renewal, Recreation & Housing Programme 16,066 11,457 14,104 10 41,637

3.2 Schemes re-phased from 2018/19 into future years

As part of the 2nd quarter monitoring exercise, a total of £2,876k has been rephased from 
2018/19 into 2019/20 to reflect revised estimates of when expenditure is likely to be incurred. 
This is primarily due to a number of schemes currently going through design and development 
before being delivered in 2019/20. Scheme rephasings are itemised in the table below and 
comments on scheme progress are provided in Appendix B.

Capital Expenditure - Rephasing in Q2 Monitoring 2018/19 2019/20  TOTAL  
£'000 £'000 £'000

Gateway Review of Housing IT System 60Cr           60 0
Payment in Lieu Fund - Property Acquisitions 85Cr           85 0
Empty Homes Programme 150Cr          150 0
Norman Park Athletics Track 300Cr          300 0
West Wickham Leisure Centre 900Cr          900 0
Penge Town Centre 500Cr          500 0
Bromley High St Improvement Fund 776Cr          776 0
Chipperfield Road Development - St Pauls Cray 105Cr          105 0
Total Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio rephasing 2,876Cr       2,876 0

3.3 Bromley High St Improvements (£415k increase in 2018/19) 

On 17th October 2018, the Executive approved the addition of £415k to the Bromley High Street 
Improvement Capital scheme funded from the Growth Fund for the two commercial units/shops, 
thereby increasing the overall scheme budget to £3.875m.

Page 37



 4

3.4 Housing Development Feasibility (£100k new scheme addition split over 2018/19 and 2019/20) 

On 28th November 2018, the Executive agreed that a new scheme would be added to the 
Capital programme for feasibility assessments of potential sites for housing development, 
funded from the Growth Fund. 

3.5 Housing Payment in Lieu Fund for Affordable Housing & Property Acquisitions – (allocation of 
£1,006k in 2018/19) 

On 28th November 2018, the Executive approved the allocation of £1,006k from the unallocated 
S106 Payment in Lieu Fund.  £800k has been allocated to the Affordable Housing capital 
scheme for affordable housing delivery and £206k to the PIL Property Acquisitions scheme.

3.6   Post-Completion Reports 

Under approved Capital Programme procedures, capital schemes are subject to a post-
completion review within one year of completion. After major slippage of expenditure in prior 
years, Members confirmed the importance of these as part of the overall capital monitoring 
framework. These reviews should compare actual expenditure against budget and evaluate the 
achievement of the scheme’s non-financial objectives. There are no post-completion reports 
currently due for the Renewal, Recreation & Housing Portfolio.

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Capital Programme monitoring and review is part of the planning and review process for all 
services. The capital review process requires Chief Officers to ensure that bids for capital 
investment provide value for money and match Council plans and priorities.

5.     FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 These were reported in full to the Executive on 28th November 2018. Changes agreed by the 
Executive for the Renewal, Recreation & Housing Portfolio Capital Programme are set out in the 
table in paragraph 3.1.

Non-Applicable Sections: Legal, Personnel and Procurement Implications, Impact on 
Vulnerable Adults and Children

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

Capital Programme Monitoring Qtr  1 2018/19 (Executive 
11/07/18)
Capital Programme Monitoring Qtr  2 2018/19 (Executive 
28/11/18)
Bromley Town Centre – Mirrored canopies & shops 
(Executive 17/10/18)
Housing Development Feasibility scheme (Executive 
28/11/18)
Housing S106 Payment in Lieu Contributions (Executive 
28/11/18)

Page 38



APPENDIX A

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO - APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 28 NOVEMBER 2018

Code Capital Scheme/Project
Total
Approved
Estimate

Actual to
31.3.18

Estimate
2018/19

Estimate
2019/20

Estimate
2020/21

Estimate
2021/22

Responsible
Officer

Remarks

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

LIBRARIES & MUSEUMS
941538 Relocation of Exhibitions - Bromley Musuem 395 374 21 0 0 0 Colin Brand Approved by Executive 10/06/15
941542 Biggin Hill Memorial Museum 3,202 957 1,406 620 219 0 Colin Brand Approved by Executive 02/12/15. £106k funding from

Treasury Grant, Executive 15/06/16 £157.4k Treasury Grant,
£3.2k BHMM Trust

.
TOTAL LIBRARIES & MUSEUMS 3,597 1,331 1,427 620 219 0

LEISURE TRUST CLIENT - RECREATION
941887 Bromley MyTime Investment Fund 3,768 2,143 1,625 0 0 0 Colin Brand Revenue contribution to capital works
941897 Norman Park Athletics Track 300 0 0 300 0 0 Approved by Executive 28 March 2018.  S106 funding

provided by Kent County Cricket Club.
941896 West Wickham Leisure Centre 993 0 93 900 0 0 Approved by Executive 28 March 2018.  Funded from Central

Contingency.

TOTAL LEISURE TRUST CLIENT -
RECREATION

5,061 2,143 1,718 1,200 0 0

HOUSING
950819 Gateway Review of Housing I.T System 659 406 193 60 0 0 Sara Bowrey Approved by Executive 11/02/15
950821 Payment in Lieu Fund - Properties Acqusitions 1,326 1,022 219 85 0 0 Sara Bowrey Funded from PIL (S106) receipts

950822 Payment in Lieu Fund - Site K 672 605 67 0 0 0 Sara Bowrey Funded from PIL (S106) receipts
9xxxxx1 Housing Feasibility Studies 100 0 50 50 0 0 Sara Bowrey Growth Fund
950830 Affordable Housing  800 0 800 0 0 0 Funded from PIL (S106) receipts
950792 Payment in Lieu Fund - unallocated 1,885 0 1,885 0 0 0 Funded from PIL (S106) receipts
914110 London private sector renewal schemes 3,243 3,191 52 0 0 0 Steve Habgood 100% external funding
950501 Empty Homes Programme 620 443 27 150 0 0 Steve Habgood 100% external funding
916XXX Renovation Grants - Disabled Facilities 13,353 9,837 1,521 1,995 0 0 Steve Habgood Govt grant £1,681k in 2016/17; Gov't grant £1,838k in

2017/18 (additional £178k recvd); Govt grant £1,995k in
2018/19

941529 Star Lane Traveller Site 250 58 192 0 0 0 Sara Bowrey Urgent water and drainage works (statutory duty)
TOTAL HOUSING 22,908 15,562 5,006 2,340 0 0

P
age 39



APPENDIX A

OTHER
917000 Feasibility Studies 40 0 10 10 10 10 Colin Brand

941530 Bromley North Village Public Realm
Improvements

6,652 6,579 73 0 0 0 Kevin Munnelly Renewal and improvement of Bromley North; £3,298k TfL;
£1,829k GLA Outer London Fund; £25k private sector;
£1,500k Capital receipts.

941540 Penge Town Centre 746 135 111 500 0 0 Kevin Munnelly Approved Executive 24/03/15 - funded by New Homes bonus

941541 Orpington Town Centre - Walnuts Centre &
New Market infrastructure

794 537 257 0 0 0 Kevin Munnelly Approved Executive 24/03/15 - funded by £400k New Homes
bonus and  £125k High Street Fund, Exec 30/11/16 £106k
from S106 fund

941544 Bromley High Street Improvements 3,875 442 1,441 1,992 0 0 Kevin Munnelly Approved Executive 22/03/17 - funded from Growth Fund /
S106

950823 Site G 24,292 1,433 4,294 4,690 13,875 0 Kevin Munnelly Funded from PIL (S106) receipts, Growth Fund , Capital
Financing, Contribution. Approved Executive 07/11/17
Council 11/12/17

941894 Crystal Palace Park Improvements 2,583 1,287 1,296 0 0 0 Colin Brand £160k LBB £2m GLA funded (Executive 22/07/14) £116k
Historic England grant

941895 Crystal Palace Park - Alternative Management
Options

1,120 687 433 0 0 0 Colin Brand

941981 Chipperfield Road Development - St Paul's
Cray

105 0 0 105 0 0 Michael Watkins Approved by Executive 18/10/16

TOTAL OTHER 40,207 11,100 7,915 7,297 13,885 10

TOTAL RENEWAL, RECREATION &
HOUSING PORTFOLIO

71,773 30,136 16,066 11,457 14,104 10

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO - APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 28 NOVEMBER 2018

Code Capital Scheme/Project
Total
Approved
Estimate

Actual to
31.3.18

Estimate
2018/19

Estimate
2019/20

Estimate
2020/21

Estimate
2021/22

Responsible
Officer

Remarks

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

P
age 40



APPENDIX B
RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO - APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 - 2ND QUARTER MONITORING

2ND QUARTER 2018/19

Capital Scheme/Project
Actual to
31.03.18

Approved
Estimate

July 2018

Actuals
to

17.12.18

Revised
Estimate
Nov 2018 Responsible Officer Comments

£'000 £'000 £'000
LIBRARIES & MUSEUMS
Relocation of Exhibitions - Bromley Museum 374 21 19 21 Approved by Executive 10/06/15 - £395k allocation from capital receipts for the relocation of

exhibitions from Priory, Orpington to Central Library. Remaining budget committed for conservation
works and salary costs.

Biggin Hill Memorial Museum 957 1,406 1,408 1,406 Approved 02/12/15.  Executive approval on 20/06/17, for project to proceed with delivery.  The build
programme is on schedule and the payment schedule has now been agreed which has allowed the
budget to be accurately profiled. The Exhibition and Fit out programme was postponed to avoid the
tender being out over Christmas 2017 which pushed costs into 2018/19.  The scheme has now
completed with official opening in January 2019. Actuals are above 18/19 budget which will be
increased from 19/20 allocation at next monitoring update.

TOTAL LIBRARIES & MUSEUMS 1,331 1,427 1,427 1,427

LEISURE TRUST CLIENT - RECREATION
Bromley MyTime Investment Fund 2,143 1,625 930 1,625  A report was be submitted to R&R PDS in Nov'17 on Mytime Active Annual Review which included

Mytime's proposals for the Investment Fund for 2018/19. It is anticipated around £550k of the
remaining budget will not be spent this financial year as Mytime are still working up the scheme in
respect to the Pavilion Leisure Centre.

Norman Park Athletics Track 0 300 0 0 New Schemes - S106 payment looking to be used in 2019/20 to refurb track.
West Wickham Leisure Centre 0 993 0 93 New schemes - budget to be used for consultancy costs. A consultant has now been appointed.

TOTAL LEISURE TRUST CLIENT -
RECREATION

2,143 2,918 930 1,718

HOUSING
Gateway Review of Housing IT System 406 253 122 193 Exec 21/03/17 additional of £459k for purchase of Housing IT System. A new provider has been

appointed and implementation works are ongoing. Phase one is due to be completed by the end of
Jan 2019 with the final phase going live by March 2019.  Approx £60k for retention and final account to
be rephased to 2019/20.

Payment in Lieu Fund - Properties Acquisitions 1,022 98 0 219 £1m budget used to purchase 5 properties with remaining budget allocated for Capital refurb.  The
remaining funds are for any ad-hoc works that arise over the next few years.  £85k has been rephased
to 2019/20.  Budget increased by £206k; for 8 affordable rented wheelchair accesible homes by Mears
More Homes.

Payment in Lieu Fund - Site K 605 67 0 67 Further delays have been incurred - the build and final completion now anticipated by end of
December 2018.

Housing Feasibility Studies 0 0 0 50 New Scheme - approved by Executive in Nov 2018 and funded by Growth Fund.  Budget used to work
up feasibiliity and design of the future Housing scheme.

Affordable Housing  0 0 0 800 New Scheme - Funding to be used by Clarion Housing Association for the delivery of affordable
housing.

Payment in Lieu Fund - unallocated 0 2,891 0 1,885 S106 unallocated budget to be used for affordable homes

London Private Sector Renewal Schemes 3,191 52 22 52 All spend incurred this FY to be transferred to code 916389 at year end.  Any income received will be
added to the budget subject to Exec approval.

P
age 41



APPENDIX B

Empty Homes Programme 443 177 0 27 Funding criteria changed in 2017 to improve take up - all long term empty property owners being
targeted and made aware of assistance available.  Currently unlikely to spend all the budget - received
1 application this FY which has been approved.   £150k rephased into next financial year.

Renovation Grants - Disabled Facilities 9,837 1,521 822 1,521 Government grant 17/18 was £1,838k. A further top-up allocation of £178k was approved by Exec in
May 2018. Additional schemes to provide physical improvements to client’s home environments and to
assist with creating safer and healthier homes, reduce admissions to hospital and keep clients in their
own home for longer have been prepared and will be considered at integration meetings.   A  private
OT agency have been employed to  deal with a backlog of assessments  and have referred an
additional 30 cases for grant aid in the first quarter. As a result, a higher spend is anticipated in
2018/19.

Star Lane Traveller Site 58 192 0 192 The work is to replace much of the water supply to meet minimum regulatory standards. The scheme
was assigned to Amey to implement and project manage. The final specification for works has been
completed. Thames Water is now due to commence work with completion due in Feb 2019. Scheme
anticipated to come in on budget.

TOTAL HOUSING 15,562 5,251 966 5,006

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO - APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 - 2ND QUARTER MONITORING
2ND QUARTER 2018/19

Capital Scheme/Project
Actual to
31.03.18

Approved
Estimate

July 2018

Actuals
to

17.12.18

Revised
Estimate
Nov 2018 Responsible Officer Comments

P
age 42



APPENDIX B

Feasibility Studies 0 10 0 10

OTHER
Bromley North Village Public Realm
Improvements

6,579 73 1 73 Scheme has been completed - remaining budget was required for contingency however it is unlikely to
now be required and will be released at year end.

Penge Town Centre 135 611 0 111 The New Homes Bonus funded project consisting of  public realm improvements, Shopfront
improvements, Business Support, and Wayfinding. The scheme was to implement planned TfL bus
route and carriageway improvements. The scheme commenced implementation in November 2017
and completed September 2018.  Awaiting Final claim from FM Conway.  £500k rephased into
2019/20.

Orpington Town Centre - Walnuts Centre &
new market infrastructure

537 257 76 257 High Street Fund and New Homes Bonus funded project to enhance the pedestrian experience of the
prime shopping areas to increase footfall. This includes paving, lighting, treatment for trees, new street
furniture, and new market infrastructure. Berkeley Homes have made a further payment of £163k of
Section 106 contributions towards the Walnuts Public Realm Improvement project. Scheme
anticipated to complete by end of FY18/19.

Bromley High Street Improvements 442 1,802 803 1,441 Approved Executive 22/03/17. Funded from the Growth Fund, the programme of improvements to the
public realm of Bromley High Street is a continuation of the Bromley North Village scheme which aims
to enhance the pedestrian experience of the prime shopping areas to increase footfall in the town
centre. Budget holder is forecasting to only spend £1m this FY - £700k rephased to 2019/20.  Delay
has been largely due to supply chain issues. Additional £415k of funding for two modular commercial
units, approved by Exec in Oct 2018, has been allocated to the scheme.

Site G 1,433 4,294 26 4,294 Four properties within the red line site have been purchased to date with potentially further purchases
in the current financial year. A report was submitted to Council 11/12/17 formalising the Development
Agreement with the preferred development partner and the Compulsory Purchase Strategy for the site.
The total anticipated cost of £24,292k was noted.

Crystal Palace Park Improvements 1,287 1,296 796 1,296 Approved by Executive 22/07/14 £2,160k (£2m GLA, £160k LBB) GLA funding can only be used for
capital works - improving the park landscape. Grant of £116k from Historic England in addition for
conservation of the south terrace steps.  Café works started in January 2018 following the December
2017 Executive contract award decision.  Scheme is being implemented in phases and currently within
schedule.

Crystal Palace Park - Alternative Management
Options

687 433 92 433 Approved by Executive 24/03/15 - to explore and develop a sustainable regeneration plan, and
business plan, for the establishment of an alternative management option for the park. The
Regeneration Plan strategy was then approved by the Executive in July 2017 and an Outline Planning
Application was submitted in February 2018 with an HLF Parks for People bid was submitted in
August.  Scheme currently within schedule.

Chipperfield Road Development - St Paul's
Cray

0 105 0 0 Approved by Executive 18/10/16 -  £45k to be spent on clarification of development potential and
viability, £60k for marketing.  £105k rephased to 2019/20.

TOTAL OTHER 11,100 8,881 1,794 7,915

TOTAL RENEWAL, RECREATION &
HOUSING PORTFOLIO

30,136 18,477 5,117 16,066

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO - APPROVED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018/19 - 2ND QUARTER MONITORING
2ND QUARTER 2018/19

Capital Scheme/Project
Actual to
31.03.18

Approved
Estimate

July 2018

Actuals
to

17.12.18

Revised
Estimate
Nov 2018 Responsible Officer Comments

P
age 43



T
his page is left intentionally blank



 1

Report No.
DRR19/002

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date: Tuesday 22 January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: BECKENHAM AND PENGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (BID) UPDATE

Contact Officer: Lorraine McQuillan, Town Centres & BID Development Manager
    E-mail:  Lorraine.McQuillan@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Colin Brand, Director of Regeneration

Ward: Clock House; Copers Cope; Kelsey and Eden Park; Penge and Cator;

1. Reason for report

This report updates Members on the progress to date of the Business Improvement District 
(BIDs) in Beckenham and Penge Town Centres since the successful outcome of the BID ballot 
in March 2018.

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

Members of the Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee note the update 
on progress to date of the BIDs in Beckenham and Penge Town Centres.

Page 45

Agenda Item 11



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact:       
________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  

2. BBB Priority:  Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: N/A

2. Ongoing costs: N/A

3. Budget head/performance centre: Penge and Beckenham Town Centres

4. Total current budget for this head: £7,080

5. Source of funding: Existing revenue budget for 2018/19
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   0

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:        
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance: 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:  
________________________________________________________________________________

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications:  n/a
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  Businesses within 
Beckenham BID area circa 305.  Businesses within Penge BID area circa 237.

________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:       

Page 46



 3

3. COMMENTARY

3.1 Following the successful outcome of the ballot to establish a BID in Beckenham and Penge 
Town Centres, this report provides an update on the progress to date.  Background is also 
provided on BIDs in general and specifically those located in the borough.

Background

3.2 A Business Improvement District (BID) is now a tried and tested model to deliver sustainable 
investment in a defined area, through a levy of rateable business properties - based on typically 
1-2% of rateable values.  There are now over 300 formal BIDs in operation in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland – the majority of which are retail-led and focussed on town centres and over 
60 of which are into a second, or even third term.  BIDs can only be established or renewed 
after a majority of ratepayers vote in favour in an official postal ballot (operated under conditions 
similar to a political election). Once a BID is established or renewed the occupiers of any eligible 
property must by law pay the levy annually for the term of the BID (usually 5 years).  BIDs can 
deliver any projects or services that are agreed by the relevant businesses and are in addition 
to services the Public Sector already provides.  BIDs deliver the following business benefits:

      BID levy money is ring-fenced for use only in the BID area.
     Businesses decide and direct what they want for the area.
     Business cost reduction, for example reduced crime and joint procurement.
     Help in dealings with Local Councils, the Police and other public bodies. 
     Increased footfall and staff retention.
     Place promotion and place shaping
     Facilitated networking opportunities with neighbouring businesses.

3.3 Locally within the London Borough of Bromley the Orpington 1st BID was established in 2013 and 
the Your Bromley BID was established in 2016 in Bromley Town Centre.  Orpington 1st BID’s 
initial term of five years was successfully renewed in 2018 and is now in their second term 
delivering the Business Plan covering 2018-2023.  Over the five year term of the BID Orpington is 
expected to benefit from the investment of over £1m and in Bromley over £3m, this includes 
sources other than the BID levy.  The themes for both BIDs are based solidly on the expressed 
needs of the local businesses.  Further information can be found on the BID websites 
www.orpington1st.co.uk and www.bromleybid.com.

3.4 Following initial BID feasibility work in Beckenham and Penge Town Centres in June 2016, 
Central Management Solutions (CMS) were appointed to undertake the work involved in 
developing and establishing BIDs in these town centres.  The Beckenham and Penge BID 
Steering Groups were established in Spring 2017 to harness the enthusiasm and commitment of 
business people representing both large and small enterprises and encompassing retail, leisure 
and office sectors.

3.5 Once established these BID Steering Groups prepared a Business Plan outlining the projects the 
businesses would like the BID to deliver.  This Business Plan was voted on by businesses in 
February 2018 with both BIDs being announced as successful on 1st March 2018.  Over the five 
year term of the BIDs Beckenham is expected to benefit from the investment of over £940k and 
in Penge over £600k.  Further information can be found in the Business Plans for Beckenham 
and Penge BIDs included as Appendix 1A and Appendix 1B and on the BID websites 
www.beckenhamtogether.co.uk and www.pengese20.co.uk.

3.6 Since March 2018 a Board of Directors has been formed for each BID representing businesses 
from various sectors and geographic areas of the BID.  Each BID has set up a company limited 
by guarantee and agreed a year 1 delivery plan and detailed budget.  A BID Manager for 

Page 47

http://www.orpington1st.co.uk/
http://www.bromleybid.com/
http://www.beckenhamtogether.co.uk/
http://www.orpington1st.co.uk/


 4

Beckenham and Penge was appointed in September who is splitting their time evenly between 
the two BIDs.

3.7 Since September the BID Manager has been delivering a number of projects within the Business 
Plan and will be attendance at the Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee meeting 
on 22nd January 2019 to provide a verbal update on these projects.

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 The Beckenham and Penge BIDs fundamental role is to improve, enhance and promote their 
respective town centres assisting with the Council’s ambition to encourage Vibrant Thriving 
Town Centres.  

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Council are liable to pay the BID levy on the following properties within the Beckenham BID 
area:

Council Hereditament
BID Levy 
in Year 1

Estimated 
5 Year 

Total
£ £

Car Park - Village Way 1,810 9,050
Car Park - Fairfield Road 1,180 5,900
Car Park - St Georges Road 1,160 5,800
Car Park - Lewis House, Beckenham Road 166 830

4,316 21,580

5.2 The Council are liable to pay the BID levy on the following properties within the Penge BID area:

Council Hereditament

BID 
Levy in 
Year 1

Estimated 
5 Year 

Total
£ £

Toilets - High Street* 132 660
Car Park - Penge East Station 335 1,675
Offices - Croydon Road 2,300 11,500

2,767 13,835

*NOTE: The public toilets in Penge High Street have now been sold and therefore going forward the Council will no 
longer be liable for the levy, saving £132 per annum.  

5.3 Over the five year term of the BIDs, Beckenham is expected to benefit from the investment of 
over £940k and Penge over £600k.

5.4 The Council pays a sum of £12,690 per annum to Liberata, to implement and administer the 
Penge and Beckenham Bid Levy. This is fully recovered from the BIDs so there is no net cost to 
the Council.

Page 48



 5

6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) were introduced by Part 4 of the Local Government Act 
2003 (LGA 2003). 

6.2 Their establishment, enforcement and operation is regulated by the LGA 2003 and the Business 
Improvement Districts (England) Regulations 2004 (SI 2004/2443) as amended 

6.3 As explained in the report the BID process was completed and the Beckenham and Penge 
BIDS have formally became operational through their respective BID Companies. This report is 
providing members with an update and as such there would not appear to be any legal 
considerations at this juncture.  By way of background to conclude the BID process the Council 
entered into an Operating Agreement and Baseline Statement with each BID Company. For the 
Beckenham BID the Agreement was entered into with Beckenham Together Limited on the 2nd 
August 2018 with an expiry date of the 31st March 2023 and for the Penge BID the Agreement 
was entered into with Penge SE20 BID Limited on the 4th October 2018 with an expiry date of 
the 31st March 2023. 

6.4 The Operating Agreement covers the arrangements for the billing, collection and payment of the 
BID levy. The BID levy is collected by the Council on behalf of the BID Company. This places an 
obligation on the Council to take certain steps to secure payment of the levy and in the event of 
failure to follow the specified steps to pay the relevant sums to the BID Company itself.  The 
Baseline Statement forms a Schedule to the Operating Agreement and summarises those 
statutory and standard non-statutory services provided by the Council which may potentially 
overlap with services to be provided by the BID.  This provides reassurance to the BID company 
and levy payers that the levy income is funding additional services, not those currently being 
provided.  The baseline statement describes the services provided by the Council at this point in 
time and will not, save to the extent that any services amount to a statutory requirement, 
constitute a binding commitment on the Council to continue to provide these in the future

6.5. Collection of the BID levy is enforceable in the same way as non-domestic rates.  

Non-Applicable Sections: IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN, 
PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT 
IMPLICATIONS

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

BECKENHAM AND PENGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT 
(BID) PROPOSAL FOR 2018/2023 (Report No. DRR17/051)
Wednesday 1st November 2017
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT STRATEGY FOR 
TOWN CENTRES (Report no DRR16/050)
Tuesday 5th July 2016

Page 49



This page is left intentionally blank



w w w. p e n g e B I D . c o . u k

2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 3

A BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

(BID) for penge

PENGE 
SE20 BID

Page 51



A Business Improvement District (BID) is an 
exciting opportunity for Penge. No-one knows 
better what would bring in more customers 
and more money to our town centre than  
the businesses who trade here every day.  
A BID will empower local businesses to take  
a more proactive role in the management  
and development of our town centre. 

During its five-year term, a BID could deliver over 
£600,000 of new investment. This includes additional 
services, improvements to the on-street environment, 
events and high-profile marketing initiatives to attract 
more visitors and drive economic growth. 

Over the last year we have canvassed the views 
of local businesses to understand their ideas and 
aspirations for our town centre. The feedback will 
shape our Penge SE20 BID strategy, ensuring it 

Introduction from the chair
provides maximum benefit for visitors and traders, as 
well as for people who live and work in the town. Many 
thanks to all of you who took the time to participate in 
this vital research.

There are over 280 BIDs across the UK, including 
Bromley and Orpington. The results speak for 
themselves. The National BID Survey 2017 showed a 
total BID income across the UK of almost £100 million 
with an additional £8 million from other sources.  
Over 90% of BIDs have received a yes vote when it has 
come to renew the BID after its initial five year term.

The time is right for the businesses of Penge to unite 
and support this important investment in the future  
of our town.

Best wishes, 
Mark Painter, Chair, PENGE SE20 BID 
steering group

2

The time is right for the 
businesses of Penge to 
unite and support this 
important investment in 
the future of our town.

PENGE SE20 BID STEERING  
GROUP MEMBERS
Martin Kirvan 
Kirvan Bond Solicitors

Darren Dunwell 
Solitaire Jewelers

John Getgood 
Penge Forum 

Nalin Patel 
Fosdicks 

“ “
DRIVING TOWN CENTRE
TRANSFORMATION

3

PENGESE20BID

Alistair Sands 
Goldstores

Ian and Judy Barrington 
Designer Drapes 

Mark Painter 
Property World 

Lorraine McQuillan 
London Borough of Bromley 

P
age 52



The list of streets  
within the Penge SE20 BID 
area can be accessed at  
www.pengebid.co.uk

5

PENGESE20BID

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015. Ordinance Survey 100017661.

PENGE SE20 BID
BID ZONE We are confident that the Penge 

SE20 BID will have a very positive 
impact on our town centre.“ “

Tracy & Charlotte Dunwell 
Solitaire Jewellers

P
age 53



KEY PRIORITIES
The data from our ‘Have Your Say’ on the ground survey of local potential  
levy payers demonstrates what the main areas of focus should be:

The Penge SE20 BID is all about delivering 
productive, targeted improvements. Nobody is 
better placed to tell us what the priorities should 
be than you, the local business community. 

Over 45% of the businesses in the potential Penge SE20 
BID area have already engaged with the development 
of the Penge SE20 BID plan by answering our surveys or 
attending workshops.

To
ta

l
 b

u
s

in
e

s
s

 c
o

n
c

e
r

n
 s

c
o

r
e

* 781
747

691 686 676

THE REPUTATION OF 
PENGE TOWN CENTRE  

AND ITS MARKETING  
AS A DESTINATION

CRIME AND THE 
PERCEPTION OF CRIME

CLEANLINESS AND 
ENVIRONMENT

WASTE REMOVAL  
AND RECYCLING

COST AND AVAILABILITY 
OF PARKING AND PUBLIC 

TRANSPORT

*Concern score calculated by multiplying the number of responses with their individual issue concern rating on a 1-10 scale.

THE PLAN

TOGETHER
WORKING

These priorities have enabled us to develop the themes on the following pages.6 7

WHAT IS A BID?

BIDs are becoming a well-established model for  
the management of town and city centres with over 
280 BIDs across the UK giving businesses a real say  
in the way their space is managed. They are  
business-led and funded through a levy charge on 
businesses within a defined geographical area and 
they provide extra services designed to improve the 
local trading environment. BIDs are only established 
after a successful vote of those liable to pay the levy. 

 The BID ballot must be successful on two counts; 

 Firstly a majority of votes must be in favour;

   Secondly, the votes in favour must represent  
a majority of the total rateable value of the  
votes cast.

WHAT WILL THE PENGE SE20 BID  
DO FOR OUR TOWN CENTRE?

  Improving parking and awareness of  
public transport.

  Helping to ensure the on-street environment  
is clean and welcoming.

 Improving safety and security. 

  Providing marketing, PR, social media 
programming and organising events to 
engage more effectively with local residents 
and attract more visitors.

The aim of the Penge SE20 BID is to enhance the 
Penge town centre experience, making it an even 
more attractive place to visit, work and live.  
Supporting on-the-ground improvements, as 
well as giving a strong voice and more influence 
to local businesses, the Penge SE20 BID will work 
closely with the local authority, the police and other 
partners, focusing on the following key areas:

I fully support a BID. I already trade in a BID area 
and it has had a major positive impact in the area, 
for traders, customers, and for people to live and 
socialise. A BID for Penge would be great news;  
we will then have control on what matters.

“ “

PENGESE20BID

Terence Eagle, Managing Director, 
Manor Restaurants -  

McDonald’s, 130 High Street

P
age 54



A SAFE PLACE WITH  
FRIENDLY FACES

BETTER SURVEILLANCE

STREET PRESENCE

Locals and visitors should feel welcome, safe and 
secure in Penge. The Penge SE20 BID will provide a 
reassuring on-street presence, as well as supporting 
initiatives to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour. 

CCTV is a highly effective deterrent against retail  
crime, as well as providing vital investigative support 
for security and law enforcement professionals. The 
Penge SE20 BID will provide much-needed investment 
to fill the gaps in local CCTV coverage around the town 
centre, as well as facilitating better storage and sharing 
of recorded material.

The Penge SE20 BID will also look to expand the 
ShopSafe Radio scheme and support the local 
neighbourhood policing team with other local retail 
crime reduction initiatives.

Street Rangers can provide people with advice and 
directions, as well as providing an extra uniformed 
presence. They would seek police accreditation to 
assist with local security and help ensure that on-
street issues are dealt with as quickly and effectively 
as possible, reporting instances of graffiti, vandalism, 
litter problems etc.

The Street Rangers could also be a vital link between 
the Penge SE20 BID management team and the 
business community, channelling queries or requests 
and reporting any concerns.

TO PENGE
WELCOME

PENGESE20BID

8 9

Propertyworld chose to open its second office in Penge three 
years ago, as we saw its potential. In that time we have been 
impressed by the energy and commitment of our fellow traders 
and we are excited by the prospect of the BID, putting more 
control and power into the hands of the businesses to shape 
our respective destinies and the future of the town centre.

“ “

Richard Crowley 
Director, Propertyworld 

P
age 55



Penge Traders Association fully backs Penge 
becoming a BID area, helping us stay ahead 
in these difficult and challenging times. The 
Penge SE20 BID will give us more influence 
about decisions that affect traders, shoppers 
and visitors in Penge town centre. BID status 
will allow us to help make the High Street  
a more vibrant and inviting place to be.

“ “

Penge Traders Association

STREET SMART
IMPROVING THE TOWN  
CENTRE ENVIRONMENT

TACKLING FLY-TIPPING

CUTTING REFUSE COSTS

MORE LITTER BINS

THE BIG PENGE CLEAN

PARKING PROVISION

If we want to improve the town centre experience, it’s 
important that we focus on appearance as well as policy  
and resources. The Penge SE20 BID will support projects 
which improve the cleanliness and tidiness of the  
on-street environment. 

Many town centre traders regularly find refuse illegally 
dumped on and around their premises. The Penge SE20 BID 
will aim to provide a reactive removal and disposal service 
exclusively for local businesses with no callout fees.

The Penge SE20 BID will work to set up a group recycling and 
waste disposal scheme for members. By joining together 
we can increase our purchasing power and ensure local 
businesses benefit from reduced costs.

Encouraging people to be more responsible with litter means 
giving them plenty of opportunity to dispose of it. The Penge 
SE20 BID will seek to provide extra litter bins in areas that 
frequently suffer from unsightly littering issues.

The Penge SE20 BID is all about inspiring and motivating 
the local community to take pride in our town centre. 
Street cleaning events will bring together local businesses, 
community groups and residents to take action and give  
the BID area a thorough tidy-up.

All town centre traders will be aware of the importance of 
good parking provision to attract customers. The Penge 
SE20 BID will work with Bromley Council and any other 
appropriate organisations to look at existing parking offers 
and recommend improvements to ensure we provide as 
much space as possible at reasonable rates. 

We will collaborate with the Council to formulate a prudent 
local parking strategy with fair, sensible restrictions.  
The Penge SE20 BID will also liaise with them and private car 
park owners to explore ways to increase awareness of the 
available parking and on-street restrictions.

PENGESE20BID

10 11

P
age 56



THE HEART OF
THE TOWN
CONNECTING WITH THE  
COMMUNITY AND BEYOND

DATES FOR THE DIARY

ONLINE PRESENCE

Penge has a great range of shops and eateries as well  
as excellent transport links. A key component of the Penge 
SE20 BID will be a proactive place marketing strategy to 
build stronger links with the local community and raise the 
profile of our town centre with a wider audience.

The Penge SE20 BID will be able to encourage and support 
events in Penge, such as the Easter Trail, Penge day, and the 
Halloween Trail, providing a platform for marketing and  
PR activity. The Penge SE20 BID will also look to provide 
Christmas lights in the town centre throughout the festive 
period. By re-establishing the town centre as a vibrant social 
space, we can rekindle community spirit and attract visitors 
from a wider catchment area.

The Penge SE20 BID will aim to enhance our town’s online 
presence with a dedicated website and an intensive social 
media engagement strategy. As well as building stronger 
affinity with the local community, we will launch tailored 
campaigns to widen our reach and target specific  
sectors/age groups.

12 13

PENGESE20BID

We have been working towards Penge becoming a BID  
for some time. At Designer Drapes we are excited at the  
prospect of having a greater say in how money will be spent to 
improve. As shopkeepers in the High Street for the past three decades 
we can see what improvements are needed. The Penge SE20 BID will 
give us more opportunity to help make these changes happen.

“ “

Judy Barrington 
Designer Drapes

P
age 57



BID
BUDGET

RULES
AND

BUDGET

GOVERNANCE - ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

THE BALLOT

1. The levy rate to be paid by each property or hereditament 
is to be calculated at 2% of its rateable value as at the 
‘chargeable day’ (notionally 1st April each year).

2. Only properties or hereditaments with a rateable value of 
£5,000 or more will be liable for the levy.

3. The number of properties or hereditaments liable for the 
levy is estimated at 236.

4. The levy rate will be increased by the fixed rate of 
inflation of 2% per annum.

5. The levy will be charged annually in full for each 
chargeable period to be April to March each year, first 
payable in June 2018, and then annually each year in 
April. No refunds will be available on the levy charged. 
The levy must be paid in one payment. A financial 
statement will also be sent out at the same time as the 
levy bill.

6. The owners of untenanted properties or hereditaments 
will be liable for payment of the levy.

1.  The BID proposer is the Penge SE20 BID Steering Group. Upon 
a successful ballot they would become the initial Board of 
Penge SE20 BID Ltd until the first AGM. Penge SE20 BID Ltd is a 
not for profit company limited by guarantee.

2.  The number of Directors (the Board) will not exceed 7. This may 
include some non-levy payers, although always in a minority. 
The Board will be subject to annual re-election with confirmation 
at the AGM. Nominations for the Board must be received by the 
Chair no less than 5 working days before the AGM.

3.  Any levy payer can become a Member of the Penge SE20  
BID company. Levy payers will be communicated with on a 
regular basis throughout the BID term. There will be emailed 
newsletters sent out to levy payers at least every six months. 
The BID’s street rangers will also be calling into levy payers’ 
hereditaments on patrols and by appointment to give levy 
payers regular opportunities to communicate with someone 
from the BID on a face to face basis.

4.  The Board shall appoint a Chair at the AGM or in the event  
of the Chair resigning or becoming disqualified to serve  
on the Board. The Chair will also act as Chair of the  
Penge SE20 BID Advisory Group.

5.  The Penge SE20 BID will establish an Advisory Group to 
advise on operational and service delivery issues, oversee 
performance measurement, and more generally act as  
the primary consultative and advisory body on Penge SE20 
BID services. It will meet quarterly, prior to Board meetings. 
Minutes from each Penge SE20 BID advisory group meeting 
will form part of the information provided to the Board ahead 
of their meetings. In turn, minutes of Board meetings will be 
circulated to the Penge SE20 BID advisory group.

6.  The Penge SE20 BID Advisory Group will to be made up 
of representatives of levy paying businesses and non-levy 
payers and will be elected annually, and a representation 
of Directors of the Penge SE20 BID Company. Additional 
members may be co-opted, including representatives from 
partner organisations. The nominated representatives of  
The London Borough of Bromley will not be subject to a  
re-election processes.

Each property or hereditament subject to the Penge SE20 BID 
will be entitled to one vote in respect of the Penge SE20 BID 
proposal in a 28 day postal ballot which will commence on 
2nd February 2018 and close at 5pm on 1st March 2018.

The ballot result will be announced on the 2nd March 2018.

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Total

Levy income £119,864 £122,296 £124,776 £127,305 £129,885 £624,126

Expenditure

On street parking review £2,000 £3,000 £900 £0 £0 £5,900

CCTV & ShopSafe Radio Upgrade £5,000 £8,000 £10,200 £10,404 £10,612 £44,216

Street Rangers £52,300 £53,110 £53,932 £54,766 £55,612 £269,721

Group waste & recycling purchasing scheme £8,000 £8,160 £8,323 £8,490 £8,659 £41,632

Extra litter bins £8,000 £3,000 £3,060 £3,121 £3,184 £20,365

Marketing and events £8,095 £9,827 £10,418 £11,822 £12,342 £52,504

Contingency £12,156 £12,400 £12,648 £12,901 £13,159 £63,263

Operating costs £24,313 £24,799 £25,295 £25,801 £26,317 £126,525

TOTAL £119,864 £122,296 £124,776 £127,305 £129,885 £624,126

7.  Provided that the Penge SE20 BID is meeting its overall 
objectives and subject to full consultation with the Penge 
SE20 BID advisory group, the Board shall have the ability to 
vary service delivery and expenditure allocation according to 
the changing demands of levy payers. However, any change 
to the Penge SE20 BID boundary or to the headline levy rate 
would require an alteration ballot.

8.  The Penge SE20 BID will file annual accounts compiled 
by independent accountants, audited as necessary, with 
Companies House. The accounts will be available to all levy 
payers. An annual report on activities, including finances, will 
be published. An Annual General Meeting will be held.

9.  An Operating Agreement, which includes the Council’s 
Baseline service commitments, has been agreed with 
London Borough of Bromley. A copy can be found at  
www.pengebid.co.uk

10.  Notification of the intention to hold a ballot was sent to the 
Secretary of State on 23rd October 2017.

11.  The Notice of Ballot will be on or before 17th January.

12.  During the development of the Penge SE20 BID, 
approximately 45% of hereditaments in the Penge SE20 
BID area were consulted directly either through face to face 
surveys or workshops. The voter for every hereditament has 
also been sent a consultation document, an invitation to two 
workshops, and a copy of this business plan.

13.  If successful at ballot, the five year term will commence  
on 1st April 2018 and continue until 31st March 2023.

14.  There will be a mid-term review of the Penge SE20 BID taking 
place no later than three years into the Penge SE20 BID 
term to ensure the Penge SE20 BID is meeting its strategic 
objectives and delivering the highest possible quality 
services as outlined in the business plan. Performance will 
also be monitored through the provision of a bimonthly 
report to the Board on operations and achievements.

7. A discount amounting to 20% of the levy rate will be 
applied for hereditaments in the Blenheim Shopping 
Centre as they already pay a service charge for security, 
environmental and other services.

8. Primary or Secondary state schools within the BID area 
will be exempt from paying the BID levy. 

9. If, during the term, the rateable value assigned to a 
property or hereditament falls below £5000 for whatever 
reason (either through physical change, change of use, or 
revaluation) the property or hereditament will be exempt 
from the next chargeable period.

10. If, during the term, a property or hereditament with a 
rateable value which had previously been below the 
£5000 threshold is assigned a new rateable value which 
is above £5000, the property will not be liable for the 
levy unless the increase results from a change of use or 
physical change, as previously described.

11. London Borough of Bromley Council will be responsible 
for collection of the Penge SE20 BID levy and will charge 
an annual fee not in excess of £35 per hereditament  
to do so.

LEVY RULES

* The contingency is 10% of the budget and is in case of unanticipated costs and it factors in an assumed levy collection rate of 95%.

*  Additional income, investment and benefits in kind will also be sought throughout the Penge SE20 BID term, however as additional 
income is not confirmed it is not listed in the above budget.

For further information please  
contact hello@pengebid.co.uk

PENGESE20BID

14 15

P
age 58



A BID can transform Penge town centre 
over the next five years, improving the 
business environment and building a 
more robust, resilient local economy.

Help make our town an even more 
attractive place to visit, work and live.

An opportunity to  
revitalise our town

VOTE YES FOR PENGE 

WWW.PENGEBID.CO.UK

PENGE 
SE20 BID
B U S I N ES S  I M P R OV E M E N T  D I ST R I C T

Page 59



This page is left intentionally blank



W W W . B E C K E N H A M B I D . C O . U K

A  B U S I N E S S  I M P R O V E M E N T  

D I S T R I C T  ( B I D )  

F O R  B E C K E N H A M

together

2 0 1 8 - 2 0 2 3

Page 61



A BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID) IS A FANTASTIC 
OPPORTUNITY FOR BECKENHAM. IT PROVIDES VITAL CONTROL AND 
RESOURCES WHERE THEY’RE NEEDED, IMPROVING THE EXPERIENCE 
AND SHAPING ITS FUTURE DEVELOPMENT.

A BID is designed to attract more people to Beckenham and to encourage them to 
spend more money, boosting our local economy. It will also provide a better experience 
for those working in the area, allowing businesses a better chance at retaining staff.  
It could deliver £940,000 of new investment into Beckenham over the next five years.

We’ve spent the past year liaising with colleagues in local businesses to obtain their 
views on how our area could be improved and developed. Many thanks to all of you 
who took the time to give us your thoughts and to consider what a BID could deliver  
in Beckenham.

BIDs are already operating successfully in over 280 towns and cities across the UK, 
including Bromley and Orpington. Beckenham is a beautiful town and we have a town 
centre with enormous potential. Beckenham Together will be focused on bringing the 
different parts of our town centre together to improve the experience, not only  
for visitors but also for the people who live and work here.

Now’s the time for the business community of Beckenham to come together  
and support this important investment in our town.

Best wishes,

JACKIE GROUNDSELL
I N T E R I M  C H A I R ,  B E C K E N H A M  T O G E T H E R  S T E E R I N G  G R O U P

BRINGING  
BECKENHAM  
TOGETHER

Jackie Groundsell

02  03

1 MARSHA BERG  
Purple Flag Working Group/
Copers Cope Area Residents’ 
Association

2 DENISE MEADE-HILL  
Transitions Career Management  
and Training

3 MOHAMED SAYEDI  
AAA Minicabs 

4 ALISON DAVIS  
So Last Century

5 ROSS MARSHALL  
The Spa at Beckenham

6 JACKIE GROUNDSELL  
Beckenham Business Association

7 ROB POVINELLI  
Link Asset Services

8 LORRAINE MCQUILLAN  
London Borough Bromley

9 KELLY BRADFORD  
Beckenham Bookshop 

10 ZARA GREEN  
Link Asset Services

11 CHARLOTTE STANTON  
Gallery Seventeen 

 MEMBERS NOT IN SHOT

 KARL STEVENS 
Sainsburys

 MANDA WARNER 
Creases/Ollie & Dollie

 SOPHIE AH-YAVE 
Waitrose

 LUCY BECKWITH 
Burgers and Bubbles

 CIGDEM HASSAN 
Barclays Bank

1

2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9
10

11

BID STEERING GROUP MEMBERS

P
age 62



04  05

THE LIST OF STREETS WITHIN THE BECKENHAM TOGETHER  

AREA ARE AS FOLLOWS BELOW:

HIGH STREET

BEVINGTON ROAD

MANOR ROAD

KELSEY PARK ROAD

BURNHILL ROAD

LEA ROAD

FAIRFIELD ROAD

KELSEY SQUARE

KELSEY LANE

COOPERS MEWS

BURRELL ROW

VILLAGE WAY

CROYDON ROAD

BECKENHAM ROAD

RECTORY ROAD

CHURCH AVENUE

BROMLEY ROAD

SOUTHEND ROAD

THE CRESCENT

ST GEORGES ROAD

ALBEMARLE ROAD

THE MEWS

WICKHAM ROAD

CHANCERY LANE

LIMES ROAD

FAVERSHAM ROAD

BECKENHAM TOGETHER  
BID ZONE 

Crown copyright and database rights 2017. Ordinance Survey 100017661.

P
age 63



It’s vital that Beckenham Together delivers projects that meet the needs of the business community.  
That’s why we asked for everyone’s views to help shape the content of Beckenham Together business plan.

Over half of the businesses in the potential BID area have already engaged with the development  
of Beckenham Together by answering our surveys and/or attending workshops.

PARKING  
AND PUBLIC 
TRANSPORT

CRIME AND  
THE PERCEPTION  

OF CRIME

CLEANLINESS  
AND THE 

ENVIRONMENT 

WASTE  
REMOVAL AND 

RECYCLING

THE REPUTATION OF 
BECKENHAM TOWN 

CENTRE AND ITS 
MARKETING AS  
A DESTINATION

1027

778
715 701 702

TO
TA

L 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

C
O

N
C

ER
N

 S
C

O
RE

22%  
PARKING  

AVAILABILITY  
LIVE BOARDS

19%  
REDUCED STAFF 
PARKING COST  

SCHEME

32%  
STREET PARKING  

RESTRICTION 
REVIEW

20%  
LOADING 

BAY REVIEW

7%  
PARKING 

TRANSPORT 
PROMOTION 
CAMPAIGN

15%  
PR

17%  
PRINT  

ADVERTISING 
AND SIGNAGE

23%  
SOCIAL MEDIA

21%  
WEBSITE

24%  
AN IMPROVED 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 
THROUGHOUT 

THE YEAR

FACE-TO-FACE FEEDBACK

Our workshops gave participants opportunities to discuss in more detail Beckenham Together 
aims and objectives. They also helped us define a clear vision for Beckenham Together and an 
emblematic strapline: ‘Bringing Beckenham Together’.

DRIVEN BY  
THE BUSINESS 
COMMUNITY 

TOP PRIORITIES
OUR ‘HAVE YOUR SAY’ 
SURVEY DATA CLEARLY 
SHOWS THE KEY AREAS 
OF FOCUS:

WITHIN THESE AREAS, THE MAIN PRIORITIES ARE:

PARKING MARKETING

06  07

THE PLAN 
WHAT WILL BECKENHAM 
TOGETHER DO FOR OUR AREA?
We want to make sure Beckenham is an inspiring, 
attractive and safe place to visit, work and live. 
Empowering local businesses to drive transformation, 
Beckenham Together will work closely with the local 
authority, police and other partners to enhance the town 
centre experience, focusing on the following key areas:

•  Improving the on-street environment, parking  
and public transport provision.

•  Creating a series of exciting events and promotions to 
raise the town’s profile and attract more visitors.

•  Ensuring the views and ideas of local businesses 
are taken into account in the planning of relevant 
improvement schemes and infrastructure development.

•  Taking full advantage of online marketing and PR 
opportunities.

•  Helping Beckenham businesses maximise footfall  
through the year. 

• Bringing the business community together. 

• Encouraging businesses and staff to work  
 collaboratively. 

• Helping to drive down costs for Beckenham businesses. 

HAVE YOUR SAY SURVEY RESULTS

WHAT IS A BID?
BIDs are becoming a well-established model for the 
management of town and city centres with over 280 
BIDs across the UK giving businesses a real say in the 
way their space is managed. They are business-led and 
funded through a levy charge on businesses within a 
defined geographical area and they provide extra services 
designed to improve the local trading environment. BIDs 
are only established after a successful vote of those liable 
to pay the levy. The Beckenham Together ballot must be 
successful on two counts;

• Firstly a majority of votes must be in favour;

• Secondly, the votes in favour must represent a  
 majority of the total rateable value of the votes cast.

P
age 64



BUILDING ON  
OUR STRENGTHS

With great shopping, lively nightlife and excellent 
transport links, Beckenham is an attractive town with 
traditional values and a strong community spirit. It’s also  
a thriving suburban hub. 

Playing to Beckenham’s existing strengths, Beckenham 
Together’s place marketing strategy will focus on creating 
an exciting new proposition for the area with targeted 
online and offline campaigns to engage with specific 
sectors and audiences.

CONNECTING WITH  
THE ONLINE AUDIENCE

We’ll significantly enhance our online presence, creating 
a dynamic, user-friendly website that inspires visitors 
and delivers a superb experience. We’ll also proactively 
develop our social media engagement across all  
channels, reaching a wider geographic area and  
audience demographic.

A REWARDING EXPERIENCE 
FOR STAFF, RESIDENTS  
AND VISITORS 

By joining together we can cost effectively coordinate 
a major free-to-join online loyalty scheme. It will offer 
Beckenham retail and leisure businesses the kind of tactical 
marketing opportunities normally only available to major 
high street brands, raising awareness and driving footfall 
during quieter periods. Subscribers will have priority access 
to tactical discounts, rewards and promotional incentives 
from a range of participants with easy redemption via 
downloadable vouchers.

A YEAR-ROUND SERIES  
OF EVENTS

Creating a buzz around the town engages locals and 
attracts new visitors, Beckenham Together will facilitate  
a diverse series of events. The aim is to make Beckenham 
an exciting place for a shopping and leisure experience,  
as well as a vibrant community social space.

Beckenham Together will also promote a programme 
of imaginatively themed, smaller-scale events aimed at 
families. Designed to be staged with a limited budget, 
these will offer Beckenham town centre businesses cost 
effective promotional opportunities throughout the year.

The events and promotions will coincide with major 
public holidays and well established local events, enabling 
local businesses to capitalise on exceptional trading 
opportunities, or timed to significantly increase footfall 
during quieter periods of the year.

CHRISTMAS ACROSS 
BECKENHAM 

Beckenham Together will ensure that Christmas is 
inclusive across the whole BID area, committing to 
maintain and extend the Christmas lights to ensure  
they cover the whole BID area. 

MARKETING  
BECKENHAM

EXPERIENCE  
BECKENHAM

08  09

Playing to Beckenham’s existing strengths,  
the BID’s place marketing strategy will focus  
on creating a new proposition for Beckenham.

P
age 65



SUPPORTING BECKENHAM 
BUSINESSES WITH A 
REASSURING ON-STREET 
PRESENCE

Street Ambassadors will add to the friendly face of 
Beckenham town centre. They’ll provide advice and 
directions, as well as information about special events 
that are taking place in the town. Street Ambassadors 
also provide a vital link between Beckenham Together’s 
management team and the business community. They’ll 
be happy to report any requests or concerns you may 
have, so that we can respond as quickly as possible.

The Street Ambassadors will also help ensure our  
town looks its best at all times. They’ll report graffiti, 
vandalism, litter problems and other on-street issues.  
We can then make sure these are dealt with promptly  
by the proper authorities.

ENSURING BECKENHAM 
RETAINS ITS PURPLE  
FLAG STATUS

Beckenham Together will work with the Purple Flag 
steering group to ensure that Beckenham continues to  
be recognised with this well established mark of a safer 
night out. 

10  11

JOINT PURCHASING SCHEME 

Beckenham Together will provide and facilitate a joint 
purchasing scheme with the primary aim of reducing cost 
for businesses. By purchasing services such as recycling 
and trade waste as a collective Beckenham Together will 
be able to deliver significant savings for smaller businesses. 

 
BOOSTING A SENSE  
OF COMMUNITY

Beckenham Together will help give Beckenham businesses 
a voice. Being part of Beckenham Together isn’t just about 
growing your business. It’s also an opportunity to have 
your voice heard on matters that can have a huge impact 
on the experience and environment of the town centre to  
parking provision.

Beckenham Together will ensure members’ views, 
suggestions and observations on town centre issues are 
listened to and taken into account before major policy 
making decisions are made.

IMPROVING BECKENHAM 
ACCESS

In liaison with the Council and other appropriate 
organisations, Beckenham Together will commission 
research focusing on town centre transport and parking 
issues, measuring the impact on local businesses. A joint 
plan of action will be implemented to ensure parking 
restrictions are appropriate and that visitors and staff alike 
are aware of the best and most cost effective ways of 
accessing the town centre.

STRONGER  
TOGETHER

...an opportunity to 
have your voice heard 
on matters that can 
have a huge impact 
on the experience and 
environment of the  
town centre...

A WARMER  
WELCOME

P
age 66



I run a Beckenham-based events management company best 
known for the So Last Century Vintage & Retro Fair, which 
operates in Beckenham Together area. I’m a local resident, 
and excited about Beckenham Together’s potential to build 
on the town’s existing community spirit through improving the 
customer business interface, and by enhancing opportunities  
for exciting town-centre based events and experiences.

ALISON DAVIS

“
The Business Improvement District 
will bring the local people and the 
businesses within the area to come 
together and work cohesively for the 
better of both people and businesses.

MOHAMED  
AAA MINICABS

TESTIMONIALS 

“
”

12  13

”

“

CHERYL TACKIE,  
GENERAL MANAGER, 
VENUE 28
Establishing a BID in Beckenham  
will have an extremely positive impact 
on the area, strengthening its identity 
and raising awareness about what 
the town has to offer for both  
during the day and evening. ”

P
age 67



7. Provided that Beckenham Together is meeting its 
overall objectives and subject to full consultation with  
Beckenham Together advisory group, the Board 
shall have the ability to vary service delivery and 
expenditure allocation according to the changing 
demands of levy payers. However, any change to 
Beckenham Together boundary or to the headline  
levy rate would require an alteration ballot.

8. Beckenham Together will file annual accounts 
compiled by independent accountants, audited as 
necessary, with Companies House. The accounts will 
be available to all levy payers. An annual report on 
activities, including finances, will be published. The 
accounts will be formally presented to Beckenham 
Together Board at the AGM.

9. An Operating Agreement, which includes the 
Council’s Baseline service commitments, has been 
agreed with London Borough of Bromley. A copy  
can be found at www.beckenhambid.co.uk

10. Notification of the intention to hold a ballot was sent 
to the Secretary of State on 23rd October 2017.

11. The Notice of Ballot will be on or before 17th January.

12. During the development of Beckenham Together, 
approximately 50% of hereditaments in the BID 
area were consulted directly either through face 
to face surveys or workshops. The voter for every 
hereditament has also been sent a consultation 
document, an invitation to two workshops, and  
a copy of this business plan.

13. If successful at ballot, the five year term will  
commence on 1st April 2018 and continue until  
31st March 2023.

14. There will be a mid-term review of Beckenham 
Together taking place no later than three years into the 
BID term to ensure Beckenham Together is meeting 
its strategic objectives and delivering the highest 
possible quality services as outlined in the business 
plan. Performance will also be monitored through 
the provision of a bimonthly report to the Board on 
operations and achievements.

1.  The levy rate to be paid by each property or 
hereditament is to be calculated at 2% of its rateable 
value as at the ‘chargeable day ’(notionally 1st April 
each year).

2. Only properties or hereditaments with a rateable value 
of £5,000 or more will be liable for the levy.

3. The number of properties or hereditaments liable for 
the levy is estimated at 312.

4. The levy rate will be increased by the fixed rate of 
inflation of 2% per annum.

5. The levy will be charged annually in full for each 
chargeable period to be April to March each year,  
first payable in June 2018, and then annually each 
year in April. No refunds will be available on the levy 
charged. The levy must be paid in one payment.

6. The owners of untenanted properties or 
hereditaments will be liable for payment of the levy.

1. The Beckenham Together proposer is the Beckenham 
Together Steering Group. Upon a successful ballot 
they would become the initial Board of Beckenham 
Together Ltd until the first AGM. Beckenham 
Together Ltd is a company not for profit company 
limited by guarantee.

2. The number of Directors (the Board) will not exceed 
7. The Board will be subject to annual re-election 
by levy payers with confirmation at the AGM. 
Nominations for the Board must be received by the 
Chair no less than 5 working days before the AGM.

3. In addition to the Board Directors a number of 
non-voting Advisors will be appointed to the Board. 
Additional advisory members may be co-opted, 
including representatives from partner organisations, 
including the London Borough of Bromley. The 
nominated representatives of The London Borough 
of Bromley Advisory Members will not be subject 
to re-election processes.  Advisory Board Members 
will advise on operational and service delivery issues, 
oversee performance measurement, and more 
generally act as the primary consultative and advisory 
body on BID services.

4. Any levy payer can become a Member of the  
BID company. Levy payers will be communicated with 
on a regular basis throughout the BID term. There 
will be emailed newsletters sent out to levy payers 
at least every six months. The BID’s street rangers 
will also be calling into levy payers’ hereditaments on 
patrols and by appointment to give levy payers regular 
opportunities to communicate with someone from the 
BID on a face to face basis.

5. The Board shall appoint a Chair at the AGM or in the 
event of the Chair resigning or becoming disqualified 
to serve on the Board. The Chair will also act as Chair 
of Beckenham Together Advisory Group.

6. The Beckenham Together Board will meet along with 
the advisory members at least quarterly. Minutes from 
the Board meeting will be circulated to all Directors 
and Advisory members and made available to all BID 
levy payers. Beckenham Together Board Directors 
may meet from time to time without the presence of 
Advisory Members but their meeting minutes will also 
be made available advisory members.

THE LEVY RULES 

THE BALLOT

1. Each property or hereditament subject to the Beckenham 
Together levy will be entitled to one vote.

2. There will be a 28 day postal ballot period which will 
commence on 2nd February 2018 and close at 5pm  
on 1st March 2018.

3. The ballot result will be announced on the 2nd March 2018.

7. The Beckenham Together area does not contain any 
form of shopping centre.

8. If, during the term, the rateable value assigned to 
a property or hereditament falls below £5000 for 
whatever reason (either through physical change, 
change of use, or revaluation) the property or 
hereditament will be exempt from the next  
chargeable period.

9. If, during the term, a property or hereditament with 
a rateable value which had previously been below 
the £5000 threshold is assigned a new rateable value 
which is above £5000, the property will not be liable 
for the levy unless the increase results from a change 
of use or physical change, as previously described.

10. London Borough of Bromley Council will be 
responsible for collection of The Beckenham Together 
levy and will charge an annual fee not in excess of £35 
per hereditament to do so.

GOVERNANCE - ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4 YEAR 5 TOTAL

Income £186,538 £190,268 £194,074 £197,955 £201,914 £970,749

EXPENDITURE

Marketing Beckenham £40,000 £40,600 £41,209 £41,827 £42,454 £206,090

Experience Beckenham £25,000 £25,375 £25,755 £26,141 £26,534 £128,805

A warmer welcome £54,000 £54,810 £55,632 £56,466 £57,313 £278,221

Stronger together £20,000 £20,300 £20,604 £20,913 £21,227 £103,044

Contingency £10,145 £11,229 £12,351 £13,507 £14,698 £61,930

Operating costs £37,393 £37,954 £38,523 £39,101 £39,688 £192,659

Total: £186,538 £190,268 £194,074 £197,955 £201,914 £970,749

BID BUDGET

14  15

BID RULES AND BUDGET 

For further information contact hello@beckenhambid.co.uk

* The contingency is equal to or greater than 5% of the budget. It factors in an  
assumed levy collection rate of 97.5% and an expenditure contingency of at least 2.5%.

* Additional income, investment and benefits in kind will also be sought throughout Beckenham 
Together term, however as additional income is not confirmed it is not listed in the above budget.

P
age 68



Beckenham Together is not just an 
opportunity to transform and revitalise  

our town over the next five years.  
It will also lay the groundwork for  

future growth and prosperity.

Help make our town an even better  
place to live, work, shop and relax.

VOTE YES  
FOR BECKENHAM 

TOGETHER.

W W W . B E C K E N H A M B I D . C O . U K

together

Page 69



This page is left intentionally blank



 1

Report No.
DRR19/006

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC 

Decision Maker: EXECUTIVE FOR PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY BY THE 
RENEWAL RECREATION AND HOUSING POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ON 22  
JANUARY 2019 

Date: 
Tues  22  January 2019
Wed 13 February 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Executive Key 

Title: OPPORTUNITY SITE G – APPROVAL FOR IN PRINCIPLE USE 
OF COMPULSORY PURCHASE POWERS 

Contact Officer: Kevin Munnelly, Head of Renewal
Tel: 020 8313 4582   E-mail:  kevin.munnelly@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Executive Director of Environment & Community Services

Ward: Bromley Town;

1.0 Reason for report    
1.1 The Executive approved on 8th February 2017 the selection of Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd 

(“Countryside”) as the preferred development partner for the first phase of development of 
Opportunity Site G following a competitive procurement process(‘the Scheme’). The Executive 
on 17th July 2017 approved the detailed terms of the development agreement and lease for the 
development and on the 11th December 2017 Full Council approved the allocation of £24.3m for 
the purpose of acquiring properties within the red line area of Phase 1 of Opportunity Site G. To 
date, the Council has been in negotiations with land owners to aquire properties that are 
required to deliver the Scheme. 

1.2 It is now recommended that the Executive agrees, in principle, to the use of the Council’s 
compulsory purchase powers to facilitate the delivery of the Scheme. This provides certainty 
and allows preliminary processes required for the making of a Compulsory Purchase Order 
(CPO) to be carried out at the same time as negotiations with landowners are ongoing, saving  
both time and supporting the negotiating process. Executive authority will still need to be sought 
in the future to make a compulsory purchase order to acquire any property interest that is 
required for the Scheme that cannot be secured via negotiated settlement.

____________________________________________________________________________
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)
2.1 The PDS Committee is requested to scrutinise the proposed decision by the Executive and the 

Executive is recommended to: 

2.2 Agree in principle to use compulsory purchase powers pursuant to section 226 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)to acquire the land and new rights within the area 
described in the report and shown on the plan attached to this report, the Council being of the 

Page 71

Agenda Item 12



 2

view that compulsory acquisition of the land may be necessary in order to secure the delivery of 
the Scheme;

2.3. Authorise Officers to begin preparatory work to use its compulsory purchase powers, including, 
subject to the 'in-principle' decision being made, serving requisitions on land owners and 
appointing land referencing agents to thoroughly investigate all land interests, the preparation of 
a Statement of Reasons and all other necessary documentation.

2.4. Note that, subject to officers using all reasonable endeavours to assemble the land by 
agreement / private treaty, a further detailed report and a Statement of Reasons will come 
forward to Members of the Executive in due course setting out the justification for the making of 
a compulsory purchase order.

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: An Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken which will include the 
assessment of the impact of the CPO on vulnerable adults and children and any necessary 
mitigation strategy considered. The result of any assessment would be presented to the 
Executive when seeking authorisation to make a CPO.

________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  

2. BBB Priority: Quality Environment Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres Regeneration: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal:  Overall cost of the scheme is estimated to be £24.3m

2. Ongoing costs: Non-Recurring Cost: 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Capital Programme

4. Total current budget for this head: £24.3m 

5. Source of funding: Growth Fund, S016 PIL, capital receipts, internal borrowing, and external 
borrowing where required

________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):   5

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:        
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement : 

2. Call-in: Applicable:  
________________________________________________________________________________

Page 72



 3

Procurement

1. The Greater London Authority’s London Development Panel (OJEU Notice 2012/S 69-113942) 
was used to select the preferred development partner. Solicitors, Bevan Brittan were appointed 
following a competive quotation exercise through the EM Lawshare Framework to act as legal 
advisors for the CPO.

________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): N/A 
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Yes 

Summary of Ward Councillor’s comments:  Ward Councillors have met with representatives of 
Countryside Properties and it has been agreed there will be regular meetings held throughout 
the process.

Page 73



 4

3. COMMENTARY

3.1 The Executive on 17th July 2017 approved the detailed terms of the development agreement 
and lease for the Scheme and on 11th December 2017, Full Council approved an allocation of 
£24.3m to the capital programme for the purpose of acquiring properties within the red line area 
of Phase 1 of Opportunity Site G, henceforth referred to as the “Order Land” in this report and 
attached as Appendix 1.  The Council’s development team which includes development 
advisors Montagu Evans, continue to liaise directly with property owners within the development 
site to exercise the Council’s Duty of Care to residents directly impacted by the proposed 
redevelopment. Progress continues to be made on site acquisitions and relocations with a total 
of six residential properties in Ethelbert Close purchased to date.

3.2 In accordance with the terms of the development agreement Countryside Properties submitted 
the planning application for the Scheme and which is currently under consideration by the 
Council’s Development Management team. It is envisaged that use of the Council's powers to 
acquire land by a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) may be required in order to assemble all 
of the land interests and rights required to develop the Scheme in a timely manner. Therefore 
Executive authority is sought for an ‘In Principle’ decision to begin preparatory and planning 
work to use its compulsory purchase powers for all the land interests not yet in the ownership or 
control of the Council needed to facilitate the Scheme.

3.3 Subject to approval, it should be noted that the seeking of authority to pass a resolution to make 
and serve the detailed CPO will be made in a separate future decision by the Executive only 
once the following conditions have been reached:

i. That Countryside has obtained planning permission for the development of Churchill 
Quarter.

ii. Comprehensive discussions have been carried out with all affected landowners with a 
view to acquiring the land or rights required by agreement.

iii. A Statement of Reasons setting out the justification for the CPO has been prepared and 
the Council is satisfied it meets all the statutory tests and complies with the Guidance 
(defined below).

Land which is the subject of the CPO

3.4 The land which would be potentially included in the CPO (“the Order Land”) is as follows:

- An area of approximately 1.26h hectares, comprised of:

 40 2-storey maisonettes on Ethelbert Close

 Three commercial units at Bromley High Street

 Bromley Town Church

 Churchill Way

Part of the Order Land is owned by the Council, particularly being the six units which have been 
acquired by negotiation. It is considered prudent to include the entire area of land required for 
the Scheme within the CPO, so that any private express or implied rights, covenants or other 

Page 74



 5

interests that may have been granted, entered into or acquired over the Order Land can be 
determined.

3.5 The other interests to be acquired include those of leaseholders, freeholders, and any private 
express or implied rights that may have been granted over the Order Land. These interests will 
be formally identified following completion of the land referencing process. Further ancillary 
parcels of land adjoining or neighbouring the Order Land might need to be included in the Order 
if discovered by due diligence to be required for the Scheme.

Development Programme

3.6 In terms of the lease conditions the Council cannot make a stopping up order or compulsory 
purchase order until Countryside has obtained planning permission. The following development 
programme has been prepared based on the date of Countryside’s submission of the planning 
application for the Scheme in May 2018 and illustrates the estimated length of each stage in the 
process. 
 Exchange Development Agreement Sep  17
 Public Planning Consultation on Countryside Scheme Nov 17
 Executive Approval of Scheme Mar 2018 
 Countryside’s Submission of the Planning Application May 2018
 Prepare Compulsory Purchase Order documentation Feb 2019
 Secure Planning Consent Feb 2019
 Make Compulsory Purchase Order Summer 2019*
 Compulsory Purchase Inquiry Winter 2019
 CPO Implemented Autumn 2020
 Commence Development Autumn 2021 
 Completion Longstop date Spring 2025

*An indicative timeline and breakdown of the Compulsory Purchase process is attached as 
Appendix 2.

Proposal and Options

3.7 The proposal is to recommend that the Council agrees, in principle, to use its compulsory 
purchase powers to facilitate the Scheme. This provides robustness to the case for the making 
of the CPO and allows preliminary processes required for the making of a CPO to be carried out 
at the same time as negotiations with landowners are ongoing both saving time and supporting 
the negotiating process.

3.8 Members should note that agreeing in principle to use compulsory purchase powers in relation 
to the red line area will not undermine due process of pursuing negotiation and fair acquisition 
terms for existing land owners. In fact, the approach of seeking a resolution in principle to use 
CPO powers whilst continuing to try to negotiate acquisitions by private treaty agreement is in 
line with guidance published by the Department for Communities and Local Government in 
October 2015 entitled “Compulsory Purchase and the Crichel Down Rules” (the Guidance), 
which provides best practice advice for assembling land for schemes of this nature. It is 
considered that a resolution in principle to use compulsory purchase powers would facilitate 
negotiations because landowners would know that the Council genuinely means to progress the 
Scheme and if terms to acquire all land interests and new rights by agreement could not be 
achieved in a reasonable timescale, compulsory purchase powers will be used. This would 
encourage landowners to negotiate in a meaningful way.

Page 75



 6

3.9 Any decision to proceed with the making of a CPO would be contingent on a compelling case 
having been assembled in support of the need to make a CPO for the Scheme and the specific 
land or rights to be acquired, and for all the financial, legal and planning conditions having been 
satisfied. A full report to the Executive would provide these details when recommending that the 
CPO is made and implemented.

Use of CPO Powers

3.10 The use of compulsory purchase powers requires a compelling case in the public interest to be 
made. Therefore, this report will explain the context and justification for recommending that the 
Executive agree to an 'in principle' to use such powers in this case.

3.11 In order to compulsorily acquire land the Council must have a relevant statutory power that 
authorises such acquisition. In addition the Council must use the most specific and appropriate 
power available to it. In the case of a CPO in connection with the Scheme the Council's 
planning powers under section 226 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (the Act) are 
the most appropriate, as the Scheme would make a major positive contribution to the economic, 
social and environmental well-being of the area. At the time of making the CPO it would need to 
be ensured that the proposal meets with the requirements of this statutory power.

3.12 Detailed advice to acquiring authorities on the use of compulsory purchase powers is set out in 
the Guidance. The Guidance provides helpful information on the matters which the Secretary of 
State will take into account when considering whether or not to confirm a CPO, so should be 
fully considered by Members now in relation to the 'in principle' use of its compulsory purchase 
powers and later with reference to the making and implementing of the CPO that may be 
considered in future. These matters as they relate to the Scheme are considered below.

3.13 The Guidance states that in considering whether or not to confirm a CPO, the Secretary of State 
will have regard to the extent to which the purpose for which the land is being acquired fits with 
the adopted Local Plan for the area or, where no such up to date Local Plan exists, with the 
draft Local Plan and National Planning Policy Framework. Following the adoption of the 
Council’s Local Plan in January 2019, the Scheme lies within Site 10 which is a key housing 
allocation in the Local Plan and will be crucial for the delivery of housing in the Borough during 
the Plan period.

3.14 The Guidance states that the Council must demonstrate a 'compelling case in the public 
interest', and that the public benefits that will arise from the purpose for which the land is to be 
acquired (i.e the Scheme) outweigh the impact on those affected. The Council must 
demonstrate both the need for the Scheme in principle and in general and the need to acquire 
each and every parcel of land included in the CPO. On the basis of the legal advice and the 
Guidance, officers are of the view that such a compelling case can be demonstrated from the 
desirability of implementing the scheme – in particular from the following substantial wider 
benefits resulting from it:

i. up to 410 high quality new homes with a range of tenure and sizes including 35% affordable 
housing units;

ii. transformation of part of the High Street to include improving the townscape and access to 
the Church House Gardens and Bromley Park;

iii. net gain of public open space of 341.5 sq m (from 73,805.7 sq m to 74,147.2 sq m);
iv. generate over 40 FTE new jobs in the new business floorspace which will meet the needs of 

small, new start-up and creative businesses within the town centre;
v. reprovide an increased quantum of community floorspace from that currently exists within 

the Order Scheme 1400 sq m as opposed to 750 sq m;

Page 76



 7

vi. generate during the construction phase of the development approximately 60 full time jobs; 
and the regeneration of part of Bromley town centre through optimising the use of an under-
utilised brownfield site and enhancing the local economy

3.15 Part of the justification for obtaining confirmation of a CPO would involve demonstrating that 
compulsory powers are necessary because the land required cannot be acquired by agreement. 
Compulsory purchase is seen as a last resort and the acquiring authority must be able to show 
that it has made genuine attempts to acquire the land by negotiation. The Council has made 
significant efforts to acquire all interest by voluntary agreement and this can be thoroughly 
evidenced. The Guidance expects that the Council will be required to continue those efforts and 
detailed evidence of those further efforts should be available prior to the making of a CPO.

3.16 The Council must also demonstrate that there are no other impediments to proceeding with the 
Scheme, for example the need for planning permission, other consents or physical constraints. 
The planning application in relation to Churchill Quarter is still pending determination, due in 
February 2019. The Order Land is the subject of allocations in the Bromley Town Centre Area 
Action Plan(2010) and the emerging Local Plan(2019), and accordingly it benefits from policy 
support for the Scheme’s proposed redevelopment.

3.17 The Council would have to demonstrate that it has, or at least will obtain, the resources 
necessary not only to pay compensation for the land but also to implement the Scheme: 
paragraph 14 of the Guidance. The reason for this requirement is to avoid a situation in which 
private land has been acquired compulsorily for a purpose which, in the event, cannot be 
achieved for lack of funds. On 11 December 2017 Council approved the allocation of £24.3m to 
the capital programme for the Council’s outlay in terms of purchasing the Compulsory Purchase 
Order Land. The full cost of acquisition will be funded from the premium Countryside will pay the 
Council for the site as part of the development agreement which sets out the assurances that 
Countryside have the financial capacity to implement the scheme. 

Guidance summary

3.18 The Guidance sets out key tests which need to be satisfied before a Compulsory Purchase 
Order can be confirmed. These tests include:

Guidance requirement Council’s initial response
A compelling case in the public 
interest to acquire the Land which 
may interfere with owners human 
rights

A comprehensive justification of why 
the Order is required

The purposes for which the CPO would be made justify 
interfering with the human rights of those with an interest in the 
land affected; particularly the Order Land is suitable for and will 
facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or 
improvement and will make a positive contribution to the 
promotion of the economic, social and environmental well-being 
of the locality.
The Council has taken reasonable steps to acquire all of the 
land and rights required for the Scheme by agreement. Further 
justification is found in this report above and will follow the “in 
principle” resolution.

There are no planning or other 
impediments to prevent the scheme 
from happening within a reasonable 
timescale

Planning permission has not been granted for the proposed 
Scheme, but the Scheme does benefit from strong policy 
support and there is no obvious reason why permission will not 
be granted. There are no other material planning or other 
impediments.

The financial viability of the scheme is 
such that it can be delivered within a 
reasonable timescale. This can 
include resources to acquire land as 

Full Council approved the allocation of  £24.3m to the capital 
programme for the Council’s outlay in terms of purchasing the 
Order Land. The full cost of acquisition will be funded from the 
premium Countryside will pay the Council for the site as part of 

Page 77



 8

well as develop the scheme. the development agreement which provides assurances that 
Countryside have the financial capacity to implement the 
scheme.

Consultations

3.19 The planning applications in relation to the redevelopment of Churchill Quarter have been 
subject to statutory consultation throughout the planning application process, with responses 
received from a number of individuals, groups and bodies including the Greater London 
Authority, Transport for London, Historic England, numerous resident groups and various 
stakeholders. In addition Countryside have undertaken a significant programme of community 
engagement in relation to their planning application.

3.20 A CPO made following this resolution in principle would be subject to statutory consultation 
procedures which will include adverts in newspapers and site notices. This will give additional 
opportunity for any persons affected by a CPO, to become aware of the CPO and have the 
opportunity to make objections.

CPO Land Referencing

3.21 The CPO will include all occupiers and all interests that are included within the red and blue line 
area identified on the map of the Order Land (Appendix 1) or have, or are believed to have, any 
interest over that land including adjoining owners. All owners and occupiers, including tenants, 
will be written to as part of the land referencing process that precedes the making of the CPO, 
and all relevant names and addresses will be included in the final CPO. In order to collate this 
information, it is intended that, subject to the recommendations being agreed, that land 
referencing commences at the earliest possible date. This land referencing will be undertaken 
by an external agent who speicalises in land referencing exercises.

Resource Implications

3.22 At this stage, the Council is being asked to only make an “in principle” decision to use its’ 
powers. A full detailed assessment of the financial implications and costs of making CPO will be 
prepared and presented to the Executive in a further report should a CPO actually be required.

3.23 The work required to prepare for the use of CPO powers, including all work needed to support 
the making of such an order will be managed and coordinated by Council officers. The Council 
would continue to employ the services of Montague Evans as development advisors and Bevan 
Brittan as legal advisors. The Council is looking to appoint a land referencing agent to carry out 
detailed examination of all the legal interests that affect the land within the Scheme.. Work that 
is required before making a CPO includes serving the ‘requisition’ notices on land owners to 
gather information about their land interests on the Council’s behalf, working on the case for 
CPO and preparing the Statement of Reasons to support the making of the Order and drafting 
the Order itself.

3.24 In basic summary, under a CPO, property or rights are acquired at open market value but 
disregarding any increase (or decrease) in value attributable to the Scheme for which the land is 
acquired. Affected parties may also be entitled to other compensation for loss payments and 
disturbance depending on circumstances. The Council will be responsible for paying all 
compensation to landowners, whether payable by purchases through voluntary negotiation or 
through the CPO process. 

3.25 There is a possibility that blight claims could be made by affected landowners that require the 
Council to acquire their land in advance of the compulsory purchase process taking effect, but 
such claims would not be valid prior to the making of any CPO.  This risk will be considered 

Page 78



 9

further in any further detailed report that comes forward to Members of the Executive seeking 
authority to make the CPO.

3.26 Looking beyond an ‘in principle’ agreement, a prerequisite to any resolution of Council to 
acquire land by CPO, will be considered further together with updated details of the financial 
risks and exposure to the Council, which will be presented to the Executive for approval should 
a full CPO resolution be required.

Equalities Impact Assessment

3.27 Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality duty. Section149 
states:-

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have dueregard to the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it

3.28 Officers have taken this into account in the assessment of the case for making a CPO and 
Members must be mindful of this duty when considering the recommendations in this report. As 
part of the CPO preparation work an Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the 
potential impact of the proposal and any necessary mitigation strategy. The result of any 
assessment would be presented to the Executive when seeking authorisation to make a CPO.

Human Rights and the Case for Compulsory Acquisition

3.29 The Human Rights Act 1998 places direct obligations on public bodies such as the Council to 
demonstrate that the use of compulsory purchase powers is in the public interest and that the 
use of such powers is proportionate to the ends being pursued.

3.30 When the Council decides to make a CPO, the Council will need to be sure that the purpose for 
which the land is required sufficiently justifies (or can be sufficiently justified in due course) 
interfering with the human rights of those with an interest in the land affected. It is 
acknowledged that the compulsory acquisition of the land in the red line area may amount to an 
interference with the human rights of those with an interest in the land. These include rights 
under Article 1 of the First Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) 
(which provides that every natural or legal person is entitled to peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions) and Article 8 of the ECHR (which provides that everyone has the right to respect 
for his private and family life, his home and his correspondence).

3.31 When preparing the case for making a CPO, officers will keep in mind and in due course advise 
Members about the need to balance the public interest and the individual’s rights and that any 
interference with these rights will be necessary and proportionate. “Proportionate” in this context 
means that the interference must be no more than is necessary to achieve the identified 
legitimate aim. As part of the investigations that will be undertaken ahead of making any CPO, 
there will be an investigation into the effect on landowners and leaseholders of the CPO, and 
this will be fully taken into account before a final decision is made as to whether or not to put 
forward a resolution for the making of a CPO.

3.32 Members are advised that on the basis of the information that is available to officers at present, 
that officers are of the view that there is likely to be  a compelling case in the public interest for 

Page 79



 10

compulsory acquisition of the various interests within the Order Land if they cannot be acquired 
by agreement. Therefore, the use of compulsory purchase powers in this case is likely to be 
proportionate. Without the use of these powers, the much-needed regeneration and 
redevelopment of the land may not be achievable. Appropriate compensation will be available to 
those entitled to claim it under the relevant statutory provisions. Members are advised that the 
land is both suitable for and will facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or 
improvement and will make a positive contribution to the promotion of the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of the area.

4. IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN 

4.1 As stated in 3.28 above, an Equalities Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the potential 
impact of the proposal as part of the CPO. This will include the assessment of the impact of the 
CPO on vulnerable adults and children and any necessary mitigation strategy considered. The 
result of any assessment would be presented to the Executive when seeking authorisation to 
make a CPO.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 It is important to recall the reasons for bringing forward the Area Action Plan for Bromley Town 
Centre. One of the main objectives is the provision of residential capacity through mixed use 
developments. As acknowledged in paragraph 5.7.4 of the AAP development of Opportunity 
Site G would be phased and the redline area comprises of Phase 1 of Opportunity Site G and 
Site 10 of the Local Plan.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 This report is requesting that Executive agree in principle, to use it’s compulsory purchase 
powers to facilitate the Site G development scheme. A full report would be brought back to the 
Executive to agree that the CPO is made and implemented.

6.2 The Executive on 7th November 2017 approved funding of £24.292m for the acquisition of 
properties required for the Scheme. This included £900k for the CPO Inquiry and professional 
/management fees. This is summarised in the table below:

Estimated costs £'000
Market value of property interests 18,833
Disturbance payments inc reinvestment cost 1,493
Claimants' surveyors & legal fees 366
Statutory loss payments 1,276
Acquiring Authority’s Stamp Duty Land Tax liability 484
Acquiring Authority’s Professional Fees 315
Other rights 475
Contingency 150
Total Property Cost Estimate 23,392
CPO Inquiry and professional/mgt fees 900
TOTAL APPROVED SCHEME COST 24,292

Financed by:
Contryside contribution 100
Growth Fund 2,900
S106 funding 360
Capital Financing 20,932
TOTAL FINANCING 24,292

Page 80



 11

6.3   To date £1.469m has been spent/committed on the acquisition of properties in Ethelbert Close 
leaving a balance of £22.822m.

6.4    Within the £24.292m was a sum of £1.1m allocated for specialist development consultancy for 
the CPO related costs, inclusive of all professional fees, legal and development consultancy 
and internal management costs. This sum includes the £200k previously allocated from the 
growth fund.  To date £114k has been spent/committed, leaving a balance of £986k. Details of 
the funding for the scheme and the estimated capital receipts were reported to Executive on 7th 
November 2017.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 None for the purposes of this report.

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1. The Council is empowered under section 226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
as amended, to acquire any land in its area if it is satisfied that the proposed acquisition will 
facilitate the carrying out of development, redevelopment or improvement on or in relation to the 
land. The Council may utilise its compulsory purchase powers under section 226 of the TCPA 

(a) if it thinks the acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of development, or 
redevelopment or improvement on, or in relation to the land or 

(b) which is required for a purpose which is necessary to achieve in the interests of the 
proper planning of an area in which the land is situated. 

In order to make an acquisition under (a), the Council must also consider that the development, 
redevelopment or improvement will contribute to the promotion or improvement of the economic 
social or environmental well-being of its area.

8.2 In this case the proposal is to seek in-principle approval to make a CPO for the purpose of 
facilitating the comprehensive redevelopment of the Order Land to enable the delivery of the 
Scheme, which includes up to 410 residential units and a mix of other uses. The Scheme is 
overall considered to make a major positive contribution to the economic, social and 
environmental well-being of the area.

8.2. Section 226(3) of the Act confirms that the Council's CPO powers extend to lands adjoining land 
which is required for the purpose of executing works for facilitating the development or use of 
the primary land. This is relevant to interests required, such as crane over-sailing rights, which 
fall outside of the planning application boundary.

8.3. The Acquisition of Land Act 1981 governs the procedures which apply to such an acquisition. 
The Compulsory Purchase Act 1965 governs post-confirmation procedures and the Land 
Compensation Act 1961 governs the amount and assessment of compensation. The Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 governs the granting of new rights. Further 
implications relating to requirements of the Guidance are as set out in paragraphs 3.9 to 3.16 of 
this report and would need to be considered by the Executive in detail at the time of making a 
CPO. The Human Rights and equalities aspects of a CPO are reviewed at paragraphs 3.22 to 
3.37 inclusive.

8.4 Detailed legal implications would need to be assessed when consideration is given to making a 
CPO. There will be significant legal implications in delivering a project of this complexity over a 
number of critical areas. The Council has therefore appointed Solicitors Bevan Brittan under the 
EM Lawshare Framework to act as the legal advisors for the CPO. Bevan Brittan will provide 
the level of expertise and guidance on a range of key areas for the programme. Such areas 

Page 81



 12

include planning, CPO law and procedure and developer agreements. The Council, does not 
have sufficient in-house resources to support a large scale programme of this magnitude and 
hence the appointment of Bevan Brittan will ensure the Council has the benefit of 
comprehensive legal advice through a single provider for all the elements of the Scheme. The 
Council’s renewal team and legal department are providing a client side role in the delivery of 
the programme.

9 PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS

9.1 None for the purposes of this report. 

Non-Applicable Sections: PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT 
IMPLICATIONS

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

Page 82



APPENDIX 2 - Compulsory purchase order process – Indicative timeline

Timeline Action Details

Month 0
The Council resolves to use its 
compulsory purchase powers in 
principle

Trigger for the commencement of the CPO process.

Month 1

In the event of Countryside being 
granted planning permission for the 
Churchill Quarter Development and 
the expiry of the relevant period for 
legal challenge

The Council will commence the initial steps associated with the CPO process (including 
appointing land referencing agents) 

Month 2/3
The Council serves 'requisition for 
information' notices

The Council will serve notice on all people they believe own or occupy the land they wish to 
acquire asking for details of a person's interest in the land and whether there are any other 
persons with an interest in the land. The requisition for information notice usually specifies a 
deadline of 21 days for responses although it can often take longer to gather all the information 
required.

Month 3/4

Report seeking a second resolution 
to ‘make’ the CPO

powers

The Council will require a detailed report on the proposed use of compulsory purchase powers 
in order to authorise the use of those powers.

P
age 83



Month 3/4
Following the second resolution, the 
Council formally makes the CPO

Once it has all the information it needs on land ownership, the acquiring authority makes the 
CPO and serves notice of it on parties with “qualifying interests”. The Council puts up site 
notices and publishes in one or more local newspapers. The CPO, CPO plan and Statement of 
Reasons are made available for inspection.

Month 4 Statutory period for objections The period for objections will be set out in the notice and is a minimum of 21 days from the 
date the notice is served, displayed or first published (as the case may be). Objections must be 
in writing. If there are other orders required, the objection period may be longer.

Month 5/6 Objections received

Where relevant objections are received, the Secretary of State will order a public local inquiry 
into the CPO. Objections to level of compensation payable will not be considered. Where no 
objections are received (or objections are resolved), the CPO can be confirmed without the 
need for an inquiry.

Month 6 Secretary of State issues 'relevant 
date' letter

The 'relevant date' letter sets the date for the inquiry and sets out the deadline for the acquiring 
authority to serve its statement of case.

Month 7 Deadline for lodging 'statement of 
case' for public local inquiry

The deadline for lodging the statement of case will usually be 6 weeks after the date of the 
'relevant date' letter. Remaining objectors may also be asked to provide a statement of case 
prior to the inquiry.

Month 11 Inquiry and site visit

The CPO Inquiry will  follow a similar format to  S78 Planning appeal and the  inquiry should 
normally be held 22 weeks after the relevant date. The date will depend on likely duration of 
the inquiry and the availability of an inspector. An inspector will hear evidence from the Council 
and the remaining objectors. A pre-inquiry meeting may also be held. The inspector will usually 
visit the site. There are procedures for both accompanied and unaccompanied site visits. I

Month 14 Inspector's report The inspector to the inquiry issues his/her written report setting out conclusions and 
recommendations for consideration by the Secretary of State.

P
age 84



Month 17 Secretary of State decision

After considering the inspector's report, the Secretary of State issues a decision to either 
confirm, modify or reject the CPO. The decision letter, setting out his/her reasons for the 
decision, is sent to the Council and any remaining objectors and other persons who requested 
notification.

Month 18 CPO confirmed The Council publicises the decision in local newspapers as soon as possible after receipt of the 
decision letter.

Month 20 Judicial review challenge period The validity of a CPO can be challenged within six weeks of the date of the first newspaper 
notice.

Month 21 Implementation of CPO The CPO can be implemented and land acquired following publication. This process usually 
takes about three months.

P
age 85



T
his page is left intentionally blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2017. Ordnance Survey 100017661

±
1:1,000

Legend
Other Interests

Land aquired or to be acquired Page 87



This page is left intentionally blank



 1

Report No.
DRR19/005

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE

Date: 22 January  2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: TOWN CENTRES DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE

Contact Officer: Kevin Munnelly, Head of Renewal
Tel:  020 8313 4519   E-mail:  kevin.munnelly@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Nigel Davies, Executive Director of Environment & Community Services 

Ward: All Wards

1. Reason for report

1.1   To update Members on progress in delivering the Town Centres Development and Growth 
Programme.

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 That Members note the progress on the delivery of the Town Centres Development and Growth 
Programme.

Page 89

Agenda Item 13



 2

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  Bromley Town Area Action Plan

2. BBB Priority: Vibrant, Thriving Town Centres: 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: N/A

2. Ongoing costs: N/A: 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Renewal budget, Capital Programme and S106 Funding

4. Total current budget for this head: £35.343m 

5. Source of funding:  Town Centre Development Fund, Growth Fund, Investment Fund, S106 
resources, NHB/GLA High Street funding, Capital Financing and TfL funding

________________________________________________________________________________

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  4

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours:        
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Non-Statutory - Government Guidance: 

2. Call-in: Applicable:  
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Borough-wide 
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  Yes

2. Summary of Ward Councillor’s comments: Officers hold regular update meetings with Ward 
Councillors.

Page 90



 3

3. COMMENTARY

Development Programme

3.1 As agreed at R&R PDS on 1 April 2014 this report provides updates for only those 
individual projects where progress has been made.

Site G: West of the High Street 

3.2 The Executive on 17th July 2017 approved the detailed terms of the development 
agreement and lease for the development and on 11th December 2017, Full Council 
approved an allocation to the capital programme for the purpose of acquiring properties 
within the red line area.  The Council’s development team continue to liaise directly with 
property owners within the development site to exercise the Council’s Duty of Care to 
residents directly impacted by the proposed redevelopment. Bevan Britten LLP solicitors 
have carried out an external review of the current CPO project plan and have recommended 
a number of actions including the preparation of an Equalities Impact Assessment of the 
acquisition process.  Progress continues to be made on the site acquisitions and relocations 
including discussion with the Town Church on temporary relocation options.. Negotiation 
with the remaining land owners are ongoing.   A further report on this agenda seeks 
Executive approval for the in principle use of the Council’s CPO powers in securing vacant 
possession of the development site. This report explains why the in principle decision is 
needed at this stage to provide certainty and allow preliminary processes required for the 
making of a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) to be carried out at the same time as 
negotiations with landowners are ongoing both saving time and supporting the negotiating 
process.    

3.3 In accordance with the terms of the development agreement Countryside Properties 
submitted the planning application for their scheme and this application is currently under 
consideration by the Council’s Development Management team. It is anticipated that this 
application will be ready for consideration by the Development Control Committee in early 
February 2019.

Bromley Town Centre High Street Public Realm Improvements 

3.4 Phase 2 works have commenced between south of the library towards Elmfield Road 
junction. The former planters have been removed and new lighting columns and a 
substantial area of new granite paving has been laid. The first two raised planters have 
been installed and the trees and low level plants have been planted. The market has now 
been relocated to the northern section of the High Street and feedback from the market 
team is that it is settling in well.  The design team are finalising the integration of Hostile 
Vehicle Mitigation measures into the current design of the Elmfield Road junction. This 
element along with the whole of the Ethelbert Road junction and remaining granite footways 
and planters are programmed to be completed by the Easter 2019.  

3.5 The carriageway works at High Street / Elmfield Road junction will require a full road closure 
for 6 – 8 weeks. Following initial discussions with London buses it was agreed to provide 
temporary bus stops in Kentish way during this period, although to maintain a service within 
the town centre London Buses will be asked to consider using a ‘U’ turn facility at the top 
end of the High Street, outside Boots, which will be the subject of a meeting with TfL on the 
14th January.

3.6 Following the Executive approval on 17th October 2018 officers are progressing the 
procurement of the two Commercial units/shops and the two pairs of market kiosks on 
Market Square. Members agreed additional funded of £415k. The planning applications for 
both were submitted in January 2019. The design team are also examining design and 

Page 91



 4

delivery options for the mirrored canopies given the revised overall scheme budget of 
£3.875m, agreed by the Executive. Details of any revisions will be brought back to the R, R 
& H PDS for consideration. 

Beckenham Town Centre Public Realm Improvements

3.7 The improvement works to Beckenham High Street have been substantially completed and 
the High Street has been returned to two way running and all bus diversion have been 
cancelled  and normal service routing recommenced. New architectural building lighting and 
the application of a resin bonded surfacing to Beckenham Green market area and the 
Odeon forecourt will be completed by the end of November. There remain a series of 
additional works involving the installation of granite planters at Kelsey Square and Village 
Way and a feature Odeon bench which will be undertaken in the New Year along with any 
outstanding snagging works to be agreed with the Term Contractor. 

3.8 On the 1st December 2018 a formal celebration of the improvement works was held on 
Beckenham Green in conjunction with the Beckenham Town Team, the BID with the 
Portfolio Holder and Ward Councillors in attendance.  

Penge Town Centre Improvements 

3.10 The improvement works to Penge High Street are now completed and the term contractor 
will be undertaking snagging over the next month. As part of the Shopfront improvement 
project, You & Me architecture and their sub-contractors are currently implementing the 
construction phase of improvements to the selected shops with a view to completing the 
project by the end of March 2019. 

3.11 The GLA has informed the Council that the bid for the Good Growth Fund submitted in 
September 2018 was unsuccessful. The proposals submitted included an extension to the 
programme of shopfront improvement works and a programme of events for continued 
activation of the two public squares in Penge High Street. Officers are currently seeking 
feedback from the GLA regarding the outcome.

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1   Work delivering the Town Centres Development Programme is entirely consistent with 
Policy Objectives set out in Building A Better Bromley and the Renewal & Recreation 
Portfolio Business Plan 2017/18. The work of the Renewal team links to the Building a 
Better Bromley priorities by working towards the provision of Vibrant and Thriving Town 
Centres.

5.    FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS VR/ CM

5.1    On 11th of December 2017, Full Council approved a net increase of £18.4m resulting in a 
revised capital estimate of £24.292m for the Site G development programme. To date 
£1.469m has been spent/committed on the acquisition of properties in Ethelbert Close 
leaving a balance of £22.822m.

5.2    Within the £24.292m was a sum of £1.1m allocated for specialist development consultancy 
for CPO related costs inclusive of all professional fees, legal and development consultancy 
and internal management costs. This sum includes the £200k previously allocated from the 
growth fund.  To date £114k has been spent/committed, leaving a balance of £986k.

5.3 The table below summarises the financial position for each Town Centre Development 
project. It shows individual budgets, funding streams, spend and commitments and the 

Page 92



 5

remaining balances, including the split between capital and revenue expenditure: -

Budget Spend Com'tmts Total Balance

Capital £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Site G

Properties w ithin red line development site - capital f inancing 20,932.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 20,932.0

Grow th Fund - Specialist legal & development advice 1,100.0 104.1 9.7 113.8 986.2

Grow th Fund 1,800.0 995.9 0.0 995.9 804.1

Private Developer contribution 100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0

S106 PIL 359.6 359.6 0.0 359.6 0.0

24,291.6 1,459.6 9.7 1,469.3 22,822.3

Beckenham Improvement Scheme *

TfL Funding 2,896.0 2,896.0 0.0 2,896.0 0.0

TfL Funding - LIP allocation re Southend Rd/Rectory Rd 200.0 200.0 0.0 200.0 0.0

Capital receipts 995.0 573.5 8.5 582.0 413.0

Earmarked Reserve balance for Beckenham Improvements 150.0 150.0 0.0 150.0 0.0

Principal Road Maintenance TFL allocation (Subject to approval) 200.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 200.0

4,441.0 3,819.5 8.5 3,828.0 613.0

New  Homes Bonus and High Street Funded Projects 

Penge Tow n Centre Improvements 746.0 135.1 0.0 135.1 610.9

Orpington Tow n Centre 525.0 498.8 0.0 498.8 26.2

1,271.0 633.9 0.0 633.9 637.1

Orpington Tow n Centre 

S106 funding tow ards Walnuts Shopping Centre area 350.0 189.9 0.0 189.9 160.1

350.0 189.9 0.0 189.9 160.1

Bromley Tow n Centre Public Realm Scheme

S106 funding - Tow n Centre contributions* 152.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 152.0
Grow th Fund (may be replaced by S106 from Langley Court 
funding w hen available)

3,723.0 1,171.5 72.0 1,243.5 2,479.5

3,875.0 1,171.5 72.0 1,243.5 2,631.5

Total Capital 34,228.6 7,274.4 90.2 7,364.6 26,864.0

Revenue

New  Homes Bonus and High Street Funded Projects 

Penge Tow n Centre Improvements 200.0 126.4 31.6 158.0 42.0

Orpington Tow n Centre 100.0 81.4 14.5 95.9 4.1

Biggin Hill Aviation Technology & Enterprise Centre 150.0 135.6 5.2 140.8 9.2

Cray Business Corridor 150.0 118.9 5.8 124.7 25.3

600.0 462.3 57.1 519.4 80.6

Bromley Tow n Centre High Street redevelopment programme

Investment Fund - Initial feasibilty cost of development programme 118.0 80.8 0.0 80.8 37.2

Investment Fund - Detailed design cost & survey w ork 287.0 204.7 33.7 238.4 48.6

Broadband Infrastructure Investment project 64.7 64.7 0.0 64.7 0.0

S106 Funding for street furniture refurbishments 45.0 21.8 21.8 43.6 1.4

Sub-total High Street Redevelopment 514.7 372.0 55.5 427.5 87.2

Total Revenue 1,114.7 834.3 112.6 946.9 167.8

Total Funding - Capital and Revenue 35,343.3 8,108.7 202.8 8,311.5 27,031.8

Page 93



 6

5.4 On 17th October 2018, the Executive approved an addition of £415k to the Bromley High 
Street Improvement Capital Scheme, thereby increasing the overall budget for the scheme 
to £3.875m

5.5 Berkeley Homes have made the final payment of £81k of Section 106 contributions towards 
the Walnuts Public Realm Improvement project. This constitutes the final remaining 
payment, paid on the occupation of the 42nd unit of the development. Executive approval is 
required to add the £81k to the Orpington scheme in the Capital Programme and this 
request will be included in the next quarterly capital monitoring report. It should be noted 
that the revenue maintenance costs of the Orpington Public Realm Scheme will be borne by 
the Head Leaseholder.

Non-Applicable Sections: Legal and Personnel Implications

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

NA

Page 94



 1

Report No.
FSD19005

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING POLICY, DEVELOPMENT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date: Tuesday 22nd January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: DRAFT BUDGET 2019/20

Contact Officer: Claire Martin, Head of Finance and James Mullender
Tel: 020 8313 4286 & 4196    E-mail:  claire.martin@bromley.gov.uk, 
james.mullender@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Ade Adetosoye OBE, Interim Chief Executive
Nigel Davies, Executive Director of Environment & Community Services

Ward: All

1. Reason for report

1.1. The prime purpose of this report is to consider the Portfolio Holder’s Draft 2019/20 Budget 
which incorporates future cost pressures and initial draft budget saving options which are being 
reported to Executive on 16th January 2019. Members are requested to consider the initial draft 
budget being proposed and also identify any further action that might be taken to reduce cost 
pressures facing the Council over the next four years.

1.2. Executive are requesting that each PDS Committee consider the proposed initial draft budget 
savings and cost pressures for their Portfolio and the views of each PDS Committee be reported 
back to the next meeting of the Executive, prior to the Executive making recommendations to 
Council on 2019/20 Council Tax levels.

1.3. There are still outstanding issues and areas of uncertainty remaining. Any further updates will 
be included in the 2019/20 Council Tax report to the next meeting of the Executive.

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The PDS Committee is requested to:

i)    Consider the update on the financial forecast for 2019/20 to 2022/23;

ii) Consider the initial draft 2019/20 budget as a basis for setting the 2019/20 budget; 
and

iii) Provide comments on the initial draft 2019/20 budget for the February meeting of the 
Council’s Executive.

Page 95

Agenda Item 14



 2

Impact on Vulnerable Adults and Children

1. Summary of Impact: Adult Care and Health Portfolio budget setting supports the provision of 
services to vulnerable adults 

________________________________________________________________________________

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:  

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council, 
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Not Applicable

2. Ongoing costs: Recurring Cost 

3. Budget head/performance centre: Renewal, Recreation & Housing Portfolio budgets

4. Total current budget for this head: £21.352m 

5. Source of funding: Draft revenue budget for 2019/20  
________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  Full details will be available with the Council’s 2019/20 
Financial Control Budget to be published in March 2019  

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Not Applicable   
________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: Statutory Requirement: The statutory duties relating to financial reporting 
are covered within the Local Government Act 1972; the Local Government Finance Act 1998; 
the Local Government Act 2000; the Local Government Act 2002 and the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. 

2. Call-in: Not Applicable
________________________________________________________________________________

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: Not Applicable  
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  The 2019/20 budget reflects 
the financial impact of the Council’s strategies, service plans etc. which impact on all of the 
Council’s customers (including council tax payers) and users of the services. 

________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  Not Applicable

Page 96



 3

3. COMMENTARY

3.1. APPROACH TO BUDGETING, FINANCIAL CONTEXT AND ECONOMIC SITUATION 
WHICH CAN IMPACT ON PUBLIC FINANCES

3.1.1. In considering this report further background information was available through the Members’ 
seminars as follows: 

 Members’ Finance Seminar on 20th June 2018;

 Members’ Welfare Reform Seminar on 2nd July 2018;

 Members’ Pension Fund Seminar on 5th November 2018.  

3.1.2. Forward financial planning and financial management is a key strength at Bromley and this 
has been recognised previously by our external auditors. This report continues to forecast the 
financial prospects for the next 4 years and includes the Government’s final year of the four 
year funding settlement period (2016/17 to 2019/20). At the time of writing this report, further 
details on various grant funding is awaited and it is important to note that some caution is 
required in considering any projections for 2020/21 to 2022/23 as this represents the 
Government’s next awaited Spending Review period.  

3.1.3. A strong economy with growth increases revenues which supports the Government’s ability to 
reduce public sector debt as the gap between finances raised and spend on public services is 
reduced. The slowing down of the global economy and many sources of uncertainty has 
resulted in a downgrading of the level of economic growth in the UK economy. It is important 
to consider the key national issues that could impact on public finances over the next four 
years. The overall national debt stands at £1.8 trillion with annual debt servicing costs of 
£43bn. It is expected that Public Sector Debt will decline from a peak of 85.2% of GDP in 
2016/17 to a forecast 74.1% in 2023/24 and that public sector borrowing will be £19.8bn in 
2023/24 (lowest level for 10 years).  The Autumn Budget 2018 identified that public sector net 
borrowing is expected to be 1.4% of GDP in 2019/20 falling to 0.8% in 2023/24. Bank of 
England have referred to domestic inflation being partly driven by high wage growth and lower 
productivity levels per head which is expected to keep CPI above 2% until at least 2021. The 
Spring Statement due in March 2019 is expected to be upgraded to a full budget depending on 
the outcome of the Brexit negotiations. 

3.1.4. Local Government has borne the brunt of austerity and savings compared with other areas of 
Government expenditure. Despite the announcements by the Government that “austerity is 
over”, local government funding remains ‘unprotected’ and the impact of additional funding for 
NHS and other ‘protected’ services results in a likely real term funding reductions remaining 
for local government.

3.1.5. The financial forecast assumes ongoing funding reduction over the four year period, although 
at a lower rate, compared with previous years.  Even with the planned Green Paper on social 
care which has now been delayed until later in 2019, no additional funding has been 
announced by the Government for adult social care from 2020/21, at this stage. For local 
government,   the fiscal squeeze is expected to continue and with ongoing protection of health, 
education police and other security services. 

3.1.6. The Government remains committed with the aims of devolution which includes enabling local 
government to be more self-sufficient. The Government views the new flexibilities such as the 
future growth forecasts from business rates, to be mainly devolved (75% of total quantum) to 
local government by 2020 combined with scope for the ongoing ability to increase council tax 
as methods which can reduce the impact of grant reductions. However, it is not the full 
solution for local government given its costs pressures and service demands.  

Page 97



 4

3.1.7. The Budget Strategy has to be set within the context of a reducing resource base, with 
Government funding reductions in real terms likely to continue beyond 2020 – the on-going 
need to reduce the size and shape of the organisation to secure priority outcomes within the 
resources available. There is also a need to build in flexibility in identifying options to bridge 
the budget gap as the gap could increase further. The overall updated strategy has to be set in 
the context of the national state of public finances, with austerity continuing given the level of 
public sector debt, and the high expectation from Government that services should be 
reformed and redesigned with devolution contributing to the transformation of local 
government. There is also an on-going need to consider “front loading” savings to ensure 
difficult decisions are taken early in the budgetary cycle, to provide some investment in 
specific priorities, to fund transformation and to support invest to save opportunities which 
provide a more sustainable financial position in the longer term.  Any decisions will need to 
consider the finalisation of the 2019/20 Budget as well as the longer time frame where the 
Council has to ‘live within its means’.

3.1.8. Bromley has the second lowest settlement funding per head of population in 2018/19 for the 
whole of London. Despite this, Bromley has retained the third lowest council tax in outer 
London (other low grant funded authorities tend to have higher council tax levels). This has 
been achieved by having one of the lowest costs per head of population in outer London. 
Despite being a low cost authority, Bromley has achieved general savings of around £97m 
since 2011/12 but it becomes more challenging to achieve further savings with a low cost 
base. 

3.1.9. One of the key issues in future year budgets will be the balance between spending, council tax 
levels, charges and service reductions in an organisation starting from a low spending base. It 
is important to recognise that a lower cost base reduces the scope to identify efficiency 
savings compared with a higher cost organisation.

3.2. CHANGES SINCE THE 2018/19 BUDGET THAT IMPACT ON THE FINANCIAL FORECAST

3.2.1. The 2018/19 Council Tax report reported to Executive in February 2018 identified a significant 
“budget gap” over the four year financial planning period. Some key changes are summarised 
below.

3.2.2. The draft budget and future years forecast reflect a continuing reduction in core grant funding 
to local government. After allowing for the Government’s concession on negative Revenue 
Support Grant (RSG) there is a core grant funding reduction of £3.6m in 2019/20 reflected in 
the draft 2019/20 Budget increasing to £12.6m per annum by 2022/23.   

3.2.3. The main measure of inflation for annual price increases for the Council’s contracted out 
services is Retail Price Index (excluding mortgage interest rates) i.e. RPIX. This measure is 
normally up to 1% above the Consumer Price Index (CPI) level. The Draft 2019/20 Budget 
assumes contract price increases of 3.0%, reducing to 2.7% per annum from 2020/21, which 
compares with the existing RPIX of 3.1%. Action will need to be taken by Chief Officers to fund 
increasing costs through alternative savings in the event that inflation exceeds the budget 
assumptions.      

Page 98



 5

3.2.4. The Interim Chief Executive has identified cost/growth pressures impacting on education, 
housing, adults and children’s social care as well as opportunities for the mitigation of costs 
which have been reflected in the Draft 2019/20 Budget and financial forecast which are 
summarised below: 

2019/20
£’000

2020/21
£’000

2021/22
£’000

2022/23
£’000

Growth/cost pressures   16,280  24,699  28,986  33,331
Mitigation   -8,269  -7,457 -10,452 -14,502
Net additional costs    8,011  17,242  18,534  18,829

3.2.5. It remains essential that there is the ongoing scrutiny and review of growth/cost pressures, 
which are mainly unfunded at the present time, with options to help achieve a balanced 
budget, including any mitigation over the financial forecast period.

3.2.6. Given the scale of savings identified and any inherent risks, the need for longer term financial 
planning, the uncertainty on future year cost pressures, significant changes that may follow 
relating to future new burdens, effect of ongoing population increases and the potential impact 
of other public agencies identifying savings which impact on the Council’s costs, a prudent 
approach has been adopted in considering the Central Contingency Sum required to mitigate 
against these risks. If the monies are not required during the year the policy of using these 
resources, in general, for investment, generate income/savings and provide a more 
sustainable financial position should continue. To illustrate the benefit of the investment 
approach the Council has potential income in 2019/20 totalling £15.4m from a combination of 
treasury management income and rents from investment properties. Without this income, 
equivalent service reductions may be required. Investment in economic growth (Growth Fund) 
will also be key to generate additional business rate income.  

3.2.7. The latest forecast indicates that despite having a balanced budget in 2019/20 there remains a 
significant budget gap in future years that will need to be addressed, particularly from 2020/21.  

3.3. FINANCIAL CONTEXT

3.3.1. Key issues include:

 Two of the Council’s main activities which are grant funded are schools and housing 
benefits. Both of these areas of spend continue to be ring-fenced. 

 A high proportion of the Council’s spend relates to third party payments, mainly contracts, 
which can limit flexibility to change spend levels as well as providing greater inflationary 
pressures (e.g. the impact of the National Living Wage). 

 As reported in previous years, the majority of the Council’s spend relates to just a few 
service areas.

 Even though the draft budget would be broadly balanced next year, the future year’s budget 
gap is projected to increase to £32.2m per annum by 2022/23. Without any action to 
address the budget gap in future years reserves will need to be used followed by a 
significant ‘cliff edge’ budget gap remaining thereafter.  

3.3.2. The reasons for the budget gap by 2022/23 include, for example: 

 inflation pressures partly offset by assumed council tax increase (2.99% in 2019/20 and 
1.99% thereafter) and social care precept (2019/20 only) of 2% leaving a balance required 
of £10.6m;

Page 99



 6

 Loss of core grant funding of £12.6m;  

 Growth/cost pressures less mitigation of £18.8m relating to education, social care and 
housing ;  

 Additional income of £3.2m from Government social care funding assumed to continue 
beyond 2019/20 which partly offsets the social care cost/growth pressures; 

 Savings from reduction in the Council’s provision for risk/uncertainty held within the Central 
Contingency Sum (saving of £8m per annum). 

 Other variations leading to an increase of £1.4m.

3.3.3. Even using a ‘best case scenario’ that there are no government grant reductions over the four 
year period, the final budget gap in future years will remain significant (£19.6m).   

3.3.4. In the financial forecast, after allowing for inflation, council tax income and other changes we 
have an unfunded budget gap due to reductions in government funding and net service 
growth/cost pressures. Therefore service growth/cost pressures are effectively unfunded. This 
highlights the importance of scrutinising growth and recognition that corresponding savings will 
need to be found to achieve a statutory balanced budget. It is timely as we all have to consider 
what level of growth the council can afford and the need for significant mitigation or alternative 
transformation options. 

3.3.5. The table below highlights that, although it has been possible to achieve a potential balanced 
budget for next year through identifying savings and continuing with prudent financial 
management, there remains a “budget gap” of £16m in 2020/21 rising to £32.2m per annum in 
2022/23.  The projections in later years have to be treated with some caution, particularly as 
the Government’s next spending review is expected to be implemented from 2020/21 which 
will include the revised levels of funding for individual local authorities following the ‘Fair 
Funding’ review. The Government is consulting on the early stages of the ‘Fair Funding’ 
review.    

3.3.6. In considering action required to address the medium term “budget gap”, the Council has 
taken significant action to reduce the cost base while protecting priority front line services and 
providing sustainable longer term solutions. Significant savings of around £97m were realised 
since 2011/12. Our council has to balance between the needs of service users and the burden 
of council tax on council tax payers. With the Government placing severe reductions in the 
level of grant support, the burden of financing increasing service demand falls primarily upon 
the level of council tax and business rate income.

Page 100



 7

3.4. LATEST FINANCIAL FORECAST

3.4.1. A summary of the latest budget projections is shown the table below:

Variations Compared with 2018/19 Budget
2019/20

£m
2020/21

£m
2021/22

£m
2022/23

£m
  
Grant Loss 3.6 6.6 9.6 12.6
  
Cost Pressures  
Increased costs (3.0% 2019/20 then 2.7% per annum) 6.0 13.3 20.5 27.7
Reinstatement of highways maintenance (previously capitalised) 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5
Total Additional Costs 6.0 13.3 20.5 30.2

  
Income / Savings  
Acquisition of Residential Properties to Accommodate Homeless (Mears) -1.0 -1.0 -1.0 -1.0
Additional Income Opportunity (Amey) -0.2 -0.4 -0.4 -0.4
Additional income from business rate share to reflect new developments in 
borough and Section 31 funding and increase in business rate base

-1.5 -1.8 -1.8 -1.8

Fall out of London pilot of business rates (as approved by Council 25/9/17) - 
one year only

2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9

Continuation of London Business Rate Pool 2019/20 -2.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
Business Rates Surplus levy -0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0
Interest on balances - reduction in income to reflect use of balances and 
temp. funding for Site G 

0.2 0.1 0.3 0.4

Release general provision in contingency for significant uncertainty/variables -0.7 -0.7 -0.7 -0.7
Savings from recommissioning/retendering of various contracts -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1
Savings from Children’s Social Care linked to Invest to Save funding -0.2 -0.7 -1.0 -1.0
Potential release of draft contingency in future years re provision for 
risk/uncertainty 0.0 -4.0 -8.0 -8.0
Extra Social Care Funding  through Government grants  -3.2 -3.2 -3.2 -3.2
Leisure Service Lease approved by Executive on 28th November 2018 -1.5 -1.5 -1.5 -1.5
Review of staffing across organisation -0.6 -1.5 -1.5 -1.5
Other savings -0.4 -1.1 -1.5 -1.5
Total Income / Savings -9.1 -13.0 -17.5 -17.4
  
Other Changes (includes use of non-recurring funds)  
Fall out of New Homes Bonus funding 3.2 4.5 5.1 5.6
Real Changes and other Variations -0.9 -1.3 -1.2 -0.5
Total Other Changes 2.3 3.2 3.9 5.1

  
ECHS Growth and Mitigation (see Appendix 5) 8.0 17.2 18.5 18.8

  
Council Tax  
Increase in Council Tax Base to reflect additional properties 
and increased collection rates

-1.6 -2.3 -2.9 -3.6

Fall out of Collection Fund surplus 2014/15 set aside as one off support 
towards meeting the funding shortfall in 2018/19

4.9 4.9 4.9 4.9

Fall out of Collection Fund surplus 2015/16 set aside as one off support 
towards meeting the funding shortfall in 2018/19

0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

Increase in council tax (assume 2.99% per annum in 2019/20 and 1.99% 
thereafter) -4.5 -7.6 -10.9 -14.1

Impact of  Adult Social Care Precept (assume 2% per annum) -3.0 -3.0 -3.0 -3.0
Collection Fund Surplus 2017/18 -6.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
Projection of future year collection fund surplus 0.0 -4.0 -3.0 -2.0
Total Council Tax -10.3 -11.3 -14.2 -17.1
Remaining "Budget Gap" 0.5 16.0 20.8 32.2

The above table shows, for illustrative purposes the impact of a council tax increase of 3.99% in 2019/20 (including adult social care 
precept). Each 1% council tax increase generates on-going annual income of £1.5m. The financial forecast assumes that any future 
increases in the Adult Social Care precept cease beyond 2019/20. It should be noted that the current legislation only provided powers for 
this precept until the end of 2019/20.    

Page 101



 8

3.5. DETAILED DRAFT 2019/20 BUDGET

3.5.1. Detailed Draft 2019/20 Budgets are attached in Appendix 1 and will form the basis for the 
overall final Portfolio/Departmental budgets after any further adjustments to deal with service 
pressures and any other additional spending. Under the budget process previously agreed, 
these initial detailed budgets are forwarded to PDS committees for scrutiny and comment prior 
to the next Executive meeting in February.

3.5.2. Appendix 1 sets out:-

 A summary of the Draft 2019/20 Revenue Budget for the Portfolio showing actual 2017/18 
expenditure, 2018/19 budget, 2019/20 budget and overall variations in planned spending 
between 2018/19 and 2019/20.

 A summary of the main reasons for variations per Portfolio in planned spending between 
2018/19 and 2019/20 together with supporting notes.

 A high level subjective summary for the Portfolio showing expenditure on employees, 
premises etc.

3.6. REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES

3.6.1. There will need to be an ongoing review identifying opportunities as the medium term ‘budget 
gap’ remains significant. Chief Officers will continue to review fees and charges during 
2019/20 to identify opportunities to reduce the future years ‘budget gap’

3.7. IDENTIFYING FURTHER SAVINGS/MITIGATION

3.7.1. There were 1,335 statutory duties as at June 2011, as identified by the National Audit Office. 
There has been no overall reduction in statutory duties to date despite significant funding 
reductions.

3.7.2. Chief Officers previously undertook “Baseline Reviews” which identified the full cost of 
services and their resultant statutory and non-statutory functions with scope for achieving 
savings as well as action to mitigate any negative service impact.

3.7.3. The scale of savings required in future years cannot be met by efficiency alone – there will be 
a need for a reduction in the scope and level of services. The council will need to continue to 
review its core priorities and how it works with partners and key stakeholders and the overall 
provision of services.

3.7.4. A significant challenge is to consider discretionary services which, if reduced, could result in 
higher cost statutory obligations. Therefore, it is important to consider the risk of ‘unintended 
consequence’ of reducing discretionary services adversely impacting on the cost of statutory 
services.

3.7.5. Chief Officers are currently exploring further saving/income opportunities as part of finalising 
the 2019/20 Budget and any updates will be provided for the meeting of the Executive.

3.7.6. The Director of Corporate Service is leading on a core statutory minimum review to determine 
what the Council can afford within its overall budget envelope. This work will be very 
challenging given the visibility and importance to residents of some discretionary services. 
Even after identifying the core statutory minimum there may be opportunities to reduce costs 
through ensuring VFM is realised and the best method of service delivery and outcomes are 
achieved.

Page 102



 9

3.7.7. Apart from the core statutory minimum review, Chief Officers will plan to undertake a 
significant transformational review across all services, focussing on higher spend services first 
to be completed by mid - 2019/20 with options for members to consider significant 
transformation change for implementation by 2020/21. The outcome of the transformation 
review will be a key consideration within the Council Tax report in determining future 
arrangements for addressing the budget gap

3.8. RISK AREAS WITHIN THE RRH PORTFOLIO 

Planning Services

3.8.1. A substantial part of the Planning Services’ work attracts income for the Council, mainly from 
the planning application fees. The fee income and volume of work reflects the wider economic 
circumstances affecting development pressures in the Borough. There is a risk of income 
variation beyond the Council’s immediate control; however trends are regularly monitored in 
order that appropriate action can be taken.

3.8.2. There is a risk that Section 106 developer contributions are not spent in accordance with the 
legal agreements, for example in the right location or timescale. Regular reports are made to 
the ER & C PDS to monitor these.

3.8.3. Action is ongoing to reduce risk of Government Designation for Special Measures due to 
Planning performance.

Housing

3.8.4. Housing costs continue to escalate for those qualifying for temporary accommodation. The key 
challenges continue to centre on:

 The overall lack of access to accommodation that is affordable – lack of move on 
options.

 Reduced social housing stock turnover silting up temporary accommodation.

 The combined impact of the welfare reform changes – resulting in a greater number of 
approaches, increased rent arrears and shortfall in rent which requires LBB top up.

 The extended statutory duties arising from the implementation of the Homelessness 
Reduction Act 2017 since April 2018.

 Complexity of some households approaching requiring intensive support and 
intervention to access and sustain accommodation.

3.8.5. Overall these pressures are likely to rise to in excess of £9m by 2023 and cannot be met 
through the contingency funds set aside for homelessness and welfare reform pressures.

3.8.6. There are a range of activities being undertaken to slow down the rate of increase and seek to 
mitigate the overall costs pressures. However it must be noted that pressures continue to rise 
and capital schemes regarding housing supply will take several years lead in to design, gain 
planning consent and complete:

1. Costs can best be contained by continuing to focus on early intervention and advice. 
The service has been redesigned to proactively identify those at risk of homelessness to 
offer early intervention services prior to crisis and thus reduce the need for temporary 
accommodation.

Page 103



 10

2. Increasing access to private rented sector accommodation. A new offer has been put in 
place for landlords to increase the level of access. To date this has achieved 100 prs 
letting for 2018/19.

3. Pan London arrangements to share details on TA costs and set benchmark rates to 
reduce the level of price increases.

4. It is clear however that in order to start to mitigate the cost of temporary accommodation 
increased housing supply is required. A transformation board in now in operation to 
pursue the range of options to increase accommodation supply including the use of 
vacant dwelling, modular units, property purchase and the development of Bromley 
owned or acquired sites. Cumulatively the schemes identified to date would offer full-
year mitigation actions in the region of £5.4m.

4. IMPACT ON VULNERABLE ADULTS AND CHILDREN 

4.1 The draft 2019/20 Budget reflects the Council’s key priorities which includes, for example, 
supporting vulnerable adults with children and being ambitious for all our children and young 
people.

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Council’s key priorities include, for example: 

 Ensure financial independence and sustainability;
 Invest in our business and our people
 Ambitious for all our children and young people
 Enhance our clean and green Borough. 

5.2 Ensure financial independence and sustainability priorities include:

 Strict management of our budgets to ensure we live within our means
 Working to achieve the benefits of the integration of health and social care
 Early intervention for our vulnerable residents 

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Financial implications are contained within the overall body of the report.

7. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 Staff, departmental and trade union representatives will be consulted individually and 
collectively on any adverse staffing implications arising from the Draft 2019/20 Budget. 
Managers have also been asked to encourage and facilitate staff involvement in budget and 
service planning.

8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 The adoption of the budget and the setting of the council tax are matters reserved for the 
Council upon recommendation from the Executive. The Local Government Finance act 1992 
(as amended) requires the Council to set an amount of Council tax for each financial year and 
provides that it must be set before 11th March in the financial year preceding that for which it is 
set. Sections 73-79 of the Localism Act 2011 amended the calculations billing and precepting 
authorities need to make in determining the basic amount of Council tax. The changes 
included new sections 31 A and 31 B to the Local Government Finance Act 1992 which has 

Page 104



 11

modified the way in which a billing authority calculates its budget requirement and basic 
amount of Council Tax.

8.2 Schedule 5 to the Localism Act 2011 inserted a new section 52ZB in the 1992 Act which sets 
out the duty on billing authorities, and precepting authorities to each determine whether their 
relevant basic amount of council tax for a financial year is excessive. If an authority’s relevant 
basic amount of council tax is excessive, the provisions in relation to the duty to hold a 
referendum will apply.

8.3 The making of these budget decisions at full Council is a statutory responsibility for all 
Members. Members should also have regard to the changes from the Localism Act relating to 
council tax increases and the recent introduction of the Adult Social Care precept. The Council 
has a number of statutory duties which it must fulfil by law – although there can be an element 
of discretion on level of service provision. The Council also discharges a range of discretionary 
services. The Council is not bound to carry out such activities in the same way as it is for 
statutory duties – although it may be bound contractually to do so. A decision to case or 
reduce provision of a discretionary service must be taken in accordance with sound 
public/administrative law decision making principles. The Council must also comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duties in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In doing so, the council 
must have due regard to elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimization, advance 
equality of opportunity and foster good relations with persons who share a protected 
characteristic.

8.4 The Local Government Act 2003 included new requirements to be followed by local 
authorities, which includes the CIPFA Prudential Code. This includes obligations, which 
includes ensuring adequacy of future year’s reserves in making budget decisions and 
section 25 of that Act requires the Director of Finance to report on the robustness of the 
estimates made for the purposes of calculating the Council Tax and the adequacy of the 
reserves. Further details to support these obligations will be reflected in the 2019/20 Council 
Tax report to be reported to the February meeting of the Executive.

Non-Applicable Sections: Procurement Implications

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

Finance monitoring, Estimate Documents, etc all held
in Finance Section

Page 105



This page is left intentionally blank



Appendix 1A

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO

DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20 - SUMMARY

2017/18 

Actual
Service Area

2018/19 

Budget

Increased 

costs

Other 

Changes

2019/20 Draft 

Budget
£ £ £ £ £

Recreation

1,686,152 Culture 1,786,450 32,330   997,000Cr     821,780

5,783,314 Libraries 5,030,470 96,450   143,000Cr     4,983,920

219,296 Town Centre Management & Business Support 188,580 2,510   44,000Cr       147,090

7,688,762 7,005,500 131,290   1,184,000Cr  5,952,790

Planning

  6,835Cr         Building Control 81,490 4,900 0 86,390

  139,841Cr     Land Charges   125,570Cr      350 0   125,220Cr     

764,518 Planning 736,010 15,000 26,160 777,170

849,279 Renewal 801,390 16,410 24,840 842,640

1,467,121 1,493,320 36,660 51,000 1,580,980

ECS - Housing

194,369 Housing Improvement 203,170 4,010 0 207,180

194,369 203,170 4,010 0 207,180

Operational Housing

  94Cr              Enabling Activities   900Cr             0 0   900Cr            

  1,837,727Cr  Housing Benefits   1,984,320Cr     39,700Cr   0   2,024,020Cr  

8,073,614 Housing Needs 6,240,970 125,550 2,645,000 9,011,520

912,924 Supporting People 1,013,430 20,260 0 1,033,690

7,148,717 5,269,180 106,110 2,645,000 8,020,290

16,498,969 13,971,170 278,070 1,512,000 15,761,240

  24,037Cr       TOTAL NON CONTROLLABLE 2,827,910 4,530   3,111,240Cr    278,800Cr     

5,674,596 TOTAL EXCLUDED RECHARGES 5,531,310 0 338,090 5,869,400

22,149,528 PORTFOLIO TOTAL 22,330,390 282,600   1,261,150Cr  21,351,840

Page 107



Appendix 1B

Ref

 

VARIATION 

IN 2019/20 

 ORIGINAL 

BUDGET 

2018/19 

£'000 £'000

1    2018/19 BUDGET 22,330      

2    Increased Costs 283           

 

Movements Between Portfolios/Departments

3    

 Contribution to a Customer Relations Officer post in ECHS 

Strategy Division 7Cr         7Cr            

Real Changes

Savings identified for 2019/20 as part of the 2018/19 Budget process

4    Impact of Libraries contract awarded in 2017/18 143Cr     4,376      

5    

 Savings previously approved relating to the Leisure Services 

Agreement with Mytime Active  232Cr     997         

6    More Homes Bromley Savings 982Cr     1,357Cr     14,865    

Other Real Changes:

7     Placements 2,252    14,865    

8     Additional Cost of Homelessness Reduction Act 921       0             

9     Visiting and Fraud Protection 310       0             

10   Increase in Rents 204       9,713Cr   

11   Absorption of inflation for statutory planning fees 51         1,698Cr   

12   Legal Costs 40         108         

13   Homelessness Reduction Act Grant 33         233Cr      

14   Overhaul Statutory Homelessness Grant 9           9Cr          

15   Beckenham and Penge Business Improvement District (BID) 44Cr       84           

16   Additional PRS Lettings 45Cr       14,865    

17   Modular Units 90Cr       3,641        14,865    

New Savings Identified for 2019/20 (subject to approval)

18  Leisure Services Lease Proposal 1,515Cr     997         

19  Variations in Capital Charges 2,375Cr     

20  Variations in Recharges 338           

21   Variations in Building Maintenance 9               

22  Variations in Insurances 5               

23  2019/20 DRAFT BUDGET 21,352      

SUMMARY OF BUDGET VARIATIONS 2019/20

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO

Page 108



Appendix 1C

Ref Comments

Movements Between Portfolios/Departments

3 Contribution to a Customer Relations Officer post in ECHS Strategy Division (Cr £7k)

As part of an evaluation and restructure of the ECHS Strategy, Performance and Engagement 

Division during 2018/19 a virement was actioned to transfer budgets from the other divisions 

within ECHS to fund the creation of a Customer Relations Officer post.  The full year 

contribution from Housing Division is £7k.

Real Changes

4 Impact of Libraries contract awarded in 2017/18 (Cr £143k)

On 19 July 2017, Executive approved the award for the provision of library services to 

Greenwich Leisure Limited for 10 years from November 2017. This adjustment reflects the net 

additional savings for 2019/20, built into the forecast reported to Members in February 2018. 

5 Savings relating to the Leisure Services Agreement with Mytime Active (Cr £232k)

This reflects the savings previously agreed with Mytime Active, following negotiations for a 5 

year contract extension for the period 2019 – 2024, as reported to the Executive on 20 July 

2011. 

6 More Homes Bromley Savings (Cr £982k)

This represents the third and final year of phased savings expected to be achieved on 

temporary accommodation budgets from the More Homes Bromley scheme.

7 Placements (Dr £2,252k)

The growth pressure on the temporary accommodation budgets is due to the increase in 

homelessness in the borough.

8 Additional Cost of Homelessness Reduction Act (Dr £921k)

Reduction in the new burdens grant the council receives to help implement the Homelessness 

Reduction Act.

9 Visiting and Fraud Protection (Dr £310k)

This is to provide the budget required to make the successful pilot around early intervention 

become part of the on-going Housing structure.  By providing support to clients early, this 

helps delay or prevent clients becoming homeless and reducing the pressure on temporary 

accommodation budgets.

10 Increase in Rents (Dr £204k)

Due to the number of clients in financial difficulty, the budget for rental income the Council 

receives needs to be reduced to reflect a more realistic level.

11 Statutory Planning Fees Inflation (Dr £51k)

Estimates are prepared on the basis that inflation is added to both income and expenditure. As 

planning fees are statutory, savings have to be found to absorb the inflation rate. 

12 Legal Costs (Dr £40k)

Due to changes in legislation Housing requires extra budget to fund the cost of legal services 

to handle the increase in caseload from the homelessness service.

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO

Notes on Budget Variations in 2019/20

Page 109



Appendix 1C

13 Homelessness Reduction Act Grant (Dr £33k)

Reduction in the new burdens grant the council receives to help implement the Homelessness 

Reduction Act.

14 Overhaul Statutory Homelessness Grant (Dr £9k)

Removal of the one off grant to support a change in legislation.

15 Beckenham and Penge Business Improvement District (BID) (Cr £44k)

This reflects the savings following the establishment of BIDs in Beckenham and Penge Town 

Centres, as reported to the Executive on 7 November 2017.

16 Additional PRS Lettings (Cr £45k)

The estimated savings in the cost of placing Homeless clients in current temporary 

accommodation properties compared with the cost in placing them in newly found properties in 

the Private Rented Sector.

17 Modular Units (Cr £90k)

The estimated savings in the cost of placing Homeless clients in current properties compared 

with the cost in placing them in newly built modular homes.  This is expected to help mitigate 

the increase in costs of the homelessness placements budget.

18 Leisure Services Lease Proposal (Cr £1,515k)

On 28 November 2018, Executive agreed a 40 year lease for Council owned leisure facilities 

across the Borough with Mytime Active. The decision is expected to generate savings of 

£1,515k in 2019/20, reducing to £1,484k from 2020/21 onwards.

19 Variations in Capital Charges (Cr £2,375k)

The variation in capital charges is due to a combination of the following:
   (i)  Depreciation – the impact of revaluations or asset disposals in 2017/18 (after the 2018/19 

budget was agreed) and in the first half of 2018/19.
   (ii) Revenue Expenditure Funded by Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) – mainly due to 

variations in the value of schemes in the 2019/20 Capital Programme that do not add value to 

the Council’s fixed asset base. 
   (iii) Government Grants – mainly due to variations in credits for capital grants receivable in 

respect of 2019/20 Capital Programme schemes, which are used to finance expenditure that is 

treated as REFCUS.
These charges are required to be made to service revenue accounts, but an adjustment is 

made below the line to avoid a charge on Council Tax.

20 Variations in Recharges (Dr £338k)
Variations in cross-departmental recharges are offset by corresponding variations elsewhere 

and therefore have no impact on the overall position.

21 Variations in Building Maintenance (Dr £9k)

Variations in building maintenance are due to the realignment of budgets to reflect business 

priorities. There are corresponding adjustments in other portfolios and these are balanced out 

across the council with a net nil variation.

22 Variations in Insurance (Dr £5k)

Insurance recharges to individual portfolios have changed between years, in some cases 

significantly, partly because an extra year of claims experience since the 2018/19 budget was 

finalised has been factored in. The overall variation across the Council is Dr £66k.

Page 110



Appendix 1D

Service area Employees Premises Transport

Supplies and 

Services

Third Party 

Payments

Transfer 

Payments Income

Controllable 

Recharges

Capital 

Charges/   

Financing

Total

Controllable

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Recreation

Culture 708,420 61,190 5,870 59,600 63,850 0   15,810Cr              61,340Cr         0 821,780

Libraries 177,000 297,710 0 191,660 4,317,550 0 0 0 0 4,983,920

Town Centre Management & Business Support 102,340 27,450 930 16,370 23,270 0   23,270Cr            0 0 147,090

987,760 386,350 6,800 267,630 4,404,670 0   39,080Cr              61,340Cr         0 5,952,790

Planning

Building Control 794,280 0 12,090 80,070 0 0   800,050Cr          0 0 86,390

Land Charges 168,470 0 100 11,860 0 0   305,650Cr          0 0   125,220Cr       

Planning 2,309,560 0 21,570 53,910 15,910 0   1,623,780Cr       0 0 777,170

Renewal 763,140 9,050 1,720 69,160 0 0   430Cr                 0 0 842,640

4,035,450 9,050 35,480 215,000 15,910 0   2,729,910Cr       0 0 1,580,980

ECS - Housing

Housing Improvement 404,120 0 4,050 4,030 0 0   136,540Cr            68,480Cr         0 207,180

404,120 0 4,050 4,030 0 0   136,540Cr            68,480Cr         0 207,180

Operational Housing

Enabling Activities 0 0 0 0 0 0   900Cr                 0 0   900Cr              

Housing Benefits 0 0 0 524,100 0 105,964,770   108,512,890Cr   0 0   2,024,020Cr    

Housing Needs 3,048,380 97,680 13,840 852,910 19,205,990 0   14,152,790Cr       54,490Cr         0 9,011,520

Supporting People 0 0 0 0 1,033,690 0 0 0 0 1,033,690

3,048,380 97,680 13,840 1,377,010 20,239,680 105,964,770   122,666,580Cr     54,490Cr         0 8,020,290

8,475,710 493,080 60,170 1,863,670 24,660,260 105,964,770   125,572,110Cr     184,310Cr       0 15,761,240

RENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO

DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20 - SUBJECTIVE SUMMARY

P
age 111



Appendix 1DRENEWAL, RECREATION & HOUSING PORTFOLIO

DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20 - SUBJECTIVE SUMMARY

Service area

Capital 

Charges/   

Financing

Repairs, 

Maintenance 

& Insurance

Property 

Rental 

Income

Not Directly 

Controllable

Recharges 

In

Total Cost of 

Service Recharges Out

Total Net 

Budget

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Recreation

Culture 1,795,000 126,810   850,250Cr    1,071,560 444,170 2,337,510   324,810Cr          2,012,700

Libraries 311,000 209,080   10,400Cr      509,680 148,550 5,642,150   61,680Cr            5,580,470

Town Centre Management & Business Support 0 200 0 200 141,200 288,490 0 288,490

2,106,000 336,090   860,650Cr    1,581,440 733,920 8,268,150   386,490Cr          7,881,660

Planning

Building Control 0 1,560 0 1,560 222,490 310,440   107,130Cr          203,310

Land Charges 0 510 0 510 186,670 61,960 0 61,960

Planning 0 5,060 0 5,060 1,933,230 2,715,460   920,520Cr          1,794,940

Renewal 0 1,510 0 1,510 380,950 1,225,100   315,590Cr          909,510

0 8,640 0 8,640 2,723,340 4,312,960   1,343,240Cr       2,969,720

ECS - Housing

Housing Improvement   1,995,000Cr    2,460 0   1,992,540Cr   365,540   1,419,820Cr    0   1,419,820Cr    

  1,995,000Cr    2,460 0   1,992,540Cr   365,540   1,419,820Cr    0   1,419,820Cr    

Operational Housing

Enabling Activities 0 0 0 0 143,820 142,920 0 142,920

Housing Benefits 0 0 0 0 2,149,390 125,370 0 125,370

Housing Needs 106,000 17,660 0 123,660 1,631,950 10,767,130   148,830Cr          10,618,300

Supporting People 0 0 0 0 0 1,033,690 0 1,033,690

106,000 17,660 0 123,660 3,925,160 12,069,110   148,830Cr          11,920,280

217,000 364,850   860,650Cr      278,800Cr      7,747,960 23,230,400   1,878,560Cr       21,351,840

P
age 112



1

Report No. 
DRR19/01

London Borough of Bromley

PART ONE - PUBLIC

Decision Maker: RENEWAL RECREATION AND HOUSING POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date: Tuesday 22nd January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: RENEWAL RECREATION AND HOUSING PORTFOLIO PLAN -
QUARTER TWO UPDATE 

Contact Officer: John Gledhill. Head of Leisure
E-mail:  john.gledhill@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Executive Director of Environment & Community Services

Ward: (All Wards);

1. Reason for report

1.1 The report provides  a quarter two update on the Renewal, Recreation and Housing 
Portfolio Plan. (Appendix 1) and the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Risk Register 
(Appendix 2).

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development & Scrutiny Committee 
are asked to review and note the contents of the report (in Appendix 1) and 
provide their comments to the Portfolio Holder.

Page 113

Agenda Item 15



2

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing Policy:

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council, Healthy Bromley, Quality Environment Vibrant, Thriving Town 
Centres, Regeneration of Borough including meeting housing requirements :

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: Not applicable

2. Ongoing costs: Not Applicable:

3. Budget head/performance centre: Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio 2018/19 
approved budget and capital programme.

4. Total current budget for this head:   £64.86m as detailed in 5.1 below

5. Source of funding: Existing revenue budget for 2018/19, S106 funding, Earmarked Reserves, 
Capital Receipts, Investment/Growth Fund, External Funding (GLA & Treasury), TfL LIP funding
& Town Centre Development Fund monies

Personnel

1. Number of staff (current and additional): 197.7ftes 

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: N/A

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: None:

2. Call-in: Not Applicable:

Procurement

1. Summary of Procurement Implications: N/A

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected):  All those resident in the 
London Borough of Bromley

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments? Not Applicable

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A

Page 114



3

3. COMMENTARY

Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan 2018/19

3.1 The Renewal, Recreation and Housing department is responsible for a range of 
leisure, culture and recreation services across the Borough.  Since April 2018, housing 
has also been incorporated into the department ensuring a more strategic approach to 
regeneration across the Borough.

3.2 The department leads and manages a range of economic initiatives, including town 
centre development, a  leisure and culture offer, including the management of libraries 
and Council owned leisure, theatre, and museum services.
Services are delivered through 5 operational divisions: 

 Town Centres and Business Development
 Leisure, Culture and Libraries
 Regeneration 
 Housing
 Planning

3.3 The division’s key aims are to support and deliver the following Building a Better 
Bromley Priorities:

 Promote economic development in the Borough
 Promote, high quality housing development to meet the Borough’s housing 

requirements
 Ensure good strategic asset management 
 Support vibrant thriving town centres

3.4  The attached report (Appendix 1) summarises the aims of department for 2018/19. 
The portfolio is continuing to pursue the following outcomes:

1. Economic development

2. Protection, conservation and enhancement of the natural and built environment

3. Enhanced opportunities for leisure, cultural activities and community led services

4. Affordable, decent and secure homes 

3.5 The department has robust monitoring in place for services delivered directly and on 
the Council’s behalf by contractors, as well as ambitious plans to support 
development.   The Portfolio Plan is a key tool for identifying strategic outcomes, as 
well measuring success.  For each aim, the plan identified: 

• Details of actions to be taken 
• Measures of success 
• Target dates for completion  
• Lead officer 
• Quarter 2 update

3.6 The plan monitors our performance in relation to how our work impacts on the ability 
to deliver our strategic outcomes, with performance measures related to each 
strategic outcome identified.

Page 115



4

3.7 The Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development & Scrutiny Committee are 
invited to comment on the quarter two update of the plan and make recommendations 
to the Portfolio Holder with respect to any amendments or additions.

3.8 The Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio Holder is invited to review the 
recommendations from the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development 
& Scrutiny Committee and provide comments on the quarter two update of the 
Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan.

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Outcomes, aims and actions identified in Renewal, Recreation and Housing 
Portfolio Plan 2018/19 contribute towards the Bromley 2020 Vision and ‘Building a 
Better Bromley’ priorities, and towards meeting relevant legislative requirements.

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan 2018/19 referred to in Appendix 
1 will be implemented using the agreed controllable revenue budget for 2018/19 
together with any additional external funding that officers have already secured as 
well as other funding secured throughout the year as detailed below: -

R & R Hsg Total
2018/19 £'000 £'000 £'000
RR&H Portfolio latest approved controllable budget 8,454.9 5,468.2 13,923.1
Earmarked Reserves 1,740.4 0.0 1,740.4
TfL LIP Funding (Bromley North & Beckenham) 1,432.0 0.0 1,432.0
S106 contributions 1,499.8 1,178.1 2,677.9

3,696.5 502.9 4,199.4
Capital Financing 20,932.0 0.0 20,932.0
Private Developer contribution to Site G 100.0 0.0 100.0
Investment Fund/Growth Fund 12,754.7 100.0 12,854.7
External Funding (GLA, NHB, Treasury) 5,252.2 1,749.6 7,001.8

55,862.5 8,998.8 64,861.3

LBB capital receipts/revenue funding

5.2 It should be noted that the unallocated balance of the growth fund as at 28.11.18 is 
£10.177m.

Non-Applicable Sections: Impact on vulnerable adults and children, Procurement 

implications, Personnel implications & Legal implications

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

Renewal Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan:
Renewal Recreation and Housing Policy Development and
Scrutiny Committee. 18th September 2018.

Page 116



Appendix 1

Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan 

PRIORITY 1 – ECONOMIC  DEVELOPMENT
To support a vision for vibrant, thriving town centres promoting industrial development to generate new income and employment opportunities

Rationale Key strategies/plans
Through delivery of a range of town centre developments, improving 
working and living spaces, Bromley will enhance its economic potential. 

Aligns to Building a Better Bromley

 Regeneration in the Borough  through economic 
development and investment

 Supporting local infrastructure development

 Local plan and 15 year vision for town centre 
development

 Robust Asset Management 

Bromley Area action Plan
Renewal Strategy
Strategic Assessment 
Management 

Priority 1: Economic Development

Action Detail Measure of Success  Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

1 Support the vitality of 
Bromley Town Centre, 
including continued 
delivery of the 
Bromley Area Action 
Plan

A) Working with 
Countryside 
Properties to secure 
planning consent for 
Phase 1 of 
Opportunity Site G.

Planning consent for 
Phase 1 by Countryside 
secured

30-Dec-18 Kevin 
Munnelly 

Provisional date set for consideration of 
the  Countryside planning application 12th 
Feb 2019.

P
age 117



Priority 1: Economic Development

Action Detail Measure of Success  Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

B) Prepare and serve 
Compulsory Purchase 
Order (CPO) 
documentation and 
agreed timetable for 
CPO Inquiry on Phase 
1.

Process to commence 
on the securing of 
planning consent for the 
Phase 1 by Countryside

31-Mar-19 Kevin 
Munnelly

Bevan Brittan LLP commissioned to 
provide legal support in drafting the CPO 
authority, Order and supporting 
documentation. CPO timetable is 
dependent upon determination of 
planning application.  

C) Produce and secure 
Member approval of 
Bromley town centre 
AAP review 
programme

Production and 
approval of AAP Review 
(subject to the adoption 
of the Local Plan)

31-Mar-19 Kevin 
Munnelly

Work is progressing on this review in 
discussion with the Portfolio Holder and 
Ward Councillors.

D) Complete all 
ground plane 
improvement works, 
delivered and let the 
Market Kiosks and 
agreed the design and 
procurement of the 
commercial units and 
mirrored canopies.

The works on the 
ground plane Market 
kiosks are being 
completed. Design  
agreed and 
procurement 
commenced

30-Nov-19 Kevin 
Munnelly

Planning permission submitted for kiosks 
and shops.  Review of the mirrored 
canopies is underway.  Public realm 
works are being redesigned to 
incorporate Hostile Vehicle Mitigation 
Safety measures at Elmfield Road 
junction. All works to be completed 
before  Easter 2019   

2 Support and develop 
the vitality of 
Beckenham

A)  Continue to 
support the transition 
arrangements for the 
Business Improvement 
District (BID) and the 
newly established BID 

BID Team fully 
established and 
successfully managing 
the town centre.  

Bid team fully 
established 
and 
operational 
by 
September 

John Gledhill
A BID manager was appointed for 
Beckenham in September 2018. The BID 
manager will attend and provide a 
progress update to the Renewal and 
Recreation and Housing PDS on 22 
January 2019.

P
age 118



Priority 1: Economic Development

Action Detail Measure of Success  Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

Board in Beckenham. 2018

B) Fully completed and 
snagged public realm 
improvement scheme.

The works being 
completed

30-Nov-18 Kevin 
Munnelly

The main scheme works were completed 
before the end of November and initial 
snagging commenced.  A number of 
granite planter and wooden seats will be 
installed in January 2019 and the scheme 
will be complete. 

A) Consult on and 
adopt the Orpington 
Town Centre renewal 
strategy

Production of the 
Renewal Strategy

31-Mar-19 Kevin 
Munnelly/
Mike Watkins

Initial strategy structure endorsed by the 
RRH PDS Committee and being consulted 
on with ward councillors  

3 Support and 
develop the vitality 
of Orpington 

B) Fully completed the 
public realm 
improvements

The works being 
completed

30-Nov-18 Kevin 
Munnelly

Due to ongoing supply chain delays the 
completion of the public realm scheme 
has been delayed until the end of January 
2019. 

A) Continue to support 
the transition 
arrangements for the 
Business Improvement 
District and the newly 
established BID Board 
in Penge

BID Team fully 
established and 
successfully managing 
the town centre.  

Bid team fully 
established 
and 
operational 
by 
September 
2018

John Gledhill A BID manager was appointed for Penge 
in September 2018. The BID manager will 
attend and provide a progress update to 
the Renewal and Recreation and Housing 
PDS on 22 January 2019.

4 Support and 
develop the vitality 
of Penge and the 
borough’s smaller 
town centres 

B) Fully complete 
public realm 
improvements.

The works being 
completed

30-Nov-18 Kevin 
Munnelly

Public realm improvement s completed 
by the end of November. Shop front 
improvement scheme is currently bring 
rolled out.  

5 Consider the 
establishment of a 
Business 
Improvement 
District (BID) in 

Appoint consultants to 
undertake a feasibility 
study for the 
establishment of a 
BID. 

Feasibility study 
completed. 

Dec 2018. John Gledhill Following a market testing exercise CMS 
were appointed in October 2019 to 
undertake a feasibility study to consider 
setting up BID in Chislehurst.  A report on 
the outcome of the feasibility work will 

P
age 119



Priority 1: Economic Development

Action Detail Measure of Success  Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

Chislehurst. Report the results of 
feasibility study to the 
RR and H PDS 
Committee.
Subject to outcome of 
the feasibility study 
and RR and H PDS 
Committee approval, 
appoint consultants to 
develop a BID 
proposal and 
undertake a Ballot of 
local business rate 
payers on the 
establishment of a 
BID. 
Subject to a ‘yes’ vote 
for a BID from the 
Ballot, develop the 
required legal and 
operational 
arrangements and 
establish the new BID 
Team.  

Report to R R and H 
Committee. 

Subject to outcome of 
feasibility study and 
ballot, establish a BID 
team. 

6 March  
2019.

June 2020   

be considered by the Renewal and 
Recreation and Housing PDS on 6 March 
2019.
 

6 Consider the 
establishment of a 
Business 
Improvement 
District (BID) in 
West Wickham. 

Appoint consultants to 
undertake a feasibility 
study for the 
establishment of a 
BID. 
Report the results of 
feasibility study to the 
RR and H PDS 

Feasibility study 
completed. 

Report to R R and H 
Committee. 

Dec 2018.

6 March 
2019.

John Gledhill Following a market testing exercise CMS 
were appointed in October 2019 to 
undertake a feasibility study to consider 
setting up BID in West Wickham.  A 
report on the outcome of the feasibility 
work will be considered by the Renewal 
and Recreation and Housing PDS on 6 
March 2019.

P
age 120



Priority 1: Economic Development

Action Detail Measure of Success  Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

Committee.
Subject to outcome of 
the feasibility study 
and RR and H PDS 
Committee approval, 
appoint consultants to 
develop a BID 
proposal and 
undertake a Ballot of 
local business rate 
payers on the 
establishment of a 
BID. 
Subject to a ‘yes’ vote 
for a BID from the 
Ballot, develop the 
required legal and 
operational 
arrangements and 
establish the new BID 
Team.  

Subject to outcome of 
feasibility study and 
ballot, establish a BID 
team. 

Aug 2020   
 

7  Promote business 
Investment and 
development in the 
borough’s key 
commercial and 
industrial areas and 
employment priority 
zones 

A) Complete a review 
of Council assets and 
assess the commercial 
opportunities for the 
provision of WIFI and 
Full Fibre networks 
utilizing Council assets 
to improve Gigabit 
connectivity for local 
businesses and 
residents

Production of the 
review 

30-Nov-18 Kevin 
Munnelly

Scoping report due to be completed in 
early January.

P
age 121



Priority 1: Economic Development

Action Detail Measure of Success  Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

B) Carry out a review 
of the Growth Fund 
and report findings 
and recommendations 
to the Executive.

Report taken to 
Executive

Oct-18 Kevin 
Munnelly

Scoping report due to be completed in 
early January. This will then inform a 
review of the Growth programme report 
to the Executive.

P
age 122



PRIORITY 2 – PROTECTION , CONSERVATION AND ENHANCEMENT OF BOROUGH
To support a vision for economic investment and development to support the Council’s Local Plan

Rationale Key strategies/plans
To provide local planning services that support, maintain and enhance 
the Borough 

Aligns to Building a Better Bromley

Set vision for development in the Borough
Regeneration of Borough
Lobby GLA and other bodies to support local infrastructure 
development
Excellent Council 
Quality Environment 

Housing strategy
Bromley Area Action Plan
Community Infrastructure  
Levy

Priority  2 Protection, conservation and enhancement of the natural and built environment 

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

1 Provide Local Planning Policy 
services. 

A) Develop the new 
Local Plan which will 
replace the Unitary 
Development Plan 
for Bromley.

B) Maintain the 
Council’s planning 
policy position.
Respond to regional 
and national policy 

Adoption of Local 
Plan

Representing LBB 
policy position at 
London Plan 
Inquiry.

Winter 
2018/19

Spring 2019 
(hearings 
rescheduled).

Katie Ryde, Gill 
Slater

Public consultation on Main 
Modifications (22.06.18 – 
10.08.18). Responses submitted 
to the Inspector.

Assessment of Mayors 1,000 
minor changes to the London Plan 
and preparation of hearing 
evidence.

P
age 123



Priority  2 Protection, conservation and enhancement of the natural and built environment 

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

changes and to 
external 
consultations.
Respond to internal 
and external requests 
for planning advice

Responses made to 
consultations

On going

Responses made to five external 
consultations.

On-going.

A) Consulted on the 
CIL Draft Charging 
Schedule.

Launching the 6 
week consultation.

 April/May 
2019

Terri Holding Viability evidence being revised 
and consultation IDP evidence 
updated in preparation for 
consultation.

B) Submit the CIL 
Draft Charging 
Schedule for 
Examination.

Submission for 
Examination

July 2019 Terri Holding Submission date revised to 
account for consultation 
responses.

2 Develop Local Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and 
maintain Mayoral CIL collection.

C) Continue to collect 
Mayoral CIL in line 
with CIL Regulations

Serviced delivered 
and no appeals.

Ongoing 
service Gill Slater

Q1 MCIL payment made to TfL.
Q2 MCIL payments collected

2i

2ii

Maintain Local Land Charges 
services.

 Maintain Street Naming and 
Numbering,
Local Land and Property 
Gazetteer services

Continue to maintain 
Local Land Charges 
and Common Land 
Registers and 
requests in 
accordance with 
national regulations.

Continue to  maintain 
Street Naming and 
Numbering and Local 
Land and Property 
Gazetteer (LLPG) 

Service delivered in 
line with Local Land 
Charges Act 1975 
and rules 1977.

LBB address data 
service delivered.

Ongoing 
service

Ongoing 
service

Jim Kehoe

Jim Kehoe

Service has been delivered in line 
with regulations.

Service has been delivered in line 
with regulations.

P
age 124



Priority  2 Protection, conservation and enhancement of the natural and built environment 

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

records and requests 
in accordance with 
national regulations

3 Maintain Building Control 
services

Continue to respond 
to Building Control 
requests in 
accordance with 
national regulations.

Service delivered in 
line with national 
regulations. 

Ongoing 
service 

Jim Kehoe Service has been delivered in line 
with regulations.

4 Ensure the ongoing effectiveness 
of planning regulatory functions

Made considered 
determinations of 
planning applications 
within a reasonable 
period of time, 
acknowledging 
national targets 
whilst focusing on 
delivering a quality 
outcome for the 
borough. 

Protected trees, 
listed buildings and 
conservation areas in 
the borough by 
improving the 
effectiveness of 
planning functions by 
resolving cases more 
quickly and 
considering more 
cases of planning 
control.

• Determine 65% of 
major applications 
within 13 weeks of 
receipt 
• Determine 70% of 
minor applications 
within 13 weeks of 
receipt 
• Determine 82% of 
other applications 
within 8 weeks of 
receipt

Ongoing 
service 

Tim Horsman 100% of major applications 
determined in time 

71% of minor applications 
determined in time. 

82% of other applications 
determined in time.

P
age 125



Priority  2 Protection, conservation and enhancement of the natural and built environment 

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead Officer Quarter 2 update 

5 Planning Enforcement A) Determined over 
750 cases where a 
breach of planning 
control may have 
taken place, using 
the Council’s 
Planning 
Enforcement Policy 
to guide any actions 
to be taken.

Number of cases 
determined 

Ongoing 
service 

John 
Stephenson 

436 cases determined.

P
age 126



PRIORITY 3 – LEISURE,  CULTURAL ACTIVITIES AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
To support a vision for enhancing leisure, cultural and community activities across the Borough 

Rationale Key strategies/plans
To sustain services that promote residents health and wellbeing, 
including a diverse offer of leisure, cultural and community services.
 

Aligns to Building a Better Bromley

 Regeneration in the Borough  through economic 
development and investment

 Supporting local infrastructure development

 Local plan and 15 year vision for town centre 
development

 Robust Asset Management 

 Excellent Council 

Bromley Area Action Plan
Renewal Strategy
Strategic Assessment 
Management

Priority 3 Enhance opportunities for leisure, cultural activities and community led services

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead 
Officer 

Quarter 2 update 

P
age 127



Priority 3 Enhance opportunities for leisure, cultural activities and community led services

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead 
Officer 

Quarter 2 update 

1 To provide a comprehensive and 
efficient library service considering 
new ways of delivering library 
services in challenging financial 
circumstances

A) Commenced the 
second year of a 10 
year contract with 
Greenwich Leisure 
Limited (GLL) our 
Service Provider to 
deliver Bromley 
Library Services 
under the 
supervision and 
direction of the 
Council. Produced 
ongoing evidence of 
performance and 
adherence by GLL to 
the contract and 
specification using a 
suite of KPIs to 
ensure that service 
levels are being 
maintained. 
Monitored the 
contract to 
encourage the 
Service Provider to 
think innovatively 
and continually look 
for ways to develop 
and improve the 
service whilst 
continuing to reduce 
operating costs and 
achieving value for 

Service Provider 
delivers on KPIs in 
line with the 
Contract and 
Specification.  

March 2019 Tim Woolgar September 2018 - Performance 
Report delivered to Renewal, 
Recreation and Housing PDS and 
Contracts and Commissioning 
Sub-Committee demonstrating 
that the Contractor has been 
delivering in line with the 
contract, specification and Key 
Performance Indicators.

P
age 128



Priority 3 Enhance opportunities for leisure, cultural activities and community led services

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead 
Officer 

Quarter 2 update 

money

B) Further explored 
and identified 
options for the 
upgrade and re-
development of 
library facilities 
including 
progressing a mixed 
development 
proposal for 
Chislehurst Library 
to include retail and 
residential 
opportunities and 
new library facilities 
and a proposed 
shared Leisure and 
Library facility at the 
existing West 
Wickham Leisure 
Centre site. 
Developed 
Identified options 
for upgrading a 
range of libraries 
working alongside 
GLL our Service 
Provider

Planning Application 
for Chislehurst site 
submitted by 
developer.

Appoint design 
consultant following 
Executive Approval 
in March 2018

Executive approval 
for planning 
application and 
scheme progression 

Planning Application 
for West Wickham 
site submitted by 
developer 

Dec 2018

September 
2018

October 
2019

Jan 2020

Mike 
Watkins/
Alicia 
Munday

Chislehurst Library - Development 
Agreement still to be concluded.  
All parties confirmed 
commitment and Agreement 
being finalised by Legal.

A design consultant was 
appointed for the West Wickham 
development in October 2018. 
The consultants are producing 
initial design concepts and 
determining viability. An update 
Report will be considered by the 
executive in February 2019, 
setting out the design context, 
funding options and next stages 
of the development proposals.

P
age 129



Priority 3 Enhance opportunities for leisure, cultural activities and community led services

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead 
Officer 

Quarter 2 update 

A) Work with 
AECOM to submit 
the Outline Planning 
Application for 
Crystal Palace Park 
and work with the 
Crystal Palace Park 
Trust to build their 
capacity to take on 
some management 
and maintenance 
responsibilities in 
the park.

Outline Planning 
Application 
submitted.

Dec 2018 Lydia Lee The team continues to work with 
the Trust to develop their 
capacity. The Outline Planning 
Application will be submitted 
following a decision on affordable 
housing provision. The Housing 
Options project board will 
consider how to proceed at their 
January meeting.

2

B) Compete the 
Crystal Palace Park 
Improvement 
scheme; finish 
construction of the 
café and open to the 
public and monitor 
the recipients of 
grants and support 
them to deliver their 
projects.

Café is open to the 
public.

Community Grants 
fund Projects are 
successfully 
delivered.

Café 
Construction: 
January 2019
Community 
Grants: 
March 2019

Lydia Lee The café construction is due to 
complete in January as 
scheduled. Brown and Green 
have been awarded the lease to 
operate.

The Community Project Fund 
grants are all awarded and 
outstanding projects will be 
complete this financial year.

 Establish Bromley as a destination 
for culture

C) Take part in 
national heritage 

Take part in Heritage 
Open Days. 

March 2019 / 
Ongoing 

Lydia Lee The team has delivered Heritage 
Open Day events and activities.

P
age 130



Priority 3 Enhance opportunities for leisure, cultural activities and community led services

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead 
Officer 

Quarter 2 update 

and cultural events.
D) Finish 
construction and fit 
out of the Biggin Hill 
Memorial Museum 
and open to the 
public

Biggin Hill Memorial 
Museum opens to 
the public

November 
2018

Lydia Lee The construction is due to be 
complete on the 14th December 
and fit out as commenced. The 
opening date of the museum is 
the 30th January 2019. 

3 A) Continue to 
support the 
proposals by 
Blackheath and 
Bromley Harriers to 
take over the 
management of 
Norman Park 
Athletics Track and 
for them to develop 
a new pavilion and 
community facilities.

Planning applications 
by Blackheath and 
Bromley Harriers are 
submitted and 
approved, in respect 
to the Athletics Track 
and their clubhouse 
in Hayes. 
Implementation of 
the proposals for the 
redevelopment of 
the Athletics Track.

Planning 
applications 
for the 2 
sites to be 
submitted by 
September 
2018.
Planning 
consents for 
the 2 sites 
agreed Jan 
2019. 
Development 
proposals to 
be started by 
March 2019. 

John Gledhill Planning is awaiting further 
information in respect to the 
application submitted by 
Blackheath and Bromley Harriers 
for the development at Norman 
Park Track. Blackheath and 
Bromley Harriers have yet to 
submit their planning application 
for the redevelopment of their 
clubhouse site in Hayes.

Enhance the borough’s leisure 
facilities

B) Identified a 
suitable developer 
and awarded a 
contract for a mixed 
use development to 
include a community 
hub, housing and 
public realm work 
and a new 

A suitable developer 
identified and 
contract awarded. 

Report to 
Executive in 
October 
2018. 

John Gledhill Proposals are being further 
refined by Officers.

P
age 131



Priority 3 Enhance opportunities for leisure, cultural activities and community led services

Action Detail Measure of 
Success

 Target 
Date 

Lead 
Officer 

Quarter 2 update 

gymnastics centre at 
Chipperfield Road, 
St Paul’s Cray.
C) Secure for the 
long term 
arrangements for 
the Councils leisure 
centres, golf courses 
and community 
halls.

An agreement on a 
long term 
arrangement is 
made between the 
Council and Mytime 
Active. If this is not 
attainable then 
proposals for a wider 
market testing 
process will be 
developed.  

Agreement 
reached with 
Mytime 
Active by 
October 
2018.
Wider 
marketing to 
commence in 
November 
2019 if 
agreement is 
not reached.

John Gledhill/ 
Alicia 
Munday

The Executive on 28 November 
agreed to grant to Mytime Active 
40 year full repair and insurance 
leases for Group 1 properties, and 
up to 40 year leases for Group 2 
properties. Lease terms are now 
to be finalised and any material 
changes will be reported back to 
the Executive.

D) Explore the 
medium to long 
term options for 
future theatre 
provision in Bromley 
town centre, and 
develop an options 
appraisal.

The development of 
suitable options for 
the Theatre for 
consideration by the 
Executive.

Report to 
Executive in 
2019 
following 
completion 
of works.

John Gledhill A Report was considered by the 
Executive on 11 July to undertake 
temporary works and health and 
safety works at the Theatre. The 
works being undertaken will also 
consider the replacement of 
mechanical, electrical and heating 
plant. The outcome of these 
investigations will help inform the 
discussions around the future of 
the Theatre, and a further Report 
will be brought back to the 
Executive to consider options.

P
age 132



PRIORITY 4 – AFFORDABLE, DECENT AND SECURE HOMES

Enable residents to access and sustain a place to live that is affordable, decent and secure.

Rationale Key strategies/plans

By maximising the supply of accommodation, promoting good quality housing across all 
sectors and assisting those in housing need to resolve their own housing difficulties, we 
will reduce demands on our housing operation services and ensure that residents are 
safe, protected, well supported and living within strong communities.

Aligns to Building a Better Bromley

✓ Supporting independence
✓ Supporting children and young people
✓ Excellent Council

✓ Our Journey to Excellence
✓ Older People’s Strategy
✓ Children and Young People’s Plan
✓ The Roadmap to Excellence
✓ Housing Strategy

✓ Homelessness Strategy
✓ Corporate Parenting Strategy
✓ Children Looked After Strategy
✓ Care Leavers Strategy

Action Detail
Measure of 
success

Target 
date

DLT Lead Quarter 2 update 
PH 
Plan

P
age 133



Action Detail
Measure of 
success

Target 
date

DLT Lead Quarter 2 update 
PH 
Plan

A) Develop a new 
Housing Strategy for 
Bromley

B) Seek innovative ways 
to secure housing by 
working closely with 
colleagues across the 
Council to develop and 
exploit opportunities 
for joining up housing, 
employment, transport 
and other strategies

Housing Strategy 
launched

April 
2019

Director 
Housing

A) Housing Strategy in process of being drafted.  Focus groups will be 
held with stakeholders.  The final draft will be consulted on in March 
2019.

B) A number of options have been developed to secure new housing in 
Bromley:
 The Orchard and Shipman leasing contract was approved for renewal 

at RRH PDS in September 2018 securing existing supply.
 The second phase of the property purchase programme, using 

Bromley land to develop new affordable housing, will be going to 
RRH PDS in November 2018, followed by Council Executive for 
approval.

RRH1. Increase the 
supply of new 
homes, including 
affordable 
housing

C) Deliver the Modular 
Home programme

Modular Homes 
filled 

Summer 
2019

Director 
Housing

• Executive agreed to the principle of inviting bids from potential 
suppliers for the development and management of a modular 
constructed site in York Rise, Orpington in May 2017 (report 
CS18006). 

• Executive agreed to the proposal to proceed to formal tender for 
provision of modular build accommodation together with a 
management contract for a period of 15 years in January 2018 (report 
CS18121). 

• A project team has been set up as part of the Procurement process 
that will involve officers from Housing, Commissioning, Programmes 
and Projects, Finance, Legal, Procurement and Renewal and 
Recreation. 

• The first stage of tendering has been concluded and is now in the 
evaluation and negotiation stage.  The Contract Award will go to RRH 
PDS in November 2018 with implementation thereafter.  Subject to 
planning consent units will be on site in November 2019.

RRH

P
age 134



Action Detail
Measure of 
success

Target 
date

DLT Lead Quarter 2 update 
PH 
Plan

2. Reduce 
homelessness

A) Embed a new 
approach to managing 
homelessness by 
focusing on early 
intervention and 
gaining a stronger 
understanding about 
why some families and 
individuals report as 
homeless

Reduction in 
homelessness
applications

Reduction in use 
of Temporary
Accommodation

April 
2022
[AP]

Director 
Housing

• The Homelessness Strategy 2018-2023 was endorsed by the Adult 
Care and Health Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee in June 
2018 (report CS18135).

• The strategy was developed in consultation with partners and 
agencies delivering services, customers and other stakeholders.

• A total of 232 individual responses were received during the 
consultation in addition to the feedback from the focus groups.

• Putting a new strategy in place will enable the Council to both 
respond to the risk of increased homelessness and meet the new 
statutory duties arising from the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 
which came into force in April 2018.

• The Homelessness Strategy identifies 4 key priority areas designed to 
make the most difference and target those at greatest risk of 
homelessness: 

• Early identification and prevention of homelessness 
• Achieving positive outcomes for our young people 
• Increase access to and promote the supply of accommodation 
• Achieving positive outcomes by improving health and wellbeing 

and supporting people to break the cycle of homelessness
• The first Homelessness Forum was well attended by a range of 

agencies including representatives from various LBB departments, 
Housing Associations and 3rd sector partners.  A number of working 
groups to take actions forward were implemented.

• The new staffing structure has been piloted successfully.  Formal 
consultation will take place in October 2018 to make the changes 
permanent.  The restructure and a range of resources will ensure that 
services are compliant with the Homelessness Reduction Act.

• Extracting data to meet the reporting requirements of the new 
legislation from the current IT system is proving problematic and 
meaningful data has yet to be provided.  The new IT system is at the 
adoption and testing stage. 

Milestones: 

RRH

P
age 135



Action Detail
Measure of 
success

Target 
date

DLT Lead Quarter 2 update 
PH 
Plan

Sept 18 –the new Homelessness Reduction Act requirements have 
been implemented
April 19 – Implementation of new IT system 
April-June 19 – review of initiatives relating to the Act
Oct 19 – Duty to refer implemented

B) Review the 
placement policy

C) Review procurement 
strategy for Temporary 
Accommodation

Reduction in use 
of Temporary
Accommodation

July 2018

May 
2019

Director 
Housing

B) Placement policy reviewed and no changes made due to 
implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act.  

C) The Procurement Strategy will be presented to RRH PDS in November 
2018 for agreement.  A review of the Placement Policy and 
Procurement Strategy for Temporary Accommodation will take place in 
May 2019 to take into account any subsequent case law.

RRH

D) Launch Personal 
Housing Plans to 
include housing 
support and 
preventative solutions

E) Maintain a rolling 
programme of Personal 
Housing Plans

Reduced risk of 
homelessness

Reduced repeat 
homelessness

May 
2018

April 
2022
[AP]

Director 
Housing

D) Personal Housing Plans are being carried out.

E) The impact of Personal Housing Plans on reducing repeat 
homelessness cannot be made until sufficient time has passed to be 
able to assess whether individuals and families have maintained their 
tenancies following the implementation of the PHP.  An early audit has 
been carried out and learning implemented especially around 
timescales for review.  Early learning and best practice is being shared 
with other London boroughs.  The first full audit will take place in early 
2019.

RRH

P
age 136



Action Detail
Measure of 
success

Target 
date

DLT Lead Quarter 2 update 
PH 
Plan

Director 
Programmes

A new integrated Older People’s Strategy (Ageing Well in Bromley) is in 
development with Bromley CCG.  One of the anticipated outcome 
statements to be delivered is: My home meets my aspirations and 
needs.  The deadline has been extended to January 2019 to allow 
sufficient time for engagement with older residents of the borough. 

ACH3. Appropriate 
accommodation 
for
older people

A) Develop a more 
strategic approach to 
the provision of 
accommodation for 
older people in the 
borough including 
supported 
accommodation, extra 
care housing and 
residential/nursing care

Older People’s 
Strategy includes
housing element

Housing Strategy 
includes older
people element

Jan 2019

April 
2019

Director 
Housing

 The Older People Housing Needs Survey is now underway and on 
track to complete by quarter 4 2018/19.

 A working group has been established to review Extra Care Housing.  
The review covers the referral process, maximizing the use of Extra 
Care Housing for vulnerable older people and future needs for 
specialist housing in Bromley.

RRH

A) Increase net in-
house foster carers

B) Increase Staying Put 
take-up

Children Looked 
After sufficiency of 
provision

Effective in-house 
Fostering offer

Increase in Care 
Leavers living 
within families

April 
2022
[AP]

Director 
Children’s 
Social Care

• The recruitment of new foster carers continues with 26 new 
households being recruited between July 2017 and March 2018.  As 
at September 2018 29 foster carers have been recruited and are in 
the approval process.  

• Accredited foster carer training opportunities are being rolled out to 
provide additional support to foster carers.  Additional support 
includes a Fostering out of hours service, which started in July 2018, 
that will be accessible to carers weekday evenings and 9am to 10pm 
during Bank holidays and weekends as well as a psychologist from 
Coram therapeutic services who is now within the fostering service 
and accessible to carers.

• At the end of September 2018, 26 care leavers were living with 
families under the Staying Put arrangements.

CEF4. Appropriate 
accommodation 
for
Children in Care 
and Care Leavers

C) Develop a 
procurement 
framework for Care 
Leavers 
accommodation

Ensure good 
quality and 
suitable 
accommodation 
and support

Reduction in the 

April 
2020

Director 
Children’s 
Social Care/ 
Housing

The Gateway Review has been drafted and proposals for the framework 
will be going to Committee in October 18 for agreement.

CEF

P
age 137



Action Detail
Measure of 
success

Target 
date

DLT Lead Quarter 2 update 
PH 
Plan

average cost of 
Care Leavers 
placements

RRH

A) Review how the 
Disabled Facilities 
Grant (DFG) is used 
across the borough

Effective use of 
DFG

April 
2020

Director 
Housing

• The linked review of the Occupational Therapy Service has been 
completed and a dedicated Occupational Therapist remains within 
the Housing Service and increased capacity is planned.

• Responsibility for the DFG is currently with the Director of 
Environmental Services.  RRH Portfolio Holder has been briefed on 
the issue and officers from Housing are now working with colleagues 
in Environment prior to hand over.

RRH5. Appropriate 
accommodation 
for
children and 
adults with special 
educational needs 
and/or disabilities 
(SEND)

B) Increase Shared 
Lives take-up

Expanded Shared 
Lives programme

Increase in 
number of 
vulnerable adults 
living with families

April 
2022
[AP]

Director 
Adult Social 
Care

• At August 2018 there were 36 carers providing 33 long term 
placements and one emergency placement, 8 carers providing 16 
respite placements as well as 2 day support placements which 
compares well with other Shared Lives schemes in neighbouring local 
authorities.

• Adult Social Care is learning from the work undertaken by the 
Fostering Team to recruit carers to the service.  A programme of new 
and different ways of advertising, including social media, is being.  

• An inspection of this service by CQC is awaited and a service self-
evaluation has been completed to ensure service readiness.  Learning 
from other schemes achieving ‘Outstanding’ rating is being 
implemented prior to the inspection. (CS18173)

ACH

P
age 138



Action 2017/18 Target
2018/19

Qtr 1
2018/19

Qtr 2
2018/19

Qtr 3
2018/19

Qtr 4

4.1
Number and % of homeless prevention 
(as this indicator is being measured differently from previous years there are 
no figures for 17/18 or targets.  Data will be available in Qtr 2)

N/A N/A N/A N/A

4.2
Proportion of households in Nightly Paid Accommodation as % of total in 
temporary accommodation

59.7% 60% 61% 61%

4.3
Number of families with dependent children in shared accommodation 
(including B&B and shared annex) over 6 weeks

0% 0% 0% 0

P
age 139



T
his page is left intentionally blank



Page 1 of 1

Renewal, Recreation and Housing Risk Register

Appendix 2 DATE LAST REVIEWED: 31/10/2018

REF DIVISION RISK TITLE &
DESCRIPTION RISK CAUSE & EFFECT RISK

CATEGORY

GROSS RISK RATING

EXISTING CONTROLS IN PLACE TO MITIGATE THE RISK

CURRENT RISK
RATING

FURTHER ACTION REQUIRED RISK OWNER

LI
K

EL
IH

O
O

D

IM
PA

C
T

R
IS

K
 R

A
TI

N
G

LI
K

EL
IH

O
O

D

IM
PA

C
T

R
IS

K
 R

A
TI

N
G

1 All R and R Town Centre Businesses
Loss of town centre businesses to competition

Cause(s):
Failure to redevelop high streets coupled with competition from out-of-
town developments and online shopping

Effect(s):
Reduction in high street business and market stall occupancy
Loss of income (Business rates and market stalls)
Poor public perception and negative publicity

Financial 3 4 12

1. BID Teams organise town centres events
2. Investment in Orpington High Street and Bromley North (done)
3. Regular advertising / promotion of markets and availability of stalls
4. Review of Market operational costs to reduce costs where possible (a
Commissioning exercise is underway as at October 2018 for the markets service)
5. Regular maintenance and renewal of market infrastructure - recent market
relocation project has been undertaken.

2 3 6

1. Ongoing review of market provision linked to
outsourcing service provision to Bromley Business
Improvement District
2. Detailed annual action plan to be drawn up for each
town centre

Jim Kehoe
Colin Brand
Dan Jones

2 Housing Needs

Failure to deliver effective Housing Needs services
The Council is unable to deliver an effective Housing
Needs service to fulfil its statutory obligations

Cause(s):
- very demand led
- lack of trained staff
- homelessness is increasing number and complexity of cases

Effect(s):
- Impact on life chances and outcomes for individuals and families in
need of Housing Services
- Reputational damage
- Legal challenge

Legal 4 4 16

- Focus on preventing homelessness and diversion to alternative housing options
through:-
 - Landlord and Tenancy advice support and sustainment
 - Assistance (including financial aid) to access the private rented sector
 - Access to employment and training
 - Debt, money, budgeting and welfare benefits advice, including assistance to
resolve rent and mortgage arrears
 - Sanctuary scheme for the protection of victims of domestic violence
- Effective contract monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service
provision and value for money
- Implementation of the More Homes Bromley initiative to ensure the supply reduces
the reliance on nightly paid accommodation
- Implementing the Homelessness Strategy - setting up the multi-agency
Homelessness Forum and taking forward the priorities of the Strategy

3 4 12

- Seek new and alternative forms/supply of temporary
accommodation
- An options paper will be presented to Committee in
November for the new supply of temporary and settled
housing
- Continue to develop partnership working with private
sector landlords to assist households to remain in private
sector accommodation
- New incentive campaign for private sector landlords
launched
- Work innovatively with a range of providers to increase
access to a supply of affordable accommodation
- Monitoring impact of implementation of Homelessness
Reduction Act

Director, Housing
 (Sara Bowrey)

2a Housing Needs

Temporary Accommodation
Inability to effectively manage the volume of people
presenting themselves as homeless and the additional
pressures placed on the homelessness budgets

Causes:
- changes in government funding
- rising number of placements (approx. 20 per month)

Effect(s):
 - Failure to fulfil statutory obligations
-  Impact on life chances and outcomes for individuals and families in
temporary accommodation
- Increased risk of legal challenge due to provision of unsuitable
accommodation (including shared accommodation)
- Pressure on other services

Social 5 4 20

- Focus on preventing homelessness and diversion to alternative housing options
through:-
 - Landlord and Tenancy advice support and sustainment
 - Assistance (including financial aid) to access the private rented sector
 - Access to employment and training
 - Debt, money, budgeting and welfare benefits advice, including assistance to
resolve rent and mortgage arrears
 - Sanctuary scheme for the protection of victims of domestic violence
- Effective contract monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service
provision and value for money
- Implementation of the More Homes Bromley initiative to ensure the supply reduces
the reliance on nightly paid accommodation
- Implementing the Homelessness Strategy - setting up the multi-agency
Homelessness Forum and taking forward the priorities of the Strategy

5 4 20

- Seek new and alternative forms/supply of temporary
accommodation
- An options paper will be presented to Committee in
November for the new supply of temporary and settled
housing
- Continue to develop partnership working with private
sector landlords to assist households to remain in private
sector accommodation
- New incentive campaign for private sector landlords
- Work innovatively with a range of providers to increase
access to a supply of affordable accommodation
- Monitoring impact of implementation of Homelessness
Reduction Act
- Complete tender process for modular homes supplier
for temporary accommodation

Director, Housing
(Sara Bowrey)

2b Housing Needs
(Housing Strategy)

Capital Grant
Failure to deliver the Council’s affordable housing
strategy in support of statutory obligations
Lack of infrastructure in place where growth is
occurring (Section 106 monies)

Cause(s):
- Lack of availability of external capital grant (Housing Associations) to
deliver key housing schemes
- Lack of available suitable sites within the borough on which to develop
new affordable housing schemes over the short to medium term

Effect(s):
- An inadequate supply of housing will lead to an inability to meet
housing needs of a range of client groups in support of statutory housing
and homelessness duties.

Social 4 4 16

- Lead negotiations on the affordable housing provision on section 106 applications,
ensuring that the affordable housing obligation reflects local adopted planning policy
and local statutory and high priority housing need
- Determination at planning stage to ensure collection of obligations due
- Conditions attached to funding received to ensure it is spent on preventing
homelessness

3 4 12

- Review of proposed legislation as it develops
- An options paper for capital funding for development
will be going to Committee in November.
- Additional measures will be explored once the Housing
Strategy is developed.

Director, Housing
(Sara Bowrey)

3 All ECHS Divisions, All
R and R Divisions

Contracts and Service Level Agreements
Failure to effectively procure and/or manage key
contractors or partners, leading to the department
being unable to deliver key services, including
attracting appropriate contractors or partners to deliver
services

Cause(s):
- Failure of provider
- Provider withdrawing from the contract

Effect(s):
- Failure to deliver required quality/quantity/value for money services

Contractual,
Partnership 4 1 4

- Timely and effective procurement process
- Effective contract monitoring arrangements to ensure acceptable quality of service
provision and value for money
- Business Continuity plans
- Contracts Sub-Committee established (a sub-committee of the Executive and
Resources PDS Committee which considers a range of contracts issues including
legal requirements, contract clauses and contract management to ensure value for
money).
- Traffic light system in use to assess the current status of each procurement project,
as part of the Corporate Contract Management System) and any projects with a red
status are tracked and reported to fortnightly divisional management team meetings
- Commissioners and Procurement and Contract Compliance staff implement
recovery plans for projects with red status alerts in order to mitigate all risks and to
ensure that the department operates within financial regulations

3 1 3 - Ensuring appropriate adjustment of prices following
introduction of the National Living Wage

ECHS DLT, Colin
Brand

P
age 141



T
his page is left intentionally blank



 1

Report No.
CSD19018 

London Borough of Bromley

PART 1 - PUBLIC

 

Decision Maker: Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee

Date: 22 January 2019

Decision Type: Non-Urgent Non-Executive Non-Key

Title: RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME: MARCH 2019

Contact Officer: Lisa Thornley, Democratic Services Officer
Tel:  020 8461 7566   E-mail:  lisa.thornley@bromley.gov.uk

Chief Officer: Mark Bowen, Director of Corporate Services

Ward: N/A

1. Reason for report

1.1 This report updates the Committee's work programme.

________________________________________________________________________________

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The Committee is invited to review its work programme for the final meeting of the Municipal 
Year in March 2019.

Page 143

Agenda Item 16



 2

Corporate Policy

1. Policy Status: Existing policy.  PDS Committees are encouraged to review their work 
programmes.

2. BBB Priority: Excellent Council.      
________________________________________________________________________________

Financial

1. Cost of proposal: No cost      

2. Ongoing costs: N/A.      

3. Budget head/performance centre: Democratic Services

4. Total current budget for this head: £350,650

5. Source of funding: Existing 2018/19 revenue budget
________________________________________________________________________________

Staff

1. Number of staff (current and additional):  There are 8 posts (6.87 fte) in the Democratic Services 
Team.  

2. If from existing staff resources, number of staff hours: Preparation of the Work Programme report 
can normally be expected to take 2-3 hours  

________________________________________________________________________________

Legal

1. Legal Requirement: No statutory requirement or Government guidance.      

2. Call-in: Not applicable.  PDS Report.
________________________________________________________________________________

Customer Impact

1. Estimated number of users/beneficiaries (current and projected): Borough-wide 
________________________________________________________________________________

Ward Councillor Views

1. Have Ward Councillors been asked for comments?  N/A. 

2. Summary of Ward Councillors comments:  N/A

Page 144



 3

3. COMMENTARY

3.1 Each PDS Committee has a responsibility to develop and review its work programme balancing 
the key roles of:

 Holding the Executive to account;
 Policy development and review; and
 External scrutiny.

3.2 The Committee is invited to consider its work programme having regard to guidance at Section
8 of the Scrutiny Toolkit and in consultation with the Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio 
Holder and Chief/Senior Officers.

3.3 The Committee’s Work Programme for the final meeting of the Municipal Year in March 2019 is 
attached at Appendix A.  

Non-Applicable Sections: Policy/Financial/Legal/Personnel

Background Documents:
(Access via Contact 
Officer)

Previous Work Programme reports.

Page 145



This page is left intentionally blank



ANNEX A

Report Title Report Author PH Decision
(Yes/No)

Renewal, Recreation and Housing Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee – 6 March 2019
Matters Arising from Previous Meetings LT No

Budget Monitoring CM Yes

Contracts Register M S-C Yes/No

Homelessness Strategy SB Yes/No

Expenditure on Consultants P Gibbs No

Annual Renewal, Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan M S-C No

West Wickham Leisure and Library Development Update A Munday Yes/No

Review of Libraries and GLL (including fact-based KPIs) TW No

Town Centres Development Programme Update KM No

Planning Performance and Planning Enforcement JK/JS No

Chairman’s Annual Report Chairman No

Work Programme LT No

Exempt Reports
Contracts Register – Part 2 M S-C Yes/No

Housing Supply to Meet Need Through Use of Bromley Owned Land (to include outcome of 
feasibility studies on three identified sites – as agreed in Minute 53/1 -13.11.18) SB No

To be arranged 
Penge High Street Report Chipperfield Road Provision of Full Fibre Broadband - Update
Report on Orpington Regeneration Strategy Banbury House Report – SB Traveller Sites – SB
Post-completion report for Beckenham Improvement Scheme BIDS for Chislehurst and West Wickham
(May/June 2019)
Crystal Palace Masterplan 

P
age 147



T
his page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 149

Agenda Item 18



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 153

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3,5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank



Document is Restricted

Page 157

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2018
	Minutes
	 APPENDIX A - RR&H PDS: HOUSING DIVISION OVERVIEW

	5 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES AND UPDATES
	7 CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING - 2ND QUARTER 2018/19
	RRH 220119 - Apps 1 and 2.doc

	11 BECKENHAM AND PENGE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (BID) UPDATE
	APPENDIX 1A - PENGE BID BUSINESS PLAN
	APPENDIX 1B - BECKENHAM BID BUSINESS PLAN

	12 OPPORTUNITY SITE G - APPROVAL FOR IN PRINCIPLE USE OF COMPULSORY PURCHASE POWERS
	Enc. 2 for OPPORTUNITY SITE G - APPROVAL FOR IN PRINCIPLE USE OF COMPULSORY PURCHASE POWERS
	Enc. 3 for OPPORTUNITY SITE G - APPROVAL FOR IN PRINCIPLE USE OF COMPULSORY PURCHASE POWERS

	13 TOWN CENTRES DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE
	14 DRAFT BUDGET 2019/20
	Draft Budget 2019/20 Appendix 1

	15 RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PORTFOLIO PLAN - QUARTER TWO UPDATE
	Enc. 1 for Renewal Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan - Quarter Two Update
	Enc. 2 for Renewal Recreation and Housing Portfolio Plan - Quarter Two Update

	16 RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME (MARCH 2019)
	RRH Work Programme - March 2019

	18 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE RENEWAL, RECREATION AND HOUSING PDS COMMITTEE HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER 2018
	19 PRIVATE SECTOR TALL BUILDINGS UPDATE
	Appendix 1




